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Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Zone Telecom, Inc. Application to Provide Alternative 
Local Exchange Service 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

Enclosed please find an original and seven copies of our application to 
provide Alternative Local Exchange Service within the state of Florida . 

Also enclosed is the appropriate non-refundable application fee in the 
amount of $250.00. 

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this filing by returning, file stamped, the 
extra copy of this cover letter in the self addressed stamped envelope provided 
for that purpose. 

Questions regarding this filing may be directed to Jill Papenhausen at 
(856) 414-6892 or (813) 843-9857. 

Sincerely, 

FPSC-BUREAU OF RECORDS 
Michael G. Bonaventure, CPA 
Accounting Manager 

Check received with filing and fofWara.d 
to FIscal for deposit Fiacal to fonMlrd 
deposit InformatIOn to RecocdII. 
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ORIGINAL 

APPLICATION 

1. This is an application for --j (check one): 

( X) 	Original certificate (new company). 

( 	 Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original 
certificate of authority. 

( 	 Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the certificate 
of authority of that company. 

( 	 Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51 % of a 
certificated company. The Commission must approve the new controlling 
entity. 

2. 	 Name of company: 
Zone Telecom, Inc. 

3. 	 Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 
Zone Telecom, Inc. 

4. Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, 
state, zip code): 


Woodland Falls Corporate Center 

200 Lake Drive East, Suite 200 

Cherry Hill, New Jersey 08002 


DOCUMU;: '1! 'W~rR -Cf.JE 
FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 2 o4 7 8 6 MA Y28 2 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 

FPSC-COMt'lISSION CLERK 
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5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, 
zip code): 

CT Corporation System 
1200 South Pine Island Road 
Plantation, FI 33324 

6. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual 
( ) Foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 
( ) Other 

( x ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) Limited Partnership 

7. If individual, provide: 

N/A - Zone Telecom, Inc.’s business structure type is a corporation 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Fax No.: 

Internet We bsite Address: 

8. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

N/A -Zone Telecorn, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Delaware 
during June 2000. 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

3 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 
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9. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT I 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 
F00000004136 

I O .  If using fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious 
name statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

N/A - No fictitious name-d/b/a is being used by Zone Telecom, Inc. 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

I I. If a limited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: 

N/A - Zone Telecom, Inc.’s business structure type is a corporation 

(a) The Florida registration number: 

12. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of 
the partnership agreement. 

N/A - Zone Telecom, Inc.’s business structure type is a corporation 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

C i ty/S ta te/Zi p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

4 FORM PSCiCMU 8 (1 1195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810. and 25-24.815 



13. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.1 69, FS), if applicable. 

N/A - Zone Telecom, Inc.'s business structure type is a corporation 

(a) The Florida registration number: 

14. Provide F.E.I. Number(if applicable1 

04-3520968 

15. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any 
crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. Provide 
explanation . 

None 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no 
longer associated with company, give reason why not. 

None 

16. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Jill Papenhausen 

Title: Director of Legal & Regulatory 

5 FORM PSCiCMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810. and 25-24.815 



Address: Woodland Falls Corporate Center - 200 Lake Drive East, Suite 200 

City/State/Zip: Cherry Hill, New Jersey 08002 

Telephone No.: (81 3)843-9857 or (856)414-6836 

I t i  tern et E- M a i I Add ress : j pa pen ha u sen @zon ecms. com 

Internet Website Address: www.ZoneLD.com 

Fax No.: (561 )495-4287 

6 FORM PSCiCMU 8 (1 1195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810. and 25-24.815 



(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Name: Terry Metzger 

Title: Vice-president 

Address: Woodland Falls Corporate Center - 200 Lake Drive East, Suite 200 

CitylStateiZip: Cherry Hill, New Jersey 08002 

Telephone No.: (856)414-6904 Fax No.: (856)414-6957 

Internet E-Mail Address: tmetzger@zonecms.com 

Internet Website Address: www.ZoneLD.com 

(c) Complaints/lnquiries from customers: 

Name: Kathy Crusemire 

Title: Service Operations Manager 

Address: Woodland Falls Corporate Center - 200 Lake Drive East, Suite 200 

CitylStateiZip: Cherry Hill, New Jersey 08002 

Telephone No.: Residential 1 -(866)333-9633 Fax No. 1 -(856)414-6925 
Corporate 1 -(866)539-9663 Fax No. 1 -(856)414-6925 

Internet E-Mail Address: kcrusemire@zonecms.com 

I n tern et We bsite Add r e s  : www .Zone LD. com 

17. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an alternative local exchange company. 
N/A -Zone Telecom, Inc. has not operated as an ALEC in any 
state previously. 

7 FORM PSCiCMU 8 (11195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



(c) has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local exchange 
company . 

N/A - Florida is the only application at this time being submitted for 
approval . 

(c) is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company. 

Rhode Island 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange 
company and the circumstances involved. 

None 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

None 

(f) has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
circumstances involved. 

None 

18. Submit the following: 

8 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



18. Submit the following: 

A. 

8. 

Managerial capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 2 

Technical capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate 
what company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 3 

9 FORM PSCiCMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.81 5 



C. Financial capability. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements for the 
most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall 
so be stated. SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 4 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial statements 
are true and correct and should include: 

N/A -Audited Financial Statements have been included with this 
application for ALEC. 

1.  the balance sheet: 

2. income statement: and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a 
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions 
of business relationships with financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be provided: 

1 , written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to provide 
the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

Response: 
Zone presently has a strong long distance revenue stream tied to Florida 
operations, as well as to operations nationwide. Zone expects to grow that 
revenue stream and to use it to further fund its Florida operations. 
Moreover, through its parent company, e-Kong Group Limited, a publicly 
traded company in Hong Kong, Zone has access to capital markets and can 
raise money as needed to fund its Florida operations. 

2. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to maintain 
the requested service. 

Response: 
The same financial capability that was available in Zone Telecom, Inc.'s IXC 

application (001 51 5-TI) is available. 

10 FORM PSClCMU 8 (1 1195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to meet its 
lease or ownership obligations. 

Response: 
Zone Telecom is presently a certificated IXC in Florida and has the financial 
capability to meet its lease and ownership obligations 

1 1  FORM PSCICMU a (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT 

1, REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must 
pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of . I 5  of one Dercent of gross 
operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating 
revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required. 

2. APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 
must be submitted with the application. 

UT I L ITY 0 F F I C I AL : 

Derrick Bulawa 0 

Print Name Signature 

President I CEO MQ I v dd, J-oQ.3 

Title Date 

1856)414-6916 (856141 4-6932 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: Woodland Falls Corporate Center - 200 Lake Drive East, Suite 200 
Cherry Hill, New Jersey 08002 

12 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

AFFl DAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the 
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the 
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to 
provide alternative local exchange company service in the State of Florida. I have 
read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of 
my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable 
Commission rules and orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, 
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writ ing with the intent to  
mislead a public servant in  the performance of his official duty shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 
and s. 775.083." 

UTI LlTY OFFlC IAL: 

Derrick Bulawa 

Print Name 

President / CEO 

Title 

Signature 

f l 4 y  2 2 ,  2003 
I I 

Date 

1856141 4-691 6 (856)414-6932 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: Woodland Falls Corporate Center - 200 Lake Drive East, Suite 200 
Cherry Hill, New Jersey 08002 

13 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available) 

Chapter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make available 
to staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request. 

1. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

NIA - Zone Telecom, Inc. does have any POP Addresses 

1) 2) 

2. SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate if 
owned or leased. 

N/A - Zone Telecom, Inc. does not have any Switch Addresses 

1) 2) 

3. TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facilities by type of facilities 
(microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased. 

N/A - Zone Telecom, Inc. does not have any Transmission Facilities 

POP-to-POP OWNERSHIP 

14 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 

NIA -There is no sale, transfer or assignment taking place. 

I ,  (Name) 
(Title) of (Name of Company) 

and current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number # 

( ) sale 

( ) transfer 

( ) assignment 

of the above-mentioned certificate. 

, have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's request for a: 

UTI L I TY 0 F F I C I AL : 

Print Name 

Title 

I elephone No. Fax No. 

Address : 

Signatu re 

Date 

15 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commiss ion Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
Katherine Harris 

Secretary of State 
July 24, 2000 

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 

Qualification documents for ZONE TELECOM, INC. were filed on July 24, 2000 and 
assigned document number F00000004136. Please refer to this number whenever 
corresponding with this office. 

Your corporation is now qualified and authorized to transact business in Florida as of 
the file date. 

A corporation annual report/uniform business report will be due this office between 
January 1 and May 1 of the year following the calendar year of the file date. A Federal 
Employer Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be filed. If 
you do not already have an FEI number, please apply NOW with the Internal Revenue 
by calling 1-800-829-3676 and requesting form SS-4. 

Please be aware if the corporate address changes, it is the responsibility of the 
corporation to notify this office. 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone (850) 487- 
6051, the Foreign Qualification/Tax Lien Section. 

Buck Kohr 
Corporate Specialist 
Division of Corporations Letter Number: 400A00040282 

Division of Corporations - P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314 

EA),; b l  + 1(4j 



APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSACT 
BUSINESS IN F’LORIDA 

IN C O M P W C E  WITH SECTION 607.1503, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE F O E 0  WING IS SUBMUTED TQ 
REGISTER A FOREIGN CORPORATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA. - 1  

-2 ~ 

I .- 
1, Zone Telecom, Inc. s -  

c- . 

(Name of corporation: must include the word “INCORPORATED”, “COMPANY”, “CORPORATION’ or 
words or abbreviations of like import in language as will clearly indicate that it is a corporation instead of a 
natural person or partnership if not so contained in the name at present) 

7 
2 .- 
-s) 
5 

2, Delaware 3. 04-3520968 5 
U ’  (FEI number, if applicable) 0 -  (State or country under the law of which it is incorporated) 

06/ 13/2000 5 ,  Perpetual 4. 
(Date of incorporation) (Duration: Year corp. will ceue to existor “perpetual”) 

6. Upon qualification 
(Date first transacted business in Florida.) (SEE SECTIONS 607.1501, 607.1502 and 817.155, F.S.) 

7. 279 Harvard St., #21, Cambridge, MA 02139 

(Current mailing address) 

8. See Attachment 
@rpose(s) of corporation authorized in home state or country to be carried out in state of Florida) 

9. Name and street address of Florida registered agent: (P.0. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT acceptable) 

Name: C T Corporation System 

, Florida, 33324 Plantation 
(Zip code) 

10. Registered agent’s acceptance: 

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process for the above stated corporalion at the place designated in 
this application, I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. Ifrrrther agree to comply 
with the provisions of all statutes relalive to the proper and complete performunce of my duties, and I am familiar with and accept 
the obligations of my position US registered agent. c System 

By : r&4LA+y4be 
(Registered agent’s signature) 

L w l t  &))Ad, +ab4 kk scc), 
1 1. Attached is a certificate of existence duly authenticated, not more than 90 days prior to delivery of this application to the 
Department of State, by the Secretary of State or other official having custody of corporate records in the jurisdiction under the law of 
which it is incorporated. 

12. Names and addresses of officers andor directors: (Street address ONLY - P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 
M 1 9  - C T F‘ding h h a p  Online 



A. DIRECTORS (Street address only - P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 

Chairman: See attached rider 

Address: 

Vice Chairman: 

Address: 

0 1. - 
Director: 0 .  _ _  . . 

r- .- 

r - .  
-. , -  _ -  _-  . .  

Address: 
1 .. 

Director: 

Address: 

5 ,  .. 
d -: 

B. OFFICERS (Street address only - P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 

See attached rider President: 

Address: 

Vice President: 

Address: 

Secretary: 

Address: 

Treasurer: 

Address: 

m to the application listing additional officers andor directors. 

13. 
(Signature 6a i rman ,  Vice Chairman, or any officer listed in number 12 of the application) 

14, Lawton Bloom, Vice President 
(Typed or printed name and capacity of person signing application) 



Addendum to 

Florida Application for Certificate of Authority 
- 

Item 8: (Purpose clause) -- 
0 -  _ -  
0 -. 

$!he/ To engage in the telecommunications business. Notwithstanding the foregoin 
purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for 

~ 
ch- 

corporations may be organized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. 2 - , - 
Q - -  
zz &:.: - ..I. . .. -. . .  

#938683 v\l - toler” - 4@jOl!.doc ’ - 207793 
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EXHIBIT 2 
(resume I of 2) 

Derrick F. Bulawa 

Resume 

WORK EXPERIENCE 
1999-present 

1995 - 1999 

(1998 - 1999)  

(1995 - 1998)  

1995 - 1995 

1991 - 1995 

(1993 - 1995)  

( I 9 9 1  - 1993)  

Zone Telecom, Inc 

Reseller of domestic and international long distance telecommunications 
services with internet functional integration 

President/CEO 

U N I  F I  COMMUNICATIONS 

UNIFI Communications developed businesses in the world's 12 top 
telecom markets for the purpose of providing outsourced Internet fax and 
messaging services integrated with the Internet. 

Chief Operating Officer (COO) 

President, North Asia 

PACIFIC CENTURY GROUP 

Pacific Century Group was Asia's first company to provide leased and 
switched satellite-based communications on a pan-Asian basis in direct 
competition with the major Asian te lecom monopolies. (Pacific Centuy 
Group was also founded by Mr. Richard Li) 

Senior Technical Advisor 

STAR TV (Satellite Television Asian Region) 

STAR TV is Asia's first regional satellite television company providing 
direct-to-home entertainment to 170 million viewers across 53 countries. 

General Manager - Satellite & Technical Operations 

Vice President - Technical Operations 

Derrick F. Bulawa (Summary of Experience & Resume) Page 1 of 2 



05/22 /03  

1985 - 1991 GTE SPACENET, CA., USA 

Derrick originally joined Equatorial Communications Inc. in 2 98% after 
which the company was acquired by Contel ASC. In  2990, Contel was in 
turn acquired by GTE Spacenet Inc. Each of  these companies had major 
telecommunications network development contracts with Asian 
governments, military organizations and private companies. 

(1990 - 1991) Technical Marketing Manager 

(1989 - 1990) Network Engineering Manager 

(1986 - 1989) Network Engineer 

(1985 - 1986) Senior Network System Specia I ist 

E DUCAT10 N 

1985 DEVRY INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, 
COLUMBUS, OHIO, USA 

Bachelor of Science in Electronics Engineering Technology 

Derrick F. Bulawa (Summary of Experience & Resume) Page 2 of 2 



EXHIBIT 2 
(resume 2 of 2) 

Name : Terry Metzger 
Address: 405 Hancock Drive 

Telephone: (856) 478.9739 
E-mail: tgmetzger2@comcast.net 

Mullica Hill, NJ 08062 

Professional Experience 

Vice President of Finance 
Zone Telecom, Cherry Hill, NJ. Zone Telecom is a subsidiary of The e-Kong Group (publicly traded 
on the Hang Seng - 524) a Distacom holding. Feb '02 - Current 

Executive representative for accounting, collections, billing, human resources, legal and 
regulatory affairs. Zone Telecom is a FCC licensed, national, long-distance telecom company. 

Chief Financial Officer & Vice President of Finance 
Madacom SA, a Disfacom Company, Antananarivo, Madagascar 
0 

Oct '99 - Feb '02 
Executive administrator for the finance, purchasing, and information technology departments. 
Madacom is a GSM cellular telephone company in the Republic of Madagascar. 

Senior Budget Director 

Executive administrator of the year 2000 budget process for Spice Telecom. 
Spice Telecom, a Disfacom Company, Bangalore, India Aug '99 - Oct '99 

Rooms Division Director 
lnverness Hotel & Golf Club, Denver, CO May '97 - Aug '99 

Executive administrator for the Rooms Division of a 305-room conference center golf resort 
including five departments with over 100 employees. 

Director, Central Reservations 
Amfac Parks & Resorts, Denver, CO NOV '95 - May '97 

Executive administrator for the Amfac Central Reservations Office. Amfac is a contractor for the 
United States National Park Service including the Grand Canyon and Yellowstone National 
Parks, 

Project Director 
Hotel Sofitel International, New York, NYIParis, France 
0 Responsible for five Project Managers and one Project Coordinator for a Yield 

ManagementiReservation Sales Task Force operating in seven hotels in North America and 35 
hotels in Western Europe spanning 11 countries. 

May '94 - Nov '95 

Rooms ManagerlFront Office Manager 
Hotel Sofitel International, Chicago, IL 

Front Office Manager 
Grosvenor Resort at Walt Disney World Village, Orlando, FL 

1 o f 2  

Aug '90 - May '94 

Jun '88 - Jul '90 

Confidential Profile - Terry Metzger 



0 Responsible for three departments, designed and implemented operational budgets, including 
weekly and monthly accountability systems for 636-room hotel. 

Education 

Master of Business Administration 
Regis University. Denver, CO 
Concentrations: Finance & Executive 
Graduated with Honors 

Bachelor of Science, Business Administration 
Regis University, Denver, CO 
Concentrations: International Business and Accounting 

Personal Interests 

Golf, skiing, and travel 

- 2 -  
Confidential Profile - Terry Metzger 
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EXHIBIT 3 
(resume 1 of 1 )  

Executive Biography - Robbiii Wells, Chief Technical Officer (CTO) 

Robbin Wells is the C'TO of Zone Telecoiii, Iiic. 

Robbiii Wells joined e-KONG Group Ltd. (tlie parent coiiipaiiy of Zone Telecoiii, Iiic.) as 
Vice President of Technology iii October 1999. He  has over 21 years of  experience in 
the coiiiputer and telephony industry. He was extensive experience developing IP 
networlts in North America, Europe, and Asia. 

Robbiii was previously employed as Head of Technology for UNIFI Coiiiiiiuiiicatioiis. 
UNIFI was a lirst generation IP messaging coiiipaiiy that achieved a revenue growth of 
40000/0 over live years. During 1997 INC Magazine recognized UNIFI Coiiiiiiuiiicatioiis 
as the 20"' fastest growing private coiiipaiiy on tlie INC 500 list in tlie US. Robbiii was 
the systeiii architect and technical lead for their global IP based messaging and 
telecommunications networlt with over 1000 IP platforms in fifteen countries. He served 
as  Senior Technical Advisor for a 120-member R & D  department focusing 011 IP and 
Iiiteiiiet centric products. Robbiii acted as a liaison between R & D  and worldwide 
Operations and  as respoiisible for initial network iiifrastructure design and deployment. 

Prior to UNIFT. Robbin worked for Prime Computer as a principal engineer in tlie 
CAD/CAM division and Sinal1 Systems group. He was a tecliiiical lead in tlie 
dc\Jelopment of' the user interface iiiaiiageineiit system (UIMS) for Prime Design. Prime 
Dcsign was a parametric 3" solid iiiodeliiig system used to develop eiigiiies and 
suspeiision systems by the automotive industry. Priiiie Designs' UIMS was one of tlie 
first coiiimercial products 011 tlie iiiarltet to utilize Object Oriented technology. 

Robbiii was the Chief Engineer for W. F. Wood Corp. during the late 70's and early 80's. 
He was responsible for inanufacturiiig and production automation. W. F. Wood COI-p. 
\+'as oiie of the early US based conipaiiies to use first generation inaiiufacturiiig 
automatioii technologies. Robbiii developed an integrated system to assist engineers in 
gcneratiiig Numerical Control programs. This reduced tlie time to go from blue print to 
prociuction by 50%.  I-fe also developed a plant-wide system tlie allowed real-time job 
ti-aclting and cost accounting. 
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Zone USA, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for 
the year ended December 31,2002 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Stockholder of 
Zone USA, Inc.: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, changes in stockholder’s equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Zone USA, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 3 1 ,  2002, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on those financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As more fully described in Note 1, the Company has incurred a net loss and negative cash flows from 
operations, but expects these results to improve in 2003. The Company’s plans for providing liquidity 
during 2003 are also set forth in Note 1. 

February 24,2003 



Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
December 31,2002 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 

Prepaid expenses 
doubtful accounts of $360,25 1 

Total current assets 

Fixed assets, net 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to Parent (Note 7 )  
Capital lease obligations, current portion 

Total current liabilities 

Capital lease obligations 
Loan from Parent (Note 7) 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 6) 

Stockholder's Equity 

Common stock, 1,000 shares at $.01 par value 

Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated deficit 

authorized, issued and outstanding 

Total stockholder's equity 

Total liabilities and stockholder's equity 

$ 1,626,427 

3,070,056 
3 16,648 

5,O 13,13 1 

13,798,8 17 
2 1 1,734 

$ 19,023.682 

$ 2,784,602 
2,719,575 

653,779 
72.202 

6,230,158 

106,394 
6,943,463 

13,280,015 

10 
35,000,990 

(29,257,333) 

5,743,667 

$ 19,023,682 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
For the Year Ended December 31,2002 

Revenue 
Cost of revenues 

Gross profit 

Salary expense 
General and administrative expense 
Selling and marketing expense 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Loss from operations 

Interest expense, net 

Loss before income taxes 

Provision for income taxes 
Net loss 

$ 22,751,792 
16,420,048 

6,33 1,744 

5,073,59 1 
5,026,949 
4,604,999 
2.037.058 

(10,410,853) 

369,765 

(10,780,618) 

2,646 

$ (1 0,783,264) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholder's Equity 
For the Year Ended December 31,2002 

Addition a1 
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated 

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total 
Balance at December 3 1,200 1 1,000 $ 10 $ 4,753,425 $(18,474,069) $(13,720,634) 

Capital contributions from parent 30,247,565 30,247,565 

Net loss 

Balance at December 3 1, 2002 1,000 - $10 - 
- ( 1  0,783,264) 

$35,000,990 $ (29,257,333) 

(10,783,264) 

$ 5,143,661 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31,2002 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash 

used in operating activities 
Bad debt expense 
Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

$ (10,783,264) 

762,526 
2,037,058 

(1,273,963) 

(1,646,437) 
(1,508,392) 

251,110 

Net cash used in operating activities (12,161,362) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of fvted assets (938.640) 

Net cash used in investing activities (93 8,640) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Capital contributions from parent 
Repayment of amounts due to related party 
Repayment on capital leases 

13,682,799 
(699,096) 

(54,186) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 12,929,5 17 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at begmning of period 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Supplementary disclosures of cash flow mformation: 
Cash paid for interest 
Cash paid for taxes 

Non-cash investing and financing activities: 
Conversion of intercompany debt to equity 
Acquisition of equipment under capital leases 
Equipment purchases included in accounts payable 

(170,485) 
1,796,9 12 

$ 1,626,427 

$ 198,224 
90,96 1 

$ 16,564,766 
35,677 

287.078 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, 
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Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 

1. Principles of Consolidation and Business 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Zone USA, Inc. (“Zone”), its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Zone Telecom, Inc., and its indirect wholly owned subsidiary ZT Real Estate LLC, 
(collectively referred to as the “Company”). This Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of e-Kong 
Group, Ltd. (“Parent”). 

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated 

Business 
The Company is a reseller of telecommunication long distance services and generally utilizes the 
Sprint Communications Company, AT&T, Global Crossing and Qwest Communications networks. 
The Company also has switching capabilities and carries both domestic and international long 
distance traffic on its telecommunications switches for certain customer applications. 

Zone has incurred losses since being acquired by e-Kong Ltd. and has an accumulated deficit of 
$29,257,333 at December 3 1, 2002. While the Company has historically generated a gross profit, it 
continues to use cash in operating activities and generate losses from operations. The Company used 
$12,16 1,362 in operations for the year ended December 3 1 ,  2002. 

Under a loan facility agreement with the Parent, the Company has the ability to borrow an additional 
$1.1 million at December 3 1 ,  2002 (Note 7). While the Company does not expect to borrow up to the 
remaining $1.1 million, the Parent has represented to the Company that i t  will fund working capital 
and capital expenditure needs of the Company through 2003, should such funding be required. The 
Company expects to generate sufficient cash flows from worlung capital and future operations to 
support its capital needs. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Revenue Recognition 
The Company recognizes revenues from its customer when services are provided. The Company’s 
customers are billed on a monthly basis. 

Advertising 
The costs of advertising, promotion and marketing programs are charged to operations in the year 
incurred. Advertising expense was $174,026 for the year ended December 3 1 ,  2002. 

Use of Estimates 
The use of generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

6 



Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 

3. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Included in cash and cash equivalents are short-term investments and other highly liquid instruments 
having an initial maturity of ninety days or less. 

Fixed Assets 
Equipment, furniture and fixtures are depreciated for financial reporting purposes using the straight- 
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets that range from three to seven years. 
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or the life of the 
related lease. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from their respective accounts, and any resulting gains and losses are 
recorded in the consolidated statements of operations. Repairs and maintenance are charged to 
expense as incurred. 

Income Taxes 
Taxes on income are determined in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (SFAS 109), which requires the use 
of the asset and liability method in accounting for income taxes, whereby deferred tax balances are 
recorded based on the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes, using the enacted tax rates in  effect for the year in  which 
the differences are expected to reverse. 

A f i l l  valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets has been established since the Company 
believes based on recurring losses from operations that it is more likely than not that the deferred 
income tax assets will not be realized. The net operating loss carryforward has a carryforward period 
of 20 years and will begin to expire in 2020. 

Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets at December 3 1, 2002 consist of the following: 

Useful Life 

Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Computer and communications equipment 
Equipment under capital lease 
Network hardware 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

$ 91,063 
49,180 

5,241,138 
3 12,909 

12,193,9 17 

17,888,207 
(4,O 8 9,3 90) 

$13,798,8 17 

Depreciation and amortization expense was $2,037,058 for the year ended December 3 1 ,  2002 

7 



Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 

4. Capital Lease Obligations 

The Company has capital lease obligations at December 3 1, 2002 totaling $178,596. The interest rates 
on the leases range from 8% to 8.33%. The Company recorded $15,076 in interest expense for the 
year ended December 3 1 ,  2002, in connection with their capital lease obligations. 

The aggregate amount of minimum future lease payments at December 3 1 ,  2002, under capital lease 
obligations are as follows: 

Years 

2003 
2004 
2005 
Thereafter 

Total minimum payments 
Less interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less current portion 

$ 83,659 
57,743 
57,743 

~ 

199,145 
(20,549) 

178,596 
72,202 

$ 106.394 

5 .  Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 3 I ,  2002 was $2,646 and consists of 
alternative minimum taxes for some states in which the Company operates. Due to taxable losses, 
there is no provision for federal income taxes. 

Differences between income tax expense at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and the 
Company’s effective income tax rate for the year ended December 3 1,  2002 is as follows: 

Tax at federal statutory rate 
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 
Permanent differences 
Change in valuation allowance 

Total provision 

$ (3,666,310) 
1,747 

13,119 
3,654,090 

$ 2,646 
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Zone USA, lnc, and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 

Deferred income taxes are recorded based upon differences between financial statement and tax bases 
of assets and liabilities. The following deferred income taxes were recorded at December 3 1 ,  2002: 

Current: 
Accounts receivable reserved 
Accrued liabilities 

Total cunent deferred income tax asset 

Long-term: 
Fixed assets 
Tax basis intangible assets 
Net operating loss carryforward 
Other 

Total long-term deferred income tax asset 

Valuation allowance 
Net deferred income tax asset 

$ 139,777 
275,847 

415.624 

103,943 
1,5 15,199 
9,479,364 

32,4 13 

11.130.919 

11,546,543 
!% 

6. Commitments and Contingencies 

Operating Leases 
The Company has operating leases related to office space and equipment. Rent expense amounted to 
$94933 1 for the year ended December 3 1,2002. 

The aggregate amount of minimum future lease payments at December 3 1, 2002, which have 
remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year in each of the next five years, is as 
fo 110 w s : 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
Thereafter 

$745,928 
753,709 
509,879 
164,900 

The Company has renewal options under some of these leases for periods ranging from I year to 5 
years. 
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Zone USA, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 

7. Related Party Transactions 

During 2002, the Company concluded several related party transactions. e-Kong Group, Ltd. made 
capital contributions totaling $13,682,799 in 2002. Additionally, e-Kong Group, Ltd. determined that 
i t  would no longer require repayment of certain intercompany payables in the amount of $16,564,766. 
These amounts have been reclassified as equity in 2002. 

On March 15,2002, the Company also entered into a revolving loan facility with e-Kong Group, Ltd. 
which allows the Company to borrow up to $8,000,000 in the first two years of the agreement. As of 
December 3 1 ,  2002, the Company has $6,943,463 of outstanding borrowings under this facility and 
recorded $203,182 as interest expense for the year ended December 3 1 ,  2002. The interest rate on the 
debt is calculated at 7.0% per annum. 

The Company has $653,779 recorded at December 3 1,2002 as an amount due to e-Kong Group, Ltd. 
Certain assets of the Company are used as collateral against borrowings by e-Kong Group, Ltd. 
e-Kong Group, Ltd. has required these borrowings to be paid by the Company. The balance 
outstanding represents remaining payments owed by the Company. Full payment of these amounts is 
expected in 2003. The Company recorded $75,894 as interest expense for the year ended 
December 3 1. 2002. 

8. Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Company maintains a centralized cash management program whereby its cash balances are 
deposited with high-credit quality fmancial institutions. At times, cash balances in the Company’s 
accounts may exceed federally insured limits. Credit risk related to trade receivables is limited due to 
the wide variety of customers to which the Company’s services are sold, as well as their dispersion 
across many different geographic areas. 

9. Litigation 

The Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims and proceedings of a nature considered normal 
to its business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a 
materially adverse effect on the results of operations or the financial position of the Company. The 
Company’s financial statements include all known costs incurred to date related to its various lawsuits 
and does not include any potential favorable settlements of outstanding matters. Amounts accrued for 
litigation matters are recorded within accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

10. Defined Contribution Benefit Plan 

The Company sponsors a 401K defined contribution benefit plan. Participation in the plan is available 
to substantially all employees. Company contributions to the plan are based on a percentage of the 
employee’s contributions not to exceed certain maximum levels. The Company’s contribution to the 
plan was $75,961 for the year ended December 3 1,  2002. 

10 
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e-KONG Group Limited 

A t  the beginning of 2002, e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”, together w i th  i t s  subsidiaries 
col lect ively re fer red t o  as the “Group”)  made a strategic decision t o  focus its e f for ts  and 
resources o n  building and growing i t s  ZONE operations into the core operating business. Dur ing 
the year, the ZONE business in the United States,  Hong Kong and Singapore have each developed 
in to  a sustainable and scalable businesses. 

ZONE Hong Kong and Z O N E  Singapore ( “ZONE Asia”) achieved their goal of making a positive 
contr ibut ion towards the cashflow of  the Group in 2002 in a very competit ive environment. 

The improved performance by the ZONE business was the key dr iver fo r  the Group’s be t te r  
operating results for  2002. Revenue f rom the Z O N E  business increased by 33.2% t o  HK$298.5 
mil l ion compared w i th  HK$224.2 mil l ion fo r  the previous year. The increase in  turnover, higher 
gross margins and lower  operat ing costs wi th in  the Group, reduced the EBITDA loss f rom 
H K $ 2  18. I mil l ion in 200 I t o  H K $ l 0 9 .  I mill ion in  2002. 

ZONE US’S operating results continue t o  improve. The revenue grew by 56.3%, increasing f rom 
H K $ I  13.6 million in 2001 t o  HK$177.5 million, while operating losses were reduced from HK$96.9 
mi l l ion in 200 I t o  H K $ 8  I .7 mil l ion in  2002. The Group remains opt imis t ic  about  del iver ing 
sustainable revenue growth and improvement in the operating performance of  ZONE US in the 
year 2003. 

The management teams for ZONE US and ZONE Asia wil l  focus on operating and growing the 
businesses t o  support  the Group’s goal o f  achieving positive EBITDA result in 2003. Cont inuing 
t o  reduce operating costs, and maintaining diligent financial cont ro l  t o  improve i t s  operational 
productivity, wi l l  remain impor tant  priori t ies fo r  each of these business units. 

The Company wi l l  cont inue t o  implement key co rpo ra te  init iat ives t o  enhance c o r p o r a t e  
governance w i th  the objective of increasing shareholders’ value and improving transparency. The 
remuneration, share opt ion and executive management committees, established by the Board t o  
oversee specific aspects of  the Company’s affairs, have contr ibuted towards achieving the Group’s 
strategic, corporate and business goals. 

The Group remains positive about the prospect fo r  growth and improvements in the operating 
results in 2003,The Group’s pr imary goal fo r  2003 would be t o  achieve sustainable increase in 
the Group’s turnover, improve operat ional  efficiency and t o  attain a positive EBITDA for the 
Group. 

O n  behalf of the boa.rd of directors,  I wish to  thank our  business associates, shareholders and 
customers for their suppor t  and also acknowledge o u r  appreciation f o r  the contr ibut ion and 
dedication of the Group’s employees in a competit ive business environment. 

Richard John Siemens 
Ch a i m  an 
Hong Kong, I O  Apri l  2003 



e-KONG Group Limited 
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N 	 During the year under review. the Group continued its strategic focus on building and growingo 

N 
o the ZONE telecommunications business. Revenue from the ZONE business increased by 33.2% 
..., 
L­	 to HK$298.5 million compared with HK$224.2 million for the previous year. Through sustainable 
a 
CL growth of the ZONE business in the United States. Hong Kong and Singapore. combined with 
(])

a::: 	 prudent financial control and operational efficiencies. the Group was able to achieve further 

improvement in its operating results. 

The ZONE operation in the United States recorded a revenue growth of 56.3%. increasing from 

HK$I 13.6 million in 200 I to HK$I77 .5 million. The operating loss for ZONE US reduced by 

15.7% fl-om HK$96.9 million for the previous year to HK$81.7 million. Its ZoneLD service 

targeted at residential customers and small businesses continued to increase its subscriber base 

mainly as a result of customers acquired through its on-line partners. Continued growth is 

expected to be derived mainly from the ZoneCMS service which is targeted at the enterprise 

and corporate customers. 

In 2002. ZONE Hong Kong and ZONE Singapore collectively accounted for 38.2% of the Group's 

revenue and achieved positive EBITDA (Earnings before Interest. Taxation. Depreciation and 

Amortisation) . Turnover for ZONE Hong Kong and ZONE Singapore. collectively. increased by 

9.5% compared with the previous year from HK$II 0.6 million to HK$121.1 million. 

Improvements in the operating result for ZONE Hong Kong was achieved mainly through increase 

in operating gross margins. reduction in customer churn and further operational efficiency gains. 

Looking ahead. ZONE Hong Kong will continue to improve its business performance through 

targeted sales and marketing initiatives. regular customer retention programs and the introduction 

of value-added services including fax to e-mail. international call forwarding. short messaging 

services (SMS) and calling card products aimed at niche markets. 

ZONE Singapore achieved sustained growth in its customer base and revenue despite intense 

competition . ZONE Singapore was successful in securing arrangements with key carrier partners 

to provide high quality service at competitive price. This has resulted in an increase in the gross 

margin and has also enabled ZONE Singapore to competitively price its services to the business 

segment of the market. 

Following the divestment of the Group's interest in the event management-related business in 

January 2003. the revenue contribution from the non-telecom businesses will continue to be less 

significant in the coming year. In 2002. the revenue derived from the non-telecom subsidiaries 

was HK$18.2 million. representing 5.8% of the Group's total revenue. 
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NDespite extremely competitive and difficult economic market conditions the Group has managed o 
oto ,-ecord continuous revenue growth in and steady improvements to its operating results in N 
I->2002, The Group's key business focus in 2003 would be to continue its revenue growth while L 
o

keeping tight financial and operational discipline with the objective of achieving positive EBITDA, 0.. 
OJ 

The Group will focus on increasing its sales and marketing efforts, improving customer retention 0::: 

and introducing additional innovative value-added services in order to improve ZONE's operating ~ 
::J 
Cresults, c 
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e-KONG Group Limited 
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The Group's turnover for the year increased by 20% to HK$316.7 million compared with HK$263.9 

million in 200 I . The ZONE telecommunications business continues to be the main revenue 

growth driver of the Group. 

The gross profit increased by 80% from HK$49.9 million in 200 I to HK$89.8 million . The gross 

profit as a percentage of turnover increased from 18.9% for 2001 to 28 .3% for 2002 mainly due 

to the ZONE business being able to negotiate better pricing with the telecommunications 

carriers. 

With the increase in turnover, higher gross margins and lower operating costs within the Group, 

EBITDA loss improved from HK$218. 1 million for 200 I to HK$I 09.1 million for 2002. 

The operating loss for the year was HK$156 million compared with HK$252.8 million for the 

previous year. Consolidated net loss attributable to shareholders declined to HK$186.3 million 

from HK$681 .3 million. Non-recurring losses for the year, including the provision for diminution 

in value of investment securities of HK$28 million. were HK$31.1 million compared with HK$427.3 

million in 200 I. 

A. Al , o JRCc,:,. LL tJII..iI .- . 1"[ GEARING RATIO 

The Company completed a rights issue of 235,447.100 rights shares of HK$O.O I each at a price 

of HK$0.12 per rights share in December 2002 immediately after the Capital Reorganisation as 

mentioned below and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$25 million. The net proceeds are 

being used as general working capital for the Group's existing telecommunication business. 

The Group relied on its internal resources, including the net proceeds from the rights issue, to 

fund its operations during the year. 

Bank balances and cash (excluding pledged deposits) were HK$31.1 million as at 31 December 

2002 (2001: HK$III.3 million). The Group had pledged deposits amounting to HK$7.7 million as 

~t 3 I December 2002 (200 I: HK$7.1 million). The Group had no bank borrowings during the 

year. 

As at 31 December 2002, the Group's liabilities under equipment lease financing amounted to 

HK$7.4 million (200 I: HK$16.3 million). 
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As at 31 December 2002, the net assets of the Group amounted to HK$I96,4 million (2001: 

HK$357.3 million). The Group's gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total borrowings as a 

percentage of net assets, was 3 .8% (200 I: 4.6%). 

f I L_ 

Since most of the Group 's assets and liabilities. revenue and payments are denominated in Hong 

Kong dollars and United States dollars. the Group considers that there is no significant exposure 

to foreign exchange fluctuations so long as the Hong Kong-United States dollar exchange rate 

remains pegged. 
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.l • II ITIES AND COMM!TMENTS 

As at 31 December 2002. there were no material contingent liabilities and commitments. 

" NI ATI( 

In November 2002. the Company completed a capital reorganisation exercise implemented by 

means of capital reduction. share consolidation. share premium cancellation and share subdivision . 

As a result. immediately prior to the rights issue exercise in December 2002. the issued share 

capital of the Company was divided into 235.447.100 shares of HK$O.OI each from 4,708,942,008 

shares of HK$0.02 each and a total amount of HK$I.288,062,660 arising from the capital reduction 

and the share premium cancellation were applied towards the elimination of the Company's 

accumulated losses and the balance thereof credited to the contributed surplus account of the 

Company. In addition, each board lot of shares in the Company was changed from 4,000 shares of 

HK$0 .02 each to 10,000 shares of HK$O.O I each after the capital reorganisation. 

uNERATJON r O · lev 

As at 3 I December 2002, the Group had 214 employees (200 I: 226 employees) in 

and oversea s. 

Hong Kong 

The Group's remuneration policies are in line with local market practices where the Group 

ope rat es and are formulated on the basis of the performance and experience of individual 

employee. In addition to salary payment, the Group also offers to its employees other fringe 

benefits including provident fund and medical benefits. 
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N 
o The board of directors (the "Board") of the Company is pleased co present its report and the 
o 
N audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 

t "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2002.o 
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C The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those of its principal subsidiaries<{ 

are set out in note 10 to the financial statements. 

Ii , T"tATi 

An analysis of the Group 's turnover and results by principal business activities and geographical 

area of operations for the year ended 31 December 2002 is set out in note 25 to the financial 

statements. 

'ID' ID 

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2002 are set out in the consolidated 

income statement on page 24 . 

The Board of the Company did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 

31 D ec ember 2002 (200 I : Nil) . 

l iUMi"1AR. 

A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out 

on pages 65 and 66. 

U r 

In the year under review, the aggregate turnover attributable co the five largest customers of th e 

Group accounted for' approximately 5% of the Group's total turnover for the year, and sales to 

the largest customer included therein amounted co approximately 3%. 

The aggregate purchases attributable co the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 

48% of the Group's total purchases for the year, and purchases from the largest supplier included 

therein amounted to apprOXimately 19%. 

At any time during the year, neither the directors of the Company, their associates, nor those 

shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company's 

share capital, had any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers . 
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Details of movemenrs in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and of the Group t 
o 
Q..during the year are set out in note 9 to the financial statemenrs . ClJ 

0::: 
~ 

t [t. ::J 
c: 
c: « 

Details of movemenrs in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during the year are set 


our in note 20 to the financial statements. 


The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were: 


Mr. Richard John Siemens (Chairman) 


Mr. Kuldeep Saran 


Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa 


Mr. Lim Shyang Guey 


Mr. William Bruce Hicks 


Mr. Shane Frederick Weir"' 


Mr. Matthew Brian Rosenberg* 


Independent Non-executive OirecLOrs 

In accordance with the bye-law 87 of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa and Mr. 

Lim Shyang Guey shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being 

eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 
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t As at 3 I December 2002, the directors and their respective associates had the following interests 
o 
Q.. in the issued share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of 
(J) 

the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the "SDI Ordinance"» as notified to thecY 

ro Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") pursuant to 

C 
:J 

Section 28 of the SDI Ordinance or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of 
C Listed Companies (the "Model Code") or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company« 

pursuant to Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance. 

Name of director 

Mr. Richard John Siemens 

Mr. William Bruce Hicks 

Mr. Kuldeep Saran 

Mr. Shane Frederick Weir 

Notes: 

Number of ordinary shares of HK$O.O I each held 
Personal Corporate Total 
interests interests interests 

100,63 1,627 100,63 I,627 

(nores 	 f and 2) 

2.319.914 67,962,428 70.282,342 
(nore /) (no res f and 3) 

341.200 	 67,632,428 67.973,628 

(note /) (notes f and 4) 

10,000 10,000 

(note f) 

I . 	 The number of shares was adjusted as a r'esult of capital reorganisation and rights issue in November 
and December 2002, as detailed in note 18 to the financial statements, respectively. 

2. 	 2,400,000 shares are beneficially owned by Siemens Enter'prises Limited, a company controlled by 
Mr. Richard John Siemens . 98,231,627 shares are beneficially owned by Goldstone Trading Limited, a 
company controlled by Mr. Siemens. 

3. 	 67,962,428 shares are beneficially owned by Great Wall Holdings Limited, a company controlled by 
Mr. William Br'uce Hicks. 

4. 	 67,632,428 shares are beneficially owned by Future (Holdings) Limited, a company controlled by Mr. 
Kuldeep Saran. 

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are separately disclosed 

under the heading of "Arrangement to enable directors to acquire shares or debentures" below. 

Save as disclosed above. none of the directors, the chief executive and/or any of their associates 

had any interests in the shares or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated 

corporations (as defined in the SDI Ordinance) as at 31 December 2002 pursuant to the SDI 

Ordinance and the Model Code. 
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In accordanc e with the Old Share Option Scheme which particulars are further described under c... 
<lJ

ex:the heading of "Share Option Schemes" below, other than 7,7S I ,850 share options granted to 
~ 

d irectors which were cancelled, there were no share options granted, exercis e d, cancelled and ::l 
C 

lapsed during the year. c 
<t: 

Details of move ments in share options granted to directors and eligible employe es under the 

Old Share Option Scheme during the year and their share options remaining outstanding as at 3 I 

December 2002 were as follows : 

Number of share options 

Adiu"ed As at Gra nted Exercised Cancelled! A, at 1 1 

Date of Exercisable exercise I January during during lapsed during December 

grant period price 2002 Adiu'ted the year the year the year 2002 

(nOle (J (nole lJ 

HK$ 

Director 

Mr. RIchard john 2401.2000 24 .01.l000­

Sie me ns 24 .10.2009 2.3 0 2a.700.ooo 2.a70.000 (2. a70.000) 

Mr. Derrick 21. 10. 1999 21 .10.2000­

Fr ;J nCls BulJWCI 21 .10.2009 140 23 .96 1.23 5 2.396.124 (2.396.12 4) 

16.11. 1999 16." .2000­

24. 10.2009 1.60 4)50.000 475.000 (471.000) 

23. 12.1999 23 .12. 2000­

24. 10 20 09 2.00 250. 000 25 .000 (2 5.000) 

03 01.2 000 03.01.200 1­

24. 10.2009 no 25.000 2.5 00 (2.500) 

25 10.2000 25.1 0.200 1­

H 10.2009 1.l 0 9.532.274 953.226 (953.226) 

3a.518.509 3.a51.850 (l.85 1.850) 

Mr. I 1' 1 ShyJ.ng 2510.1999 25. 10 .2000­

Guey 24 .10.2009 1.40 1.500. 000 150.000 (450.000) 

24 .0 11 000 21. 0l.2000­

H 10.2009 2.30 1.500.000 15 0.000 (150.000) 

25. 01.2000 01.03.2000­

24 .10.2009 230 50 0.000 50.000 (50.000 ) 

03.03.2000 03 .01 .2000­

H10.200 9 7. 60 3.800.000 380.000 (3aO.000) 

10.300.000 1.0)0.000 ( 1.030.000) 

77.518.509 7.751.850 (7,75 I ,a50) 

(nole J) 
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D:tte of 

grant 

i:.. i 

Exercisable 

peri od 

A ' l 

Adjusted 

exercise 

price 

(nace I) 

HKS 

•.11 I' 

As at 

I January 

2002 

Of! . 

Adjusted 

(note 2) 

0 A '- OUIRE 51 ARES OR 

Number of share optiom 

Granted Exercised Cancelledl As at 31 
during during lapsed during December 

the year the year the year 2002 

Ernployees 

2510. 1999 25 10.2000­

24 . 10.2009 1.40 Il.650,OOO l,l65,Ooo 1.365,000 

16.11.1999 16.11.2000­

24 .10.2009 1.60 75.000 7.500 7.500 

23 .12 .1999 23 .12 .2000­

H 10.2009 2.00 3)00.000 1I0.oo0 )70.000 

0101.2000 Ol .01 .2001­

24.10.2009 2.30 3,000.000 300,000 300.000 

24.01.2000 21 .01.l000­

24.10.2009 2.30 6.000.000 600,000 600,000 

2501.2000 010l.2000­

24.10.2009 2.30 2.000.000 200,000 200,000 

010l.l000 0104.2000­

24 .10.2009 7.60 15.200.000 1.5 20,000 1,520,000 

O) .onooo 010) .2001­

24 .10.2009 7.60 3,150,000 ) I 5.000 315 .000 

2B .04.2000 2B.04.2001­

24. 10.2009 3.30 4.915.000 491 ,500 491,500 

09 .08.2000 09.08.2001 ­

24. 10.2009 2.30 550.000 55.000 55 ,000 

25 10 .2000 25 .10.2001­

24 .10.2009 1.20 400.000 40,000 40.000 

16.05.2001 16.05.200 1-

01 .04 .200) 0.80 200,000 20,000 20,000 

52,B40,OOO 5,2B4.000 5,284,000 

TOTAL 130.358,509 I),035,B50 (7,751 .850) 5,284 ,000 
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Notes.· 	 0.. 
Q) 

cr:: 
I . 	 The exel"cis e p r ice per share option was adjusted by multiplying by 20 and then being divided by 2 ro 

as a result of capital reorganisation and rights issue in November and December 2002 , as detailed in ::J 
C 
Cnote 18 to the financial statemems, respectively. « 

2. 	 The number of share options was adjusted by be ing divided by 20 with any fraction rounded down 

to the nearest integer and then multiplying by 2 as a result of capital reorganisation and rights issue 

in November and December 2002, as detailed in note 18 to the financial statements, respectively. 

3. 	 Deed of Cancellation was emered into between the Company and each of Mr. Richard John Siemens, 

Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa and Mr. Lim Shyang Guey on 31 December 2002, pursuant to which the 

said directors volu n tarily cancelled their outstanding share options of 7.751.850 in total on 31 

Decem ber 2002. 

As at 3 I December 2002, no share options were granted by the Company under the New Share 

Option Scheme of the Company since its adoption on 28 June 2002. The particulars of the 

relevant schemes are further described under the heading of "Share Option Schemes" below. 

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a 

party to any arrangement to enable any director or the chief executive of the Company to 

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any 

other body corporate, and neither the directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their 

spouses or children under the age of 18 had any interest in, or had been granted, any right to 

subscribe for the shares in or debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within 

the meaning of the SDI Ordinance), or had exercised any such right during the year. 

(" V . "r.- C . NTRAC" 

The independent non-executive directors of the Company entered into service contracts with 

the Company for an initial one year fixed period ended on 31 December 2002 and thereafter 

continued until terminated by giving to the other party at least one calender month 's notice in 

writing thereof. 

As at 31 December 2002, none of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 

annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not 

d e terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than 

statutory com pensation). 
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L No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a parry and in o 
Q... 
(!) which a director of the Company had a material interesc. whether directly or indirectly, subsisted 

a::. at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 
ro 
:J 

C 

C t ,I A EHOLDE 'S« 

As at 3 I December 2002, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company 

under section 16( I) of the SDI Ordinance showed that, other than the interests disclosed under 

the heading of "Directors' interests in securities" above, the following shareholders had an 

interest of 10% or more of the Company's issued share capital : 

Name of 

shareholder 

Goldstone Trading Limited 

Great Wall Holdings Limited 

Future (Holdings) Limited 

Number of 

shares held 

98,231,627* 

67,962,428* 

67,632,428* 

Percentage of 

total issued 

share capital 

20.9% 

14.4% 

14.4% 

These inte,·ests ,·epresent the same incerests as corpo,-ate interests of Mr. Richard John Siemens (being 

held through Goldstone Trading Limited), Mr. Kuldeep Saran and Mr.William Bruce Hicks as di sc losed in 

the notes to the description under the heading of "Directors' interests in securities" above . 

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interests representing 

10% or more of the Company's issued share capital as at 31 December 2002 . 

A L API fA 

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year and the purpose of the 

shares issued al-e set out in note 18 co the financi al statements . 
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cC.Pursuant to the employee share option scheme of the Company (the "Old Share Option 
ro 

Scheme" ) adopted in a special general meeting held on 25 October 1999, the directors of :J 
C 

the Company might, at their discretion, invite eligible employees of the Group, including C « 
executive directors of the Company, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the 


Company under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, The Old Share Option Scheme 


was subsequently terminated by the Company in a special general meeting held on 28 June 


2002 but the share options granted but not yet exercised thereunder would however 


remain effective and are bound by terms therein, 


On 28 June 2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the "New Share 


Option Scheme") to comply with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. 


Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion grant share options 


to (i) any director, employee, consultant, customer, supplier, business introduction agent, or 


legal, financial or marketing adviser of or contractor to any company in the Group or any 


affiliate; and/or (ii) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any 


of the foregoing, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, No share options have 


ever been granted by the Company under the New Share Option Scheme since adoption . 


Pursuant to the respective employee share option schemes (the "Old Subsidiary Schemes") 


adopted by certain subsidiaries of the Company under the terms and conditions of the 


rules and procedures for share option schemes for subsidiaries of the Company (the "Old 


Scheme Rules and Procedures") as adopted and approved by the Company in a special 


general meeting held on 25 April 200 I, certain directors and the chief executive of the 


Company, who are also directors of those subsidiaries, and employees of those subsidiaries 


were eligible to subscribe for shares in the respective subsidiaries under the terms and 


conditions stipulated therein. The Old Subsidiary Schemes were subsequently terminated 


by the subsidiaries upon the cancellation of the Old Scheme Rules and Procedures in a 


special general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2002, No share options have ever 


been granted by the subsidiaries under their respective Old Subsidiary Schemes since 


adoption. 
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On 28 June 2002. the Company adopted new scheme rules and procedures for share 
ro 
:::J option schemes for its subsidiaries (the "New Scheme Rules and Procedures") to comply
C 
C with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules . The subsidiaries may adopt« 

their respective share options schemes in terms and conditions of the New Scheme Rules 

and Procedures, pursuant to which the board of directors of each of the relevant subsidiaries 

may at its discretion grant their respective share options to (i) any director, employee, 

consultant, customer, supplier, business introduction agent, or legal, financial or marketing 

adviser of or contractor to the subsidiaries and their subsidiaries, any of their holding 

companies or any affiliate; and/or (ii) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of 

which include any of the foregoing. No subsidiaries have ever adopted their respective 

share option schemes pursuant to the terms and conditions of the New Scheme Rules and 

Procedures since adoption. 

Summary of principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme and New Scheme Rules and 

Procedures are as follows: 

The scheme is designed to enable the board to grant share options to eligible participants 

as (i) incentives and/or rewards in recognition or acknowledgement of the contributions 

that eligible participants have made and will make to the group: and (ii) motivation to high 

calibre employees for high levels of performance in order to enhance long-term shareholder 

value . 

IlIUIT' 'U,l . tH 

The total number of shares in respect of which share options may be granted (together 

w ith share options exercised and then outstanding) under the scheme and to be granted 

under any other share option schemes. shall not in aggregate exceed such number of 

shares representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the scheme 

unless shareholders' approval has been obtained pursuant to the scheme. (As at the date 

of the annual report, the total number of shares available for issue under the New Share 

Option Scheme is 8,582.762, representing 1.8% of the issued share capital of the Company 

as of that date.) 
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0:::The maximum number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise 
~ 

of the share options granted under the scheme and any other share option schemes ::J 
C 

(including both exercised and outstanding share options) to each eligible participant shall C « 
not exceed I% of the shares in issue for the time being in any 12 month period up to and 

including the date of grant. 

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the scheme at any time 

during a period to be determined and notified by the directors to each grantee, subject to 

a maximum period of 10 years from the date of grant. 

A share option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have taken 

effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the grant of a share 

option duly signed by the grantee (for the New Share Option Scheme) or the acceptance 

of the offer of the grant of a share option duly acknowledged by the grantee in such form 

as the board may from time to time determine (for the New Scheme Rules and Procedures) 

together with a remittance in favour of the company of HK$I.OO (or its US$ equivalent) in 

consideration of the grant thereof is received by the company on a business day not later 

than 28 days from the offer date. 

I lin the 

New Share Option Scheme 

Subject to the terms of the scheme and the provisions of the Listing Rules, the subscription 

price in respect of any share option shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of 

the shues <IS stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of grant; 

and (ii) the average clOSing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily 

quotations sheets over the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and 

(iii) the nominal value of a share. 



e-KONG Group Limited 

e) rt 'I 

o 
N Tin.: C IE-M E r ~' )' . 

o 
N 
...., 
L­
a 
Q... 

Cl) 


a:: New Scheme Rules and Procedures 

Subject to the terms of the scheme and the provisions of the Listing Rules, the subscription 

price in respect of any share option shall not be less than the par value of a share 

provided that if the share option is intended to qualify as an incentive stock option under 

the tax laws of the United States. the subscription price thereof shall not be less than the 

fair market value of a share as detailed therein. 

III " t ".' clli'lll 

The scheme will be valid and effective, at the discretion of the board of directors, subject 

to a maximum period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the scheme. 

Jf PRINC I PAL SUHSIDlJ' R'~~ 

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 10 to the 

financial statements . 

Ulr T 

As at 31 December 2002, the Group has managed to maintain stable liquidity with cash and cash 

equivalents of appl"Oximately HK$38,795 ,000 (200 I: HK$I 18,456,000). 

L ANS AN[ OVEPDRAF S 

The Group has no bank loans and overdrafts as at 31 December 2002. There was no interest 

capitalised by the Group during the year. 

SE. S IE: OH ECEMPTIOt Or- rHE CO iP NY'- LiSTED 

IF 

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed 

any of the Company's listed securities. 
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Since December 2000, the Group, other than overseas subsidiaries , has operated a Mandatory 1: 
o 
0..Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme") under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory OJ 

0::::Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees. The assets of the I"IPF Scheme 

are held separately from those of the Group and are under the control of independent trustees. 

Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and each of the qualifying employees are required to 

make monthly contributions at 5% of the qualifying employee's monthly income, up to a maximum 

of HK$I,OOO each per month . The employees may also choose to make voluntary matching 

contribution above the said maximum level. The contributions from the MPF Scheme charged to 

the income statement represent contributions payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group, other 

than overseas subsidiaries, to funds at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme . 

The overseas subsidiaries have also operated their pension schemes or similar arrangement for 

their employees in accordance with the statutory limits prescribed by the relevant legal 

req u i rement s. 

At the balance sheet date , the Group had no significant forfeited contributions which arose upon 

employees leaving the MPF Scheme and which are available to reduce the contributions payable 

by the Group in the future years . 

IRECTOR.::) 

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages 21 and 22 under Directors' 

Profile. 

POLICIES f!.. NO EMPI nYFE REL\TIONS 

As at 3 I December 2.002, the Group employed 214 full-time employees .The Group has maintained 

good relationships with its employees . 

T fi;VlN 

In Ja nuary 2003, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an indep e ndent 

third party to dispos e of two of the Company's subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$I.5 million . 

Those subsidiaries held substantially all ass e ts and liabilities acqUired, created and assumed by the 

event management-related bus iness undertaken by the Group. 

l 
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t None of th e direc(Ors of the Company is aware of any information that would reasonablyo 
0... ind icate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout the year ended 3 I Dece mber 2002, in<lJ 

c::r::: compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 (0 the Rules Governing the 
ro 
::J Listing of Securities on the S(Ock Exchange . 
C 

C 
« 

t 1,.., I r TEL: 

The audit committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices 

adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters 

including the review of the draft audited financial statements fo r the year ended 31 December 

2002. 

There is no provisio n fo r pre -emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws or the laws of 

Bermuda although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda. 

A resolution will be submitted (0 the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (0 re­

appoint the audi(Ors. Messrs. Moores Rowland . Chartered Accountants, Certi(ted Public Accountants. 

On behalf of the Board 

Richard John Siemens 

Chairman 

Hong Ko ng. 10 April 2003 
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Richard John Siemens, 58, Chairman , joined the Group in January 2000 . Mr. Siemens is a key N 
o 
o

figure in the telecommunications industry, and is the Chairman and a founding member of N ..., 
Di s tacom Communications Limited . He is also a founding member, Co-Chairman and Executive L 

o 
Director o f SUNDAY Communications Limited . Bo rn and raised in Canada, Mr. Siemens was 0.­

Cl.I 
eX:trained as a Chartered Accountant and came to Hong Kong in 1979 . ln 1984, he formed Hutchison 
ro 

Tel e phone Company Limited in partners hip with Hutchison Whampoa and Motorola . While being ::l 
c 

Group Managing Director of Hutchi son Telecommunications Limited, Mr. Siemens was instrumenta l c « 
in the establishing other leading companies including AsiaSat, STAR TV and Metro Radio. He also 

managed Hutch ison 's move into the European wireless business with "Orange". 

Kuldeep Saran , 51 , Vice Chairman , joined the Group in December 200 I. Mr. Saran has wide 

experience of all aspects of telecommunications, and is a leading architect of the Company's 

strategic development. He is also an Executive Director of Distacom Communications Limited 

and SUNDAY Communications Limited . Mr. Saran joined Distacom from Deutsche Bank where he 

was the head of the Asi a Pacific telecoms group. Prior to that Mr. Saran was director of planning 

at Hutchi son Telecommunications respons ible for the development and execution of new businesses 

in Europe and Asia . Before moving to Hong Kong in 1992, Mr. Saran was the country head of 

Motorola for India. He holds a Bachelors degree in Engineering and an M.B.A. 

Derrick Francis Bulawa, 39 , joined the Group as Chief Executive Officer in September 1999 

and was appointed in October 1999 as Executive Director. Mr. Bulawa , founder of the Zone 

business and Pres ident of ZONE Telecom Inc .. USA, is currently based in the United States, 

where he is spearheading the Company's ex pansion into the market. Mr. Bulawa was among the 

key founders of STAR TV and also served as Chief Operating Officer for the US based UNIFI 

Communications. Hi s experience includes over 18 years in the global telecommunications , satellite 

communications, and data communications business sector. Mr. Bulawa received his Bachelor of 

Science degree in Electron ic Engineering Technology from the DeVry Institute of Technology in 

the United States. 

Lim Shyang Guey, 43, was appointed as Executive Director in October 1999 . Mr. Lim is 

responsibl e for executing th e Group's overall corpol'ate strategy. Prior to coming to Hong Kong, 

Mr. Lim had w orked in New Zeal a nd , Russia, Malaysia and Singapore mainly in the 

telecommunications and technology-related indus tries . Mr. Lim holds a Bachelor of Engineering 

d egree and a Ma s ter of Engineering degree, both from the Unive rsity of Auckland in New 

Zealand . 
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N William Bruce Hicks, 41, was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company in Decembero o 
N 200 I . He is the Group Managing Director of SUNDAY Communications limited. a mobile telephone 
'-' 
L company based in Hong Kong. Mr Hicks is also an Executive Director of Distacom Communications o 
0... 
(l) Limited. a major shareholder of SUNDAY. Prior to joining Distacom as partner in 1994. Mr. Hicks 

a::: was at Hutchison Telecom in Hong Kong and Motorola Inc. in the United States. He received his 
~ 
~ B.S.E.E. degree from Michigan Technological University in 1983 and an M.B.A. from the International 
C 
c Management Institute in Geneva, Switzerland in 1987. Mr. Hicks, a Canadian citizen. is married« 

with two children . 

Shane Frederick Weir. 48. was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the 

Company in August 200 I. Mr. Weir is a qualified solicitor and consultant with Weir & Associates. 

Solicitors & Notaries. Born and educated in Canada. Mr. Weir concentrates on corporate 

commercial tax and securities matters. He has practiced in Hong Kong since 1985 and for several 

years was employed in Hong Kong as an associate with Phillips & Vineberg, one of the oldest and 

most respected commercial law firms in North America. Mr.Weir qualified as a solicitor, barrister, 

and notary public in Canada and a solicitor in the United Kingdom as well as in Hong Kong. 

Matthew Brian Rosenberg. 3 I . was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the 

Company in August 200 I. Mr. Rosenberg is currently the Vice-President of International Sales and 

Operations for Forgent Networks. His international management experience spans 10 years 

through Asia. Australia. and Europe . He has successfully developed revenue-generating business 

models in those regions. primarily in the Telecoms and leading-edge technology sectors. He holds 

a Bachelor of Arts in Japanese and Spanish from the University of Amherst. Massachusetts . 
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Q)To the members of 0:::: 

e-Kong Group Limited ~ 
::J(incorporated in Bermudo with limited liobility) 	 C 
C «

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 64 which have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. 

or '"IB I l/TlfS OF- -I f C I ORS AND AUDITORS 

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a 
true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental 

that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. 

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit. on those statements 

and to report our opinion to you. 

a .- It,. N 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the 

Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination. on a test basis, of evidence 

relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment 

of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the 

financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's 
and the Group's circumstances , consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which 
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable 

assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming 
our opinion w e also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the 

financial statements .We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion . 

In our opinion th e financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2002 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group 
for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure 

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

Moores Rowland 
Chortered Accountants 
Certified Public Accountonts 

Hong Kong. 10 April 2003 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Consolidated Income Statement 
For (lie ye ar ended] 1 Dece m ber 2002 

N 
0 
0 
N 
~ 
L. 
0 
Cl.. 
Cl) 

oc 
Turnover 

Note 

3 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

316,746 

2001 

HK$ 'OOO 

263,896 

ro 
:J 
c 
c 

<{ 

Cost of sales (226,986 ) (214.038) 

0 G ross profit 89,760 49 .858 
0 

0 

0 

Other revenue 

Other income 

3 313 

3,039 

4.216 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Di stribution co sts 

Business promotion and marketing ex penses 

(25,428) 

(6,853) 

(22.370) 

(31,166) 

0 Operating and administrative expens es (139,661) (176.615) 
0 

0 
Other operating expenses (77,176) (76.688) 

0 

0 Loss from operations (156,006) (252,765) 

Fin anc e cost S 4 (1,080) ( 1.216) 

Intangibl e assets and goodwill wriuen off 4 (114,795) 

Provision for diminution in val ue of 

investme nt securities (27,982) (72.021 ) 

Un realised holding los s on other investments (3,117) (240.476) 

Sha re o f results of associates 1,911 (752) 

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation 4 (186,274) . (682 .025) 

Ta xation 6 

Loss from ordinary activities after taxation (186,274) (682.025) 


Mi no rity int e rests 


Net loss attributable to shareholders 7 & 20 ( 186,274) (681.315) 


Loss per share 8 


- Basic (HK$0.74) (HK$6.75) 


- Diluted NIA N/A 

710 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Consolidated Balance Sheet 
As at 3 I December 2002 

Note 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

HK$ 'OOO 

N 
0 
0 
N 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

t 
0 
0­
W 

c:r: 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 

Interests in associates 
9 
If 

190,730 215,428 
4,838 

~ 
::l 
c 
c « 

Investme nt securities 12 3,452 31,434 0 

0 

194,182 251,700 
0 

0 

Current assets 
0 

0 

Other investments I] 91 47,737 0 

Trade and other r eceivables 

Pledged deposits 

Bank balances and cash 

14 

15 

51,908 
7,740 

31,055 

54,230 
7, I 07 

111,349 

0 

0 

0 

0 

90,794 220,423 
0 

0 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payabl es 16 81,210 98,556 
Current portion of obligations under finance leases 17 6,566 11,372 

87,776 109,928 

Net current assets 3,018 110,495 

Total assets less current liabilities 197,200 362, 195 

Long-term liabilities 

Obligations under finance leases 17 830 4,885 

NET ASSETS 196,370 357,310 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Issued capital 18 4,709 103,665 
Reserves 20 191,661 253,645 

196,370 357,310 

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 April 200] 

Richard John Siemens Kuldeep Saran 
Director Director 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Balance Sheet 
As at 31 December 2002 

N 
0 
0 
N 
l-J 
L­
0 
0... 
Q) 

cY 
-;;j 
:J 
c 
c « 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2002 2001 

Note HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 9 539 1,115 

Interests in subsidiaries 10 184,564 515,300 

Interests in associates 1/ 6,806 

185, I03 523,221 
0 

0 
Current assets

0 

0 Trade and other receivables 14 2,168 843 
0 Pledged deposits 15 3,045 3,007 
0 

0 Bank balances and cash 16,336 90.577 

0 

21,549 94,427 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 16 10,094 7,337 

Net current assets 11,455 87,090 

NET ASSETS 196,558 610.311 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Iss ued capital 18 4,709 103,665 

Reserves 20 191,849 506,646 

196,558 610.311 

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 April 2003 

Richard John Siemens Kuldeep Saran 

Director Director 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
For (he year ended 3 J December 2002 

Share Share Exchange 

Capit,1 

redemption Goodwill on Contributed Accumulated 

C"'l 
0 
0 
C"'l 

capital 

HKS'OOO 

premium 

HKS'OOO 

reserve 

HKS'OOO 

reserve 

HKS'OOO 

consolidation 

HKS'OOO 

,u'plus 

HK S'OOO 

1055 .. 

HK I'OOO 

Total 

HK$'OOO 

t 
0 
0­
(1) 

ex::: 
A,,, I Jan uary 2001 

Shares issued at premiunl 

Sha res i~sue expense \ 

40.879 

62.786 

1.12/.734 

70.638 

(6. 13 I) 

(J88) (69.JJS) (2 52.1 80) 841 ,6 16 

133,421 

(6.131) 

~ 
:J 
C 
C 

<t: 
Ex(hange differen ce on 0 

translation of fo reign 
0 

0 
sub sidiari es 381 381 0 

Goodwill on (onlolidation 0 

written off 69.33\ 69.335 0 

Net 1011 ",nbuuble to 
0 

0 
Ih"' holderl (68 1.3 15) (68 1.3 15) 0 

0 

AI at 3I De cember 200 1 10 3.66\ 1.187.241 (7) (9]].595) 357.3 I0 0 

0 

0 
Preference share5 conve rt ed 

to shares (9.680) (9.68 0) 

Shares illued upon preference 

~h;ucs conversion 194 9. 48 6 9,680 

Reduction of nomin al value 

of Ihares from 

HK$0.02 ea(h to 

HKSO.OOO\ ea(h (9 1.824) 91 .82 4 

Capital reorganisittion (1 .196,239) (91,824) 607 ,46 2 680,601 

Shues issu ed at premium 

on rights issue 1.3S4 2\.899 18.2S3 

Shares issue expenses (1.926) (1,926) 

Ex( h,ngc differenc e on 

translation of fore ign 

subsi di;tri es 

NN loss an ri butlble to 

'h arehold ers (186,274) (186,274) 

As at 3 I Decemb er 2002 4,709 21,461 607,462 (439,268) 196,170 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
Fo r (lie year ended J I December 2002 

N 
0 
0 
N Note 

2002 
HK$'OOO 

2001 
HK$'OOO 

1: 
0 
0... 
CI) 

cY: 
ro 
~ 
c 
c 

<t: 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash used in operations 
Interest received 
Interest on obligations under finance leases 

Net cash used in operating activities 

21 (101,945) 
313 

(1,080) 

(102,712) 

(191,292) 
4,216 

(1,216) 

( 188,292) 
0 

0 INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase of intangible assets 
Purchase of investment securities and 

other investments 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 
Proceeds from disposal of other investments 
Net (repayment from)/advances to associates 

(24,777) 

713 
30,664 

( 15) 

(134,564) 
(4,313) 

(131,294) 

1,181 
23,200 

7.195 
0 Purchase of a subs idiary (net of cash and 
0 cash equivalents acquired) (1,603) 

Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and 
cash eqUivalents disposed) 15,000 

Net cash generated from/(used in) 

investing activities 6,585 (225 ,198) 


FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Issue of shares 25,327 127,293 
Capital contributed by minority shareholders 591 
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (8,861 ) (8,926) 

Net cash generated from financing activities 16,466 118,958 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (79,661) (294,532) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at I January 118,456 412,988 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 3 I December 38,795 118,456 

Analysis of the balances of cash and 
cash equivalents 

Pledged deposits 7,7.40 7,107 
Bank balances and cash 31,055 I I 1,349 

38,795 I 18,456 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2002 

I. GENERAL 

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability 

and its ordinary shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 

"Stock Exchange"). 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

o 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Standard o 

Accounting Practice ("SSAP") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Society of o 
o 

Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure o 
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the principal o 

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below. o 
o 
o 

Basis of preparation 	 o 
o 
o 

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical o 
cost, modified by revaluation of certain investments in securities as explained in the 

accounting policies set out below. 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and 

its subsidiaries made up to 31 December 2002. 

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed of during the year are accounted for 

from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal respectively. 

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated 

on consolidation. 

Losses attributable to minority shareholders of partly owned subsidiaries are accounted 

for based on the respective equity owned by the minority shareholders. Thereafter, the 

Group assumes all further losses. 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 	 December 2002 

N 
o 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Collt'd) 
o 
N ...., 
L­	 Goodwill on consolidationo 
0.. 
(!) 

cr:::. Positive goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition 

over the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. 

Positive goodwill is amortised to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line 

o basis over its estimated useful life. Positive goodwill is carried as an asset in the consolidated 

o 	 balance sheet at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 
o 

o 

o 	 Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries and associates represents the 

o 	 excess of the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities 
o 	

acquired over the cost of the acquisition . To the extent that negative goodwill relates to an 
o 
o expectation of future losses and expenses that are identified in the plan of acquisition and 

o 	 can be measured reliably, it is recognised in the consolidated income statement when the 
o 	

future losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill up to the fair 
o 
o 	 values of the non-monetary assets acquired is recognised in the consolidated income 

statement over the weighted average useful life of depreciable non-monetary assets. Negative 

goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired is recognised 

immediately in the consolidated income statement. 

On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate during the year, any attributable amount of 

purchased goodwill not previously amortised through the consolidated income statement 

or which has previously been dealt with as a movement on Group reserves is included in 

the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. 

Subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is an enterprise, in which the Group or the Company, directly or indirectly, 

has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from 

its activities. Investments in subsidiaries in the Compa ny's balance sheet are stated at cost 

less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to 

its recoverable amount on an individual basis. 



e-KONG Group Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont 'd) N 
o o 
N 

Associates t 
o 
a.. 

An associate is an enterprise in which the Group has significant influence and which is 

neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture. The consolidated income statement includes the 

Cl.I 
ex:: 
-;;; 
:::J 
C 

Group's share of the results of the associates for the year, and the consolidated balance c 
<!: 

sheet includes the Group's share of net assets of the associates and also goodwill or o 
negative goodwill on acquisition net of accumulated amortisation. o 

o 
o 

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in an o 
associate reaches nil, unless the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations o 

in respect of the associate. o 
o 
o 

Property, plant and equipment o 
o 
o 

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cOSt less accumulated depreciation and o 
accumulated impairment loss. 

The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any 

directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for 

its intended use. Major costs incurred in restoring assets to their normal working conditions 

are charged to the income statement. Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over 

their expected useful life. 

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment 

is determined as the difference between the estimated net sales proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the assets and is recognised as an income or expense in the income statement. 



e-KONG Group Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 


For the year ended 31 December 2002 


N 
o 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Collr'd) 
o 
N 
..... 
L- Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)a 
CL 
(I) 

ex:: Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment 1055 of property, 

plant and equipment over their estimated useful life from the date on which they become 

fully operational and after taking into account of thei r estimated residual values, using the 

straight-line method at the following rates per annum : 


o 

o 

o 
Leasehold improvement Over the remaining lease term 

o 
o Machinery and equipment 20% - 33% 

o Office equipment. furniture and fittings 20% - 33% 

o 

o 

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on theo 
o same bas is as owned assets or. where shorter. the terms of the leases . 
o 

o 

o Investments in securities 

Investment securities held on a continuing basis with an identified long-term purpose are 

stated at COSt and subject to impairment review at each reporting date to reflect any 

diminution in their value, which is expected to be other than temporary. The amount of 

provisions is recognised in the income statement in the period in which the decline 

occurs . 

Securities not classified as investment securities are classified as other investments. which 

are stated at fair value in the balance sheet. The unrealised holding gains and losses for 

other investments are included in the income statement. 

The gain or loss on disposal of investment secur ities and other investments is the difference 

between net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the securities and is accounted for 

in the period in which the disposal occurs. 

Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangibl e and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 

suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less 

than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable 

amOUnt. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately. 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conto) 	 N 
o 
o 
N 

Impairment (Cont'd) 	 e 
o 
0. 
Cl) 

ct:.Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is 


increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased 


carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 


had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an 
 o 
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately. 	 o 

o 
o 

Revenue recognition 	 o 
o 
oRevenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
o 

Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably. o 
o 
oInco me in respect of telecommunications services provided to customers is recognised 
o 

when the services are rendered . o 

Income in respect of corporate management services is recognised when the event 


management services are rendered . 


Other income includes internet security solution services income, sale of computer hardware 


and software , and insurance and management consulting income. Internet security solution 


services income, and insurance and management consulting income are recognised in the 


period when the services are rendered. Sale of computer hardware and software is 


nKognised when goods are delivered and title has passed. 


Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at 


the interest rate applicable. 


Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases wh e never the terms of the lease transfer substantially 

all the ri sk s and rewards of ownership to the lessee . All other leases are classified as 

operating leases. 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cant'd) 

Fo r [he year ended J I De cem ber 2002 

N 
o 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cant'd) 
o 
N 

t 
o leasing (Cant'd) 

c.. 

<!) 

ex:: 
Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at the lower of the fair value of 

~ 

C 
::J the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
C liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance« 
o costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair 
o value of the assets acquired , are charged to the income statement over the term of the 
o 

relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remainingo 
o balance of the obligations for each accounting period. 
o 
o 

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised as an expense on the straight-lineo 
o basis over the lease terms. 


o 

o 

Foreign currencies 
o 
o 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the approximate rates of exchange 

ruling at the tr'ansaction dates . Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated at the approximate rates of exchange 

ruling at that date. Translation differences are included in the income statement. 

On consolidation, the balance sheet of overseas subsidiaries denominated in currencies 

other than Hong Kong dollars is translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at 

the balance sheet date while the income statement is translated at average rates for the 

year. All exchange differences arising on consolidation are dealt with in the exchange 

reserve. 

Taxation 

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which 

are non -as sessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax 

purposes of certain items of income and expense in a different accounting period from 

that in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect of timing 

differences, computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the 

financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or asset will crystallise 

in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised unless its realisation is 

assured beyond reasonable doubt. 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the yeor ended] I December 2002 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) N 
o o 
N 

Retirement benefits schemes 

The obligations for contribu tions to retirement benefits schemes are recognised as expenses 

t 
o 
Cl. 
Q) 

oc 

in the income statement as incurred. The assets of the schemes are held separately from 

those of the Group in in dependent trustees . 

~ 
::l 
c: 
c: « 

3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 
o 
o 
o 

Turnover and revenue recognised by category are analysed as fo llows: 
o 
o 
o 

Group 

2002 2001 

o 
o 
o 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO o 
o 

Turnover 
o 
o 

Telecommunication services income 298,543 224.162 

Corporate management services income 11,420 34.912 

Others 6,783 4.822 

316,746 263.896 

Other revenue 

Interest income 313 4.2 16 

Revenue 317,059 268,112 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

N 4.0 LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 
0 
N ..., 
L- This is stated after charging:0 
Cl.. 
Q) 

tY. 

ro Group 

c 
:J 

2002 2001 
c 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO« 
0 

0 (a) Finance costs 

0 


0 

0 Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 1,080 1,216 
0 

0 
(b) Other items 

0 

0 

0 Amortisation of intangible assets included 
0 

in other operating expenses
0 

0 Auditors' remuneration: 

Current year 

Overprovision in prior years 

Bad debts written off 

Provision for doubtful debts 

Cost of inventories and services provided 

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment: 

Owned assets 

Assets held under finance leases 

Intangible assets and goodWill written off: 

Intangible assets 

Goodwill 

Loss on disposal of other investments 

Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 

Loss on disposal of properties held for sale 

Operating lease charges on premises 

Staff costs. including retirement benefits 

schemes contributions 

Retirement benefits schemes contributions 

Impairment loss on property, plant and 

equipment included in other operating expenses 

1,061 

(581 ) 

6,266 

1,238 

226,986 

41,385 

5,537 

13,865 

1,630 

2,619 

107,583 

2,983 

210 

2.471 

1,182 

27,237 

6,170 

214.038 

29,937 

2.197 

44.208 

70,587 

3,807 

1,471 

2,111 

12.612 

122.423 

3,577 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (ConI 'd) 

Fo r (he year ended 31 December 2002 

5. 	 NDIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION 
o 
o 
N 

Di,-cctors' remuneration disclosed purs uant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies t 
oOrd inance is as follows: 	 a.. 
(l)

ex:: 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

o 
Fees 3,200 	 o 

oSalaries, other emoluments and other benefits in kind 3,842 4,211 
o 

Retirement benefits schemes contributions 	 70 12 o 
o 

7,112 4,223 o 
o 
o 

Included in the directors' remuneration were fees of HK$200,000 (2001 : HK$Nil) paid to o 

the independent non-executive directors during the year. o 
o 
o 

In addit ions to the above emoluments, ce rtain directors were granted share options under 

the Company's employee share option scheme. During the year, all of the share options 

granted to directors were cancelled . Details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under 

the paragraph "Arrangement to enable directors to acquire shares or debentures" in the 

Direcwrs ' Report. 

In the ab sence of a ready market for the options granted on the shares of the Company, 

the directors are unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of the options 

granted to the respective directors . 

The remuneration of directors was within the following bands: 

HK$ 

N il to 1,000,000 

1.500,00 I - 2,000,000 

2,000,00 I - 2,500 ,000 

Number of directors 

2002 2001 

3 12 

3 

7 14 

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont 'd) 

For rile yeaf ended 31 De cember 2002 

N 
0 5. 
0 	 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 
N 

t: Individuals with highest emoluments0 
Q. 
(!) 

a( 

I\l 	
Of the six (200 I: five) individuals with the highest emoluments, four (200 I: two) were 

::J 
C 	 directors whose emoluments are disclosed above. The aggregate of the emoluments in 

respect of the other two (200 I: three) individuals were as follows:-< 
C 

0 

0 

0 2002 2001 

0 HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 
0 

0 Salaries and other emoluments 3,486 4,981
0 

Retirement benefits schemes contributions0 5 

0 Severance payment 
 325 
0 

0 

0 	 3,491 5,306 

0 

HK$ 

Number of individuals 

2002 2001 

1,500,00 I - 2,000,000 2 3 

6. TAXATION 

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group incurred a loss for taxation 

purposes for the year. 

The major components of deferred taxation not (credited)/provided for the year are as 

follows: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Ex cess of tax allowances over depreciation (1,528) 504 

Tax losses (93,291 ) (60.412) 

(94,819) (59,908) 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended J I December 2002 

7. NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS N 
o 
o 
N 

The net loss attributable (0 shareholders includes a loss of the Company amounted (0 

HK$439,080.000 (200 I: HK$459,819.000) which has been dealt with in the financial 

statements of the Company. 

.... 
L­
o 
a.. 
!lI 

oc 
~ 

8. lOSS PER SHARE 

::l 
c: 
c: « 
o 

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2002 was based 

on the consolidated loss attributable (0 shareholders of HK$186,274,000 (200 I: 

o 
o 
o 

HK$681.3 15.000) and on the weighted average number of 252,549,887 (200 I: 100,890,430) o 

ordinary shares in issue during the year. o 
o 
a 

Diluted loss per share is not shown because the potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive o 

and would decrease the loss per share. 
o 
o 
o 

The comparative amount of the loss per share has been adjusted as a result of share o 

consolidation and rights issue of 235,447,100 shares of the Company during the year. 



e-KONG Group Limited 


Notes to the Financial Statements (Cant'd) 

For the ye or ended 31 December 200 2 

N 
0 
0 
N 

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

t 
0 
0.. 
Q) 

oc 
~ 

Machinery 

and Leasehold 

Office 

equipment, 

furniture 
:J 
c 
c « 

Group equipment 

HK$'OOO 

improvement 

HK$'OOO 

and fittings 

HK$'OOO 

Total 

HK$'OOO 

0 

0 Cost 
0 

0 
As ar I January 2002 231,993 938 22,209 255 , 140 

0 Additions 21,496 32 3,249 24,777 
0 

0 
Di sposals (5,630) (237) (1,494) (7,361 ) 

0 

0 As at 3 I December 2002 247,859 733 23,964 272,556 
0 

0 

0 
Accumulated depreciation 

0 As ar I January 2002 31,634 232 7,846 39,712 

Charge for rhe year 40,753 152 6,017 46,922 

Impairment loss 210 210 

Dispo sals (4,226) ( 198) (594) (5,018) 

As at 3 I December 2002 68,161 186 13,479 81,826 

Net book value 

As at 3 I December 2002 179,698 547 10,485 190,730 

As at 3 I December 200 I 200,359 706 14,363 215,428 

The ne t book value of the Group's property, plant and equipment includes an amount of 

HK$5,537,OOO (200 I: HK$22,262,OOO) in re spect of assets held under finance leases. 
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cant'd) N 
0 
0 
N 

Leasehold 

Office 

equipment. 

furniture 

t 
0 
0.. 
(l) 

oc 
Company improvement 

HK$'OOO 

and fittings 

HK$'OOO 

Total 

HK$'OOO 

~ 
:J 
c 
c « 
0 

Cost 0 

As at I January 2002 

Disposals 

II 

(I I) 

2,029 

(97) 

2,040 

(108) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

As at 3 I December 2002 1,932 1,932 0 

0 

0 

Accumulated depreciation 0 

As at I January 2002 

Charge for the year 

II 914 

559 

925 

559 

0 

0 

0 

Disposal s (I I) (80) (91 ) 

As at 3 I December 2002 1,393 1,393 

Net book value 

As at 3 I December 2002 539 539 

As at 3 I December 200 I 1,115 1,115 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended] I December 2002 

N 
o 
o 
N 

10. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

t 
o 
a.. 
ClJ 

ex:: 
t';l 
:J 
C 
C 

<{ Unlisted shares, at cost 

Company 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

7,855 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

o Due from subsidiaries 901,509 816,300 
o 
o 

Less: Provisions (724,800) (301,000) 

o 
o 184,564 5 15,300 

o 
o Details of the principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are as follows: 
o 
o 
o Place of Issued and Percentage of share 

o incorporationi fully paid up capital held by the 
o Name of subsidiary operation share capital Company Principal activities 
o Directly Indirwly 

US$I 100% Investment holding ZONE Global limited British Virgin 

Isl~nds 

100% Provision of 
ZONE limited Hong Kong HK$2 

telecommunication 

services 

100% Provision of S$IOO,OOOZONE Telecom Pte Ltd Singapore 
telecommunication 

services 

100% Investment holding 
US$IOUnited StatesZONE USA, Inc. 


of America 


Provision of 100%US$IOUnited St~tesZONE Telecom, Inc. telecommunication 
of America 

services 

100% Asset holding
HK$2Hong KongE-Force Limited 

Investment holding 93%US$I,075,269British Virgin EvcntClicks Global 

Islonds
Limited 

__________--------'a 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cant 'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

10. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cant'd) 	 N 
0 
0 
N 

Place of Issued and Percentage of share 	 1: 
0

incorporationl fully paid up capital held by the a. 
Name of subsidiary operation share capital Company Principal activities 

<l)

ex:: 
Direc!iy Indirectly ~ 

::l 
C 

EvemClicks Limi!ed Hong Kong HK$500.000 93% Provision of corporate C « 
management services 

0 

0 

Even!Ciicks Sing~pore Singapore S$2 93% Provision of corporate 0 

Pte Limi!ed management services 0 

0 

speed insure Global British Virgin US$IO.OOO 70% Investment holding 	 0 

0Limi!ed Islands 
0 

0 
speedinsure.com Limi!ed Hong Kong HK$IO.OOO 70% Provision of sales 

0 
and fulfillment solution 

0 

0 

Cyber Insur~nce Hong Kong HK$5.000.000 70% Insurance brokerage 0 

Brokers Limited 

NET defence Comp~ny Hong Kong HK$IO.OOO 51% Provision of internet 


Limited security solution 


e-Kong Pillars Limited British Virgin US$I 100% Investment holding 


Islands 


e-Kong Ventures Limited British Virgin US$I 100% Investment holding 


Islands 


The above summary includes those subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of 


the Company's directors , principally affected the results or formed a substantial portion of 


the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of 


the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

Fur [lie year ended J I December 2002 

N 
o II. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 
o 
N 
...... 

o 
L- Group Company 
Cl.. 
(l) 2002 2001 2002 2001 

cY 
HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Share of net assets (1,91 I) 

o Due from associates 6,749 6,806 
o 
o 

4,838 6,806o 
o 
o Investment in an associate as at the balance sheet dace represented 28% of the issued 
o 
o share capital of CIB (Holdings) Limited, an inactive company which is incorporated in the 

o British Virgin Islands. 
o 
o 
o 12. INVESTMENT SECURITIES 
o 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

At cost less provision: 

Equity securities, unlisted 3,452 31,434 

13. OTHER INVESTMENTS 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

At market value: 

Equity securities, listed outside Hong Kong 

Securities portfolio, unlisted 

91 16,560 

31,177 

91 47,737 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

N14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Trade receivables 

Other receivables 

Deposits. prepayments 

and other debtors 

o o 
N 

Group Company I..... 

2002 2001 2002 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

44,976 37.943 

6,932 16.287 2,168 

debts) with the following ageing analysis. 

Group 

2002 
HK$'OOO 

Current 

I to 3 months 

More than 3 months but less than 12 months 

43,402 

432 

1,142 

o 
a..2001 OJ 

ex::
HK$'OOO 

o 
o 
o 
o 

843 o 
o 

51,908 54.230 2,168 843 
o 
o 
o 

The Group's credit terms on credit sales mainly range from 30 days to 90 days. Included in o 
o 

trade and other receivables are trade debtors (net of provision for bad and doubtful o 
o 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

29.048 

5.922 


2,973 


44,976 37.943 

15. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 

At th e balance sheet date. the Group and the Company had pledged depos its amounting 

HK$7.J40 .000 (2001: HK$7.107,000) and HK$3.045.000 (2001: HK$3.007,OOO) respectively 

to banks for guarantee made by the banks to certain telecommunication carriers for due 

payment by the Group. 
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For the year ended J I Decemb er 2002 

N 
o 16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABlES 
o 
N 

t 
o Group Company 
0... 
(1) 2002 2001 2002 2001 

cC 
HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Trade payables 45,067 42,041 


o 

o Other payables 
o 
o Accru e d charges and 

o o the r cred itors 36 , 143 56,515 5,492 2 ,816 
o Du e to su bsidi ar ies 4,602 4,521 
o 
o 
o 81,210 98,556 10,094 7,337 
o 
o 
o Inc lud ed in t rad e and o ther payables are trade c re dito rs with the fo llowing ageing an alysis . 

o 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

C urrent 25,300 12,617 

I to 3 months 7,877 16,580 

Mo re th an 3 mo nths but less tha n 12 mon th s 11,890 12,844 

45,067 42 ,041 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

17. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES N 
0 
0 
N 

The obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows : 

Group 

t 
0 
a.. 
(l) 

a:. 

Minimum 

Present value 

of minimum 

~ 
:J 
c 
c 
~ 

lease payments lease payments 0 

2002 2001 2002 2001 0 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 
0 

0 

0 

W ithin one yea r 

After one year 

6,744 12 .555 6,566 11,372 0 

0 

0 

but within 2 years 900 5. 123 830 4,885 0 

0 

7,644 17,678 7,396 16.257 
0 

0 

Future financ e charges (248) (1.421 ) 0 

Present value 

o f lease o bligations 7,396 16.257 7,396 16,257 
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N 
0 18. ISSUED CAPITAL 
0 
N 

t 
0 2002 2001 
Q. 
(1) Number of Number of 

cC 
(Q shares Amount shares Amount 
:J 
c Authorised HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 
c 
~ 

0 Preferen ce shares 
0 As at 1 January and 
0 

0 
as at 31 December, 

0 at HK$I each 288,929,402 288,929 288,929.402 288 ,929 
0 

0 

0 Ordinary shares 
0 As at 1 January. 
0 

0 
at HK$0.02 each 6,000,000,000 120,000 3.000.000,000 60,000 

0 Increase in ordinary 

0 shares 3.000,000,000 60,000 

Subdiv ision of ordinary 

shares 6,000,000,000 

As at 31 Dec ember. 

at HK$O .OI (200 I: 

HK$0 .02) each 12,000,000,000 120,000 6,000,000 ,000 120,000 

408,929 408,929 
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For the year ended J I December 2002 

18. ISSUED CAPITAL (Cont'd) N 
0 
0 
N 

2002 2001 t 
0 

Number of Number of a.. 
ClI 

shares Amount shares Amount 
a:::: 

'"Issued and fully paid HK$'OOO HK$'OOO :;J 
c 
c « 

Preference shares 0 

As at I January. 0 

at HK$I each 9,680,000 9,680 9,680,000 9,680 
0 

0 

Converted to ordinary 0 

shares (9,680,000) (9,680) 0 

0 

0 

As at 3 I December, 0 

at HK$I each 9,680,000 9,680 0 

0 

0 

Ordinary shores 0 

As at I January, 

at HK$0.02 each 4,699,262,008 93,985 1,559,959,336 31,199 

Converted from 

preference shares 9,680,000 194 

Reduction of nominal 

value f!"Om HK$0.02 

each to HK$O.OOOS each (91,824) 

Consolidation of shares (4,473,494,908) 

Issue of ordinary shares 235,447, I00 2,354 3,139,294,672 62,786 

Exercise of share options 8,000 

As at 31 December, 

at HK$O.OI (2001: 

HK$0.02) each 470,894,200 4,709 4,699.262,008 93,985 

Total 4,709 103,665 
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For til e year cnded 31 De cember 2002 


N 18. ISSUED CAPITAL (Cont'd)o 
o 
N 

t 	 Deta ils of changes in the share capital of the Company during the year are as follows : 
o 
c.. 
Q) 

c:r:: 	 (a) In October 2002, an aggregate of 9,680,000 preference shares of HK$I each were 
~ 
:J compulsorily converted into 9,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at a premium 
C of HK$0 .98 per share.C « 
o 	 (b) On 21 November 2002, a special general meeting was convened and the shareholders 
o 
o 	 approved the capital reorganisation and the subdivision of authorised share capital 

o as follows: 

o 

o (i) 	 Capital reorganisation
o 
o 
o 	 The nominal value of all the then existing issued shares was reduced from 
o 	 HK$0.02 per share to HK$0.0005 per share (the "Reduced Share") by way of 
o 	 cancellation of HK$O.O 195 per share. 
o 
o 

The credit amount of HK$91.824,000 arising from the capital reduction and 

the credit amount of HK$I, 196,239,000 standing to the credit of the share 

premium account of the Company were used to set-off against the accumulated 

losses of the Company of HK$680,60 I ,000 as at 31 December 200 I and the 

remaining balance of HK$607,462,000 was credited to the contributed surplus 

account of the Company. 

Every 20 issued Reduced Shares of HK$0.0005 each were consolidated into 

one ordinary share of HK$O.O I (the "Consolidated Share") . 

(ii) 	 Subdivision of authorised share capital 

All of the authorised but unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 in the capital 

of the Company were sub-divided into two new ordinary shares of HK$O.OI 

each in the capital of the Company. 

(c) 	 In December 2002,235,447, I00 new ordinary shares of HK$O.O I each were issued 

by way of a rights issue on the basis of one rights share for everyone new ordinary 

share of H K$O.O I each , at an issue price of H K$O. 12 per share ("the Right Issue") . 

The directOrs intended to apply the net proceeds of the rights issue as to about 

HK$25 million as the Company 's working capital. 

All the new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all aspects 

with the existing ordinary shares of the Company. 
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For tile year ended 31 December 2002 

19. SHARE OPTIONS N 
o 
o 
N 

(a) Company 

Pursuant to the employee share option scheme of the Company (the "Old Share 

t 
o 
0.. 
(j) 

oc 
Option Scheme") adopted in a special general meeting held on 25 October 1999, 

the directors of the Company might, at their discretion, invite eligible employees of 

the Group. including executive directors of the Company, to take up options to 

~ 
:J 
C 
c 

4:: 
o 

subscribe for shares in the Company under the terms and conditions stipulated o 

therein. The Old Share Option Scheme was subsequently terminated by the Company 

in a special general meeting held on 28 June 2002 but the share options granted but 

o 
o 
o 

not yet exercised thereunder would however remain effective and are bound by o 

terms therein . o 
o 
o 

On 28 June 2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the "New o 

Share Option Scheme") to comply with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the 

Listing Rules. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion 

o 
o 
o 

grant share options to (i) any director. employee, consultant, customer. supplier, 

business introduction agent. or legal. financial or marketing adviser of or contractor 

to any company in the Group or any affiliate; and/or (ii) any discretionary trust the 

discretionary objects of which include any of the foregoing. under the terms and 

conditions stipulated therein. No share options have ever been granted by the 

Company under the New Share Option Scheme since adoption. 
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For the yeor ended 3 f December 2002 


N 
0 19. SHARE OPTIONS (Cone'd)
0 
N 

t 
0 (a) Company (Cont'd) 
a. 
Q) 

0::: 
Details of the share options granted and remained outstanding under the Old Sharero 


=' Option Scheme at the balance sheet date were as follows :
c 
c « 

Number of share options 0 

0 Adjuoted As at Granted Exercised Cancelledl As at 3 I 
Dat e or 

0 
Exercisable exercise I January during during lap sed during December 

grant period price 2002 Adiusted the year the year the year 20010 
HKS 

0 

0 25. 10. 1999 25.10.2000­

0 24 .10.2009 1.40 42 .111.235 U II .124 (2.8 46 .124) 1.365,000 

0 
Ib.II . 1999 16 . 11 .2000­0 

24. 10.2009 1.60 4.825.000 482 .S00 (47S.oo0) 7.5000 

0 
23 . 12.1999 23.12.2000­

0 

h10.2009 2.00 3.9S0.000 391 ,000 (2S.000) 370.000 

0 

03.01.2000 03.01.2001­

24.10.2009 2.30 3.021.000 302.100 (2.500) 300.000 

24.01.2000 24 .01.2000­

24.10.2009 230 28.700.000 2.870.000 (2.870.000) 

24.01.2000 2 1.02 .2000­

24 . 10.2009 230 7.500.000 750.000 (150.000) 600 .000 

21.01l000 01.032000­

24.10.2009 230 2.500.000 250.000 (50,000) 200.000 

03.0J.2000 0]04.2000­

24.10.2009 7.60 19.000.000 1.900.000 (J80.000) 1.120.000 

0]01.l000 03.0J.200 1­

24 .10.2009 7.60 3.150.000 3 I 5.000 311 .000 

28.04.2000 28.04.200 1­

2(10.2009 3.30 1.911.000 491.100 491 .100 

0908.2000 09.08.2001­

21 . 10.2009 2.30 S50.000 51.000 5S,000 

25 .10.2000 21 10.200 1­

24.10.2009 1.20 9,932.274 993.226 (953.226) 40.000 

I b.01.2001 16.05.2001­

01 .04 .2003 0.80 200.000 20 ,000 20,000 

TOTAL 130.358.509 13.035.850 (7.75 1.850) 5.281,000 
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19. SHARE OPTIONS (Cone'd) 	 0l 
o 
o 
0l 

(a) Company (Conl'd) 	 t 
o 
a.. 
Q) 

The exercise price per share option was adjusted by multiplying by 20 and then a:. 
~ being divided by 2 as a result of capital reorganisation and rights issue in November 	 ::l 
C

and December 2002 respectively. 	 C « 
o 

The number of share options was adiusted by being divided by 20 with any fraction o 
orounded down to the nearest integer and then multiplying by 2 as a result of capital 
o 

reorganisation and rights issue in November and December 2002 respectively. 	 o 
o 
o(b) Subsidiaries 
o 
o 

Pursuant to the respective employee share option schemes (the "Old SubSidiary o 

Schemes") adopted by certain subsidiaries of the Company under the terms and 	 o 
o 

conditions of the rules and procedures for share option schemes for subsidiaries of o 
the Company (the "Old Scheme Rules and Procedures") as adopted and approved 

by the Company in a special general meeting held on 25 April 200 I, certain directors 

and the chief executive of the Company, who are also directors of those subsidiaries, 

and employees of those subsidiaries were eligible to subscribe for shares in the 

respective subsidiaries under the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The Old 

Subsidiary Schemes were subsequently terminated by the subsidiaries upon the 

cancellation of the Old Scheme Rules and Procedures in a special general meeting of 

the Company held on 28 June 2002. No share options have ever been granted by 

the subsidiaries under their respective Old SubSidiary Schemes since adoption. 

On 28 June 2002, the Company adopted new scheme rules and procedures for 

share option schemes for its subsidia.ries (the "New Scheme Rules and Procedures") 

to comply with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The 

subsidiaries may adopt their respective share options schemes in terms and conditions 

of the New Scheme Rules and Procedures, pursuant to which the board of directors 

of each of the relevant subsidiaries may at its discretion grant their respective share 

options to (i) any director, employee, consultant, customer, supplier, business 

introduction agent, or legal. financial or marketing adviser of or contractor to the 

subsidiaries and their subsidiaries , any of their holding companies or any affiliate; 

and/or (ii) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any of 

the foregoing. No subsidiaries have ever adopted their respective share option 

schemes pursuant to the terms and conditions of the New Scheme Rules and 

Procedures since adoption. 
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N 
0 20. RESERVES 
0 
N 

t 
0 Capital 
Q.. 
(1) Share Excha nge redemption Goodwill on Contributed Accumulated 

cC premium reserve reserve consolidation surplus lo,se, Tot.1 
~ 
:J HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 
C 
C 

<{ 
Group 

0 

0 
As at I January 100 I 1,122.73 4 (J88) (69 ,335) (252 ,280) 800,737 

0 Shares ISsue 70,638 70,638 

0 Sh~res issue expenses (6, I) I) (6, I3I) 
0 Excha nle difference on 
0 

0 
translation of 

0 foreign subsid i",es 381 381 

0 Goodwill on consolidation 

0 written off 69,335 69,JJ5 
0 

Net 10>1 attributable 
0 

0 to shareholders (681 ,315) (68 I,lIS) 

As at ) I Decembe r 200 I 1,187,241 (7) (933,595) 253,645 

Sh~res "sued at premium up on 

preference share s convers ion 9, 486 9,486 

ReduCtion of nomin,1 value 

o( s h~res (rom 

HKS0 02 e"h 

to HKSO .0005 mh 91, 824 91 ,824 

Capital reorgan isation (1. 196,239) (91 ,824 ) 607 ,462 680,60 I 

Sh ares issued ;u premium 

on nghts iss ue 25 ,899 25,899 

Shores I" ue expenses (2,926) (2,926) 

Exch, nge differe nc e 

on translation of 

fore ign subsidiaries 

Net loss attributable 

to shareholders (186,274) (186,274) 

As at 3 I December 2002 23,461 607,462 (439,268) 191,661 
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 

20. RESERVES (Cont'd) ('oj 
0 
0 
('oj 

Capital t 
Share redemption Contributed Accumulated 

0 
0. 

premium reserve surplus losses Total 
0) 

tY 
HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO n:s 

:J 
c 
C 

Company « 
As at I January 200 I 

Shares issue 

1,122,7 34 

70.638 

(220.782) 901.958 

70 ,638 

0 

0 

0 
Shares issue expenses (6,131 ) (6,131 ) 0 

Nee loss anributable 0 

to shareholders (459,819) (459,819) 
0 

0 

0 

As ;\C 31 December 2001 1,187,241 6 (680,601) 506,646 0 

0 

Shares issued .e premium upon 
0 

0 
preference share conversion 9,486 9,486 0 

Reduccion of nominal value 

of shares from 

HK$002 each 

to HK$0.0005 each 91,824 91,824 

Capital reorganisacion (1,196,239) (91,824) 607,462 680,60 I 

Shares issued at premium 

on rights issue 25,899 25.899 

Shares issue expenses (2,926) (2,926) 

Net loss attribueable 

to shareholders (439,080) (439,080) 

As at 31 December 2002 23,461 6 607,462 (439,080) 191,849 

Contributed surplus represents the amounts transferred from share premium account as a 

result of the capital reorganisation underwent by the Company in November 2002, as 

mentioned in note 18 to the financial statements. Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda 

(as amended), contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition 

that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed 

surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing that: 

(i) 	 the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they 

become due ; or 

(i i) the realisable value of the Company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate 

of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts. 
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For th e year ended 31 December 2002 

N 
o 
o 
N 

20. RESERVES (Cont'd) 

t 
o 
Q... 
(!) 

rY: 

As at 31 December 2002. the Company had the following reserves ava ilable for distribution 

to shareholders : 

til 
:J 
C 
C « 

2002 

HK$'OOO 
2001 

HK$'OOO 

o 
o Contributed surplus 607,462 
o 
o 

Accumulated los ses (439,080) 

() 

o 168,382 

o 
o 21. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

Loss before taxation 

Interest income 

Interest on obligations under finance leases 

Depreciation 

Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 

Impairment lo ss on property, plant and eqUipment 

Intangible assets and goodwill written off 

Unrealised holding loss on other investments 

Provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

Loss on disposal of other investments 

Share of results of associates 

Bad debts written off 

Provision for doubtful debts 

Waiver of amount due from associates 

Amortisation of intangible assets 

Changes in working capital : 

Properties held for sale 

I rlVentories 

Trade and other receivabl e s 

Trade and other payables 

Effect of exchange rate changes 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

(186,274) 

(313) 

1,080 

46,922 

1,630 

210 

3,117 

27,982 

13,865 

(1,91 I) 

6,266 
1,238 

6,764 

(5,182) 

(17,346) 
7 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

(682,025) 

(4.216) 

1,216 

32,134 

1,471 

I 14,795 

240,476 

72,021 

3,807 

752 

27,237 

6,170 

2,471 

3,734 

978 

(13.185) 

491 

381 

Cash used in operations (101,945) (191,292) 
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22. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES C"'l 
o 
o 
C"'l 

At the balance sheet date. total outstanding commitmencs in respect of land and buildings 

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows : 

t 
o 
c... 
(1) 

~ 

Group 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Company 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

~ 
:J 
C 
C « 
o 
o 

Within one year 

In th e second to 

6,925 10,361 651 
o 
o 
o 

fifth years inclusive 3,717 4.144 o 
o 
o 

10,642 14,505 651 o 

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 

o 
o 
o 
o 

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the deferred 

(assets) unprovided are as follows : 

taxation liabilities/ 

Group 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Excess of tax allowances over depreciation 

Tax losses carried forward 

1,163 

(182,124) 

2,691 

(88,833) 

(180,961 ) (86,142) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For IIl e year c nde d 3 1 December 2002 

N 
o 24. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 
o 
N 

t 
o In January 2003 . the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent 
Q.. 
(!) third party to dispose of two of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries at a considerationex: 

of HK$I .S million. The consideration of HK$I .S million had been settled before the date 

of these financial statements . 

o Upon disposal of the two subsidiaries, which were engaged in the business of provision of 
o event management services, the corporate management services segment of the Group has 
o 

been discontinued since January 2003. o 

o 

o The turnover. results and net cash flows of the corporate management services operations 
o 

for the current year. which have been included in the financial statements are as follow :o 
o 
o 

2002 2001 o 
o HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

o 

Turnover 11,420 34,912 

Operating costs (22,990) (57 .524) 

Loss before tax a tion (11,570) (22,612) 

Taxation 

Loss from ordinary activities after taxation (11,570) (22.612) 

Net cash flow 

Operating activities (9,304) (19,052) 

Investing activities 17 (4.469) 

Fin ancing activ ities 7,717 23,077 

(1,570) (444) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Con I'd) 

For (he year ended 3 { December 2002 

24. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (Cont'd) N 
o 
o 
N 

The assets and liabilities of the corporate management services operations to be disposed t 
of are as follows : 

2002 
HK$'OOO 

Total assets 2,849 
Total liabilities (41,065) 

o 
a.. 
(1) 

oc 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

o 
7,715 o 

(34.361 ) o 
o 
o 

Net liabiliti es (38,216) (26.646) o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For {he year ended 31 December "2002 

N 
0 25. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 
0 
N 
.... 
I- The analysis of the principal business activities and geographical area of operations of the 
0 
Q. 

Group during the year are as follows: 
OJ 

ex: (a) By business segments 
r::l 
::J 
C 
c Year ended 3 I December 2002 

<{ 

0 Telecom- Corporate 

0 munication management 

0 services services Others Consolidated 

0 HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

0 

0 Turnover 

0 Externol soles 298.543 11,420 6,783 316,746 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Results 
Loss fr om operations 

Finance COsts 
Other operating income and expenses 
Unrealised holding loss on oth er investment 
Provision for diminution in value of 

investm ent securities 
Sha re of results of associotes 

(103.493) (11.570) (9,789) (124.852) 

(1.080) 
(31.154) 
(3.117) 

(27.982) 
1.911 

Net loss attributable to sharehol de rs (196.274) 

Other information 
Capital expenditure 
Depreciation 
Significant non-cash expenses 

(oth er than depreciation and amortisation) 

24 .652 
43.039 

7.804 

25 
1.401 

821 

100 
1.921 

77 

Telecom­
munication 

services 
HKS'OOO 

Corporate 
management 

services 
HK$'OOO 

Others 
HK$'OOO 

Elimination 
HK$'OOO 

Consolidated 
HK$'OOO 

Assets 
Segment assets 
Unallocated assets 

254.432 2.849 3,711 (77) 260.915 
24.061 

284,976 

Liabilities 
Segm ent liabilities 
Unallocated liabilities 

79.562 3.013 1.557 (77) 84,055 
4,55 I 

88,606 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 

25. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 

(a) By business segments (Cont'd) 

Year ended 3 I December 200 I 

Telecom· 
munication 

services 
HK$'OOO 

Turnover 

Corporate 
management 

services 
HK$'OOO 

Others 
HK$'OOO 

Consolidated 
HKS'OOO 

N 
0 
0 
N 

t 
0 
~ 
Q) 

IX 
~ 
:J 
C 
C 
~ 

0 

External sales 224,162 34,912 4,822 263,896 0 

0 

Results 0 

Loss from operations 
Intangible assets and goodwill written off 

(163,3 91) 
(105,628) 

(22.612) 
(2,508) 

(16, I07) 
(6,659) 

(202,110) 
(114,795) 

0 

0 

0 

(269.019) (25,120) (22. 766) (316,905) 0 

Finance costs 
Other operating income and expenses 
Unrealised holding 1055 on other investments 
Provision for diminution in value of 

invcstment securitieS 
Share of results of associates 

(1.216) 
(50,655) 

(240,476) 

(72,021) 
(752) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Loss from ordinary activities 

Minority interests 

(682,025) 

710 

Net loss attributable to shareholders (681.3 IS} 

Other information 
Capital expenditure 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Significant non·cash expenses 

(other than depreciation and amortisation) 

158,635 
30.725 

7,678 

3,076 
1,286 

1.234 
2,076 

271 

Telecom· 
munication 

services 
HK$'OOO 

Corporate 
management 

services 
HKS'OOO 

Others 
HK$'OOO 

Elimination 
HK$'OOO 

Consolidated 
HK$'OOO 

Assets 
Segment assets 
Intercsts in associates 
Unallocated assets 

268 ,899 8,134 9,715 (382) 286,366 
4,838 

180,919 

472,123 

Liabilities 
Segment liabilitics 
Unallocated liabilities 

106,417 4.405 804 (382) 111.244 
3,569 

114,813 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the ye or ended 31 December 2002 

o 
N 

25. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)
o 
N 
I-' 

L (b) By geographical segments
o 
n... 
OJ 

cC 
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segment, revenue is based on 

the geographical location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are 

based on the geographical location of the assets. 

o 
o Year ended 3 I December 2002 
o 

o 

o Asia Pacific North America Consolidated 
o HK$~OO HKS~OO HKS'OOO 
o 
o 
o Turnover 
o Ex terna I sales 139,282 177,464 316,746 
o 
o 
o Results 

Loss from operations (43,105) (81,747) ( 124,852) 

Finance costs ( 1,080) 

Other operating income and expenses (31,154) 

Unrealised holding loss on other investments (3, I 17) 

Provision for d iminution in value of investment securities (27,982) 

Share of results of associates 1,911 

N et loss attributable to shareholders ( 186,274) 

Other information 

Segment assets 

Unallocated assets 

45 ,503 215,412 260,915 

24,061 

284.976 

Capital expenditure 2,257 22,520 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For (i1e year ended] I December 2002 

25. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 

(b) By geographical segments (Cont'd) 

Year ended 3 I December 200 I 

Asia Pacific North America Consolidated 

HK$~OO HK$~OO HK$'OOO 
o 
o 

Turnover o 
External sales 150,319 113,577 263.896 o 

o 
o

Result 
o 

Loss from operations (105.181) (96,929) (202, I 10) o 
Intangible assets and o 

goodwill written off (79.102) (35,693) (I 14,795) o 
--~----------------------~----~------~----~------ o 

o 
(184 ,283) ( 132.622) (316,905) o 

Finance costs 

Other operating income and expenses 

Unrcalised holding loss on other investments 

Provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

Share of results of associates 

Loss from ordinary activi[ies 

Minority interests 

Net loss attributable to shareholders 

Other information 

Segment assets 

Interests in associates 

Una ll ocated assets 

132.632 153,734 

Capital expenditure 92.311 71,167 

( 1.216) 

(50,655) 

(240,476) 

(72,021 ) 

(752) 

(682,025) 

710 

(681 ,315) 

286,366 

4 ,838 

180,919 

472.123 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 

For th e year ended 31 December 2002 

N 
o 26. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
o 
N 

t 
o Following the adoption of the SSAP 15 (revised) "Cash flow statements" issued by the 
Q... 
(l) Hong Kong Society of Accountants, the comparative information in the consolidated cash 

oc flow statements and related notes have been reclassified to conform to the current year 's 
~ 
:J 
C 

presentation. 
C « 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
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Summary of Results, Assets 

and Liabilities of the Group 


Results of the Group N 
0 

for the five years ended 3 I December 
0 
N 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

1999 

HK$'OOO 

1998 

HK$'OOO 

t 
0 
0­
w 

a::: 

Turnover 

Continuing operations 316,746 263,896 76.652 44,210 54,334 

Iii 
:J 
c 
c « 

Discontinued operations 23,473 1,035 0 

0 

0 
316,746 263,896 100,125 45,245 54.334 

0 

0 

(Loss)/Profit from operations (188,185) (681.273) 5, I 05 (75,170) (55,323) 0 

0 

0 

Share of results of associates 1,911 (752) (I, I 10) 0 

0 

0 
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (186,274) (682,025) 3,995 (75.170) (55.323) 0 

0 

Taxation (739) (739) (1.763) 

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary 

activities after taxation (186,274) (682,025) 3,256 (75.909) (57.086) 

Minority interests 710 (1.954) (2.499) ( 6,469) 

Net (loss)/profit attributable 


to shareholders ( 186,274) (681,3 15) 1,302 (78,408) (63,555) 


(Loss)/Earnings per share 


Basic (HK$O;74) (HK$6.75) HK$O.O 15 (HK$I.92) (HK$2.39) 


Diluted N/A N/A HK$O .O 13 N/A N/A 

As a result of share consolidation and rights issue in 2002. figures for the years from 1998 to 

200 I have been adj usted for comparison purposes. 



e-KONG Group Limited 

Summary of Results, Assets 
and Liabilities of the Group (Cont'd) 

N 
0 Assets and liabilities of the Group 
0 
N as at 3 I December 
t 
0 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 
0.. 
OJ 

a:: 
HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

~ 
::J 
c Non-current assets 194,182 25 I ,700 448,483 16,295 70, 179 
c « 
0 Current assets 90,794 220.423 491,491 115,752 15,406 
0 

0 

0 Total assets 284,976 472,123 939,974 132,047 85,585 

0 

0 Less: 
0 

0 Non-current liabilities 830 4,885 

0 

0 Current liabilities 87,776 109,928 98,239 14,346 9,278 
0 

0 

0 Total liabilities 88,606 J 14,813 98,239 14,346 9,278 

196,370 357,310 841 ,735 117,701 76 ,307 

Less.· 

Minority interests 119 12,441 10,739 

Net assets 196,370 357,310 841,616 105,260 65 ,568 
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o ice r. General Meeting 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of e-Kong Group Limited N 
o 
o

(the "Company") will be held at Room 3805, Tower II, Lippo Centre. 89 Queensway. Hong Kong, N 

on Friday, 23 May 2003 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes: 1: 
o 
0... 
OJ 

a::.As Ordinary Business 

I. 	 To receive and consider the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 

2002 and the reports of directors and of the auditors thereon; 

2. 	 To re-elect retiring directors and to fix their remuneration; 

3. 	 To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration; 

As Special Business 

4. 	 To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, with or without amendments, 

as ordinary resolutions: 

A 	 "THAT: 

(a) 	 subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of 

the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the 

powers of the Company to allot, issue or otherwise deal with additional 

shares of HK$O.O I each in the capital of the Company, or securities convertible 

into shares, or options. warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any shares, 

and to make or grant offers, agreements or options which would or might 

require the exercise of such powers, subject to and in accordance with all 

applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; 

(b) 	 the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors 

of the Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers , agreements 

or options which would or might require the exercise of such powers after 

the end of the Relevant Period; 

(c) 	 the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally 

or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) 

and issued by the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in 

paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to issue of shares 

as a result of : 

(i) 	 a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); or 



e-KONG Group Limited 

·!n §al Gene oat 

N 	 (i i) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotmento 
o 
N 	 of shares, in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the ...., 
I ­	 Company, pursuant (0 the Bye-laws of the Company from time (0 time;o 
0... orQ) 

a:: 
ro 
:::J 	 (i i i) the exercise of any option granted under any share option scheme or 
C 
C similar arrangement for the time being adopted and approved by the« 

shareholders of the Company for the grant or issue (0 directors or 

employees or eligible participants of the Company and/or any of its 

subsidiaries of shares or rights (0 acquire shares in the Company; or 

(iv) 	 the exercise of redemption or conversion rights attaching to the non­

cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of HK$I.OO each 

in the capital of the Company which may be issued by the Company; or 

(v) 	 the exercise of subscription rights or conversion rights attaching (0 

any warrants or any other securities convertible into shares which may 

be issued by the Company, 

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of 

the Company in issue as at the date of passing this Resolution and the said 

approval shall be limited accordingly; and 

(d) 	 for the purpose of this Resolution: 

"Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until 

whichever is the earlier of: 

(i) 	 the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; 

(ii) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next annual general 

meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company 

or any applicable law (0 be held; or 

(iii) 	 the date on which the authority given under this Resolution is revoked 

or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company 

in general meeting. 

"Rights Issue" means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the 

directors of the Company (0 the holders of shares of the Company or any 

class thereof on the register of members of the Company on a fixed record 
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otic~•.: (:·f A , lU', ' General Meeting ,-.,; '1 1 

date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares or any class thereof N 
o 
o

(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of the N 

Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional t 
o 

entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the 0­
Q)

a:.laws, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock 
ro 

exchange, in any territory applicable to the Company) ," 	 :::l 
c 
c 

<t: 
B. 	 "THAT: 

(a) 	 subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of 


the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the 


powers of the Company to repurchase the shares of the Company on The 


Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"), or on any 


other stock exchange on which the shares of the Company may be listed and 


which is recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock 


Exchange for this purpose ("Recognised Stock Exchange"), subject to and in 


accordance with all applicable laws and/or the requirements of the Rules 


Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and. if applicable. 


any other Recognised Stock Exchange. as amended from time to time. be and 


is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; 


(b) 	 the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company to be repurchased 


by the Company pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Resolution during the 


Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of 


share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this Resolution 


and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and 


(c) 	 for the purpose of this Resolution: 

"Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until 

whichever is the earlier of: 

(i) 	 the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; 

(ii) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next annual general 

meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company 

or any applicable law to be held; or 

(iii) 	 the date on which the authority given under this Resolution is revoked 

or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company 

in general meeting," 
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Gene,ral ee in 

0 
N C. "THAT conditional upon Resolutions 4A and 4B above being passed. the general 
0 
N 	 manda te granted to directors of the Company for the time being in force to exercise 
~ 
L 	 the powers of the Company to allot, iss ue and deal with additional shares of the
0 

0.. 

Q) 	 Company pursuant to Resolution 4A be and is hereby extended by the addition to 

ct: the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company which may be 
ro 
:l allotted, issued, and dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be c 
C allotted, issued and dealt with by the directors of the Company pursuant to such<{ 

general mandate of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the 

shares repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to 

Resolution 4B, provided that such extended amount shall not exceed 10% of the 

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date 

of passing this Resolution ." 

By Order of the Board 

Wang Poey Foon, Angela 

Company Secretary 

Hong 	Kong, 10 April 2003 

Nores : 

I. 	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice (or at any 

adjournment thereof) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf at the 

meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

2. 	 To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under 

which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power of Htorney or authol'ity, must be 

deposited at the Company's bra.nch share registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Lim ited, at G / F, Bank 

of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours 

before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting thereof. 

3. 	 Completion and delivery of the form of proxy shall not preclude any member from attending and 

voting in person at the meeting convened, if the member so desires and in such event, the form of 

proxy shall be deemed to be revo ked. 

4 . 	 In case of joint registered holders of any shares , anyone of such persons may vote at the meeting, 

either per-sonally or' by proxy, in respect of suc h shares as if he/sh e was solely entitled thereto, but 

if mor'e than one of such joint holders be pr-e sent at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of 

such holders so present who s e name stands fir 's t in the register of members of the Company in 

respect of sllch shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof. 

5 . 	 An explanatory statement containing further details regarding Resolution 4 above will be sent to 

member'S and other persons who are entitled thereto together with the Company's 2002 Annual 

Report . 
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Chairman's Statement 

In 2001, amidst exceptionally difficult market conditions, e-Kong Group Limited (the "Company", together with 

its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the "Group") continued to develop its service businesses with significant 

growth mainly generated from the ZONE telecom business . However, our Inves tment s in technology and Internet­

related companies, were particularly affected by the general economic downturn and the continuing negative 

sentiment towards the technology sector. 

Total turnover for the yea r 2001 was over HK$264 million, a 164% increase over that of the previous year. ZONE 

businesses in the US, Hong Kong and Singapore accounted for 85% of this ye ar's revenue. The majority of the 

future revenue growth for the Gro up is expected to derive from its ZONE business. 

The Group reported a net loss of HK$681 million for the year. The operating loss of HK$253 million was 

predominantly due to costs incurred during the growth and expansion phase of the Group's businesses. This year's 

loss was mainly attributable to non-recurring losses of HK$427 million which included HK$312 million resulting 

from a decrease in the valuation of the Group's investments and HK$115 million from write-offs of intangible 

assets and goodwill . The Group has taken a prudent approach to provision for devaluation of its investment s in 

order to reflect their fair market value . 

In 2001, the Company underwent certain changes to its sha reholding structure and Board composition . In 

December 2001, the Company successfull y completed a two-for-one rights issue and raised net proceeds of 

approximately HK$128 million . Following the rights issue, Mr. Kuldeep Saran and Mr. William Bruce Hicks, who 

are also directors of SUNDAY Communications Limited , increased their stake in the Company to about 4.0% and 

4 .5% respectively and were subsequently invited to join the Board. Also, after completion of the rights issue, I 

became a substantial shareholder and the single largest shareholder of the Company. 

During 2001, Messrs . Mokhzani Mahathir, Ong Soon Kiat , Peng Chian Chua , Fung Che Kwong, Ngan Chor Man 

and Johnson Chan resigned from the Board. Messrs. Shane Frederick Weir, Matthew Brian Rosenberg, Chong 

Ching Lai (w ho subseque ntly resigned in January 2002), Kuldeep Saran and William Bruce Hicks w ere appointed 

to the Board . I am confid en t that the new board members wi ll make considerable contributions toward achieving 

our business and corporate goals and in formulating the strategic direction for the Group . 

Fo r 2002, the Group anticipates that ZONE1511 in Hong Kong and Singapore will collectively contribute towards 

the posit ive cashflow of the Group The Group aims to allocate a substantial portion of its available re sou rces 

toward growing the ZONE business in the US as it believes that this market offers the most potential opportunity 

for growth . 

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, I wish to thank our business associates, shareholders and customers 

for their continuous support and also ack nowledge ou r appreciation f or th e contribution and dedicat ion of the 

Group's employees. 

Richard John Siemens 

Chairman 

Hong Kong , 3 April 2002 

/). nnH ol KOp",1 Jon I 3 

/ 




Management Discussion and Analysis 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Group's turnover recorded for the year was approximately HK$263,896,000, a 164% increase as compared to 

HK$100, 12 5,000 for last yea r, 85% of th e turnover was contributed by revenue from the ZONE telecommunication 

business during the year, 

The operating loss of HK$252 ,765,000 was due mainly to the costs in cu rred during the growth and expansion 

phose of the Group's businesses, The consolidated net loss attributable to shareholders was HK$681,315,000 

(2000: profit of HK$l ,302 ,000), The sig nif icant loss recorded was mainly attributable to the non-recurring losses 

of HK$427,292,000 from write-offs of goodwill and intangible assets as well as unrealised holding losses and 

proviSions for diminution in value of the Group's Investments, 

FINAL DIVIDEND 

The Board has not recommended the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 3 1 December 2001 (2000 : 

Nil) 

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND FUNDING 

The Group has managed to maintain stable liquidity with cash and cash equivalents of approximately 

HK$118,45 6,000 (2000: HK$412,988,000) The Group's liabilities under equipment lease financing amounted to 

HK$16,25 7,000 (2000 HK$582 ,000) The Group's overall gearing level was approximately 3% (2000 N/A), In 

addition , the G ro up had pledged deposits amounting to HK$ 7, 107,000 (2000 H K $68,680,000), No bank borrowings 

were recorded during the ye ar under review. 

In December 2001, the Company rai sed net proceeds of approximately HK$12 8,000,000 through a rights issue of 

3,139 ,294, 672 rights shares of HK$0,02 each at a price of HK$0,0425 per rights share (t he " Rights Issue") , The 

net proceeds are being llsed for general working capital purposes , mainly for financing the ZONE business, 

Dur ing the year, the Group mainly relied on its internal resources for its funding re qui rement s, With the net 

proceeds rai sed from the Rights Issue, sufficient working capital wil l be provided for its present requirements 

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION POLICY 

At 31 December 2001, the Group employed 226 staff in Hong Kong and overseas, compared to 225 in 2000, The 

Group's remuneration polic ies co ntinued to be in line with prevailing market practices and are formulated on the 

basis of the performance and experience of individua l employees, 

In addition to sa lary payment, other fringe benefits in cluding training subs idies, provident fund and med ical 

insurance are also off ered to employees, The Compan y also granted share optio ns to certain d irectors of the 

Compa ny and certain employees of the Group to motivate their performance and cont ribu ti on to the Group, 
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK 

During this year the Group su ffered co nsiderable reductions in the valuation of its investments made in a number 

of technolog y and Internet-related companies These lo sses we re prompted by declines in the worldwide equity 

markets, negative sentiment towards the technology secto r and continuing difficultie s encountered by " new 

economy" businesses. The Group has therefo re taken a prudent approach to prov is ion for diminution of its 

inves tments and has also either written off or substantially written down most of its non-li st ed investments. The 

Group's investment s In publicly-listed securities, originally deemed as long-term inves tments , have been appraised 

at current market values. 

Nevertheles s, the Group's flag ship 100 and tele com business ZONE continues to experience steady and consistent 

growth. In the United States, ZONE completed the acquisition of certain assets of The Furst Group, Inc. in 

February 2001 and commercially launched its nationwide domestic long -distance and international 

telecommunication services in June 2001 under two brand names, viz. "ZoneLD" targeted at individuals and small 

businesses and " ZoneCMS " targeted at large corporations and enterprises. During this year, distribution relationships 

were also established with key on-line marketing partners in the United States. Some of the on-line marketing 

sites promoting "Zo neLD" services to individuals and small businesses are Yahool, Priceline .co m and MSN. An in­

hou se sales team and external value-added resellers are used to penetrate the large corporation and enterprise 

markets . ZONE's US operations accounted for 43 % of the Group's total revenue f or this year and thi s is expected 

to increase further in the coming year. 

In Hong Kong, ZONE 1511 's sWitch facilities were upgraded in August 2001 to accommodate the increase in 

International Direct Dial (100) traffic and to enable the introduction of new value-added services such as virtual 

global calling card and call-forwarding services . ZONE1511 's website (wwwzone1511com) underwent extensive 

enhancements and incorporated additional self-service and on-line support functions. ZONE1511 has replaced a 

number of reseller partners w ith world-class carriers such as KDDi, SingTel, Teleglobe and Equant. ZONE 1511 w ill 

strive to increase its market share , Improve its gross margins and strengthen its bu siness. It intends to accomplish 

this through further development of more innova tive value-added services, expansion of its distribution channels 

and focusing on forging strategic partnerships . 

ZONE 1511 's Singapore operation continued to grow In a highly competitive environment. ZONE 1511 has remained 

competitive by maintaining lower operating costs w hile providing customers with choice, quality, reliability and 

val ue . 

EventC liCks, the Group's corporate management subsidiary, operates within the travel- and hospitality-related 

industries, whereby global air-trave l and hotel occupancy suffered drastic declines since the events in the United 

States on 11 September 2001. A number of corporate clients postponed their business events and incentive trips 

due to safety concerns, resulting in a drop in booked reve nue for the fourth quarter of 2001 . However, we expect 

confere nce and events bookings to rebound and materialise during the second and third quarter of 2002. 



Management Discussion and Analysis (Conl'd) 

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (COlJt 'cf) 

speed insure , the Group's on-line insurance services subsid iary, faced tough challenges while introducing its novel 

direct on-line approach Into an agent-centric and tradition-bound market. As a result, speedinsure sca led down 

its business expansion in an effort to reduce operating costs. By sustaining a steady stream of on-line business, 

speedinsure has managed to operate self-sufficiently whilst maintaining good quality service standards for their 

new and repeat customers 

The Group will continue to capitalise on its distinct advantages, a key factor being the Group's use of technology 

to provide effective and efficient innovative sol utions wi thin each of our chosen bus inesses . Concurrently, as we 

grow our businesses, the Group will also enforce internal financial and management diligence to maintain and 

operate our businesses in a resourceful and cost-effective manner. 

Derrick Francis Bulawa 

Chief Executive Officer 

Hong Kong, 3 April 2002 
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Directors' Report 

The board of directors (the " Board") of the Company is pleased to present its report and the audited financial 

statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2001 . 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The prinCipal activity of the Company is in vestment holding and those of its principal subsidiaries are set out in 

note 11 to the frnancial statements . 

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 

An analysis of the Group's turnover and result by business acti vities and geographical area of operations for the 

year ended 31 December 2001 is set out in note 32 to the financial statements. 

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND 

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2001 are set out in the consolidated income statement 

on page 20. 

The Board has not recommended the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2001 (2000 : 

Nil) 

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last fi ve financial years is set out on pages 58 

and 59. 

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS 

In the year under reV iew, the aggregate turnover attributable to the fi ve largest customers of the Group accounted 

for approximately 4% of the Group's total tu rnover for the year, and sales to the largest customer included 

th erein amounted to apprOXimately 3% . 

The aggregate purchases att ributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for approximate ly 35% of the 

Group's total pu rc hases for the year, and purchases from the largest supp lier included therein amounted to 

approximately 14%. 

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates, nor those shareholders which, to the knowledge 

of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's share capital, had any interest in the five largest customers 

and suppli ers. 
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Details of movements In the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group are set out in note 10 

to the financial statements 

RESERVES 

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in note 23 to the financial 

statements. 

DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were: 

Executive Directors: 

Mr. Richard John Siemens (Chairman) 

Mr. Ku ldeep Saran (Deputy Chairma n) (appointed on 18 December 2001) 

Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa 

Mr . Ong Soon Kiat (reS igned on 23 March 2001) 

M r. Lim Shyang Guey 

Non-executive Directors: 

Mr . Mokhzani Bin Mahathir (resign ed on 3 May 2001) 


Mr . Peng Chian Chua (resigned on 25 April 2001) 


Mr. Chong Ch ing Lai (appointed on 8 June 2001 and resigned on 14 January 2002) 


Mr. Ngan Char Man * (resigned on 25 April 2001) 


Mr. Fung Che Kwong , Peter' (resigned on 21 August 2001) 


Mr. Joh nson Chan * (appointed on 23 March 2001 and resigned on 21 August 2001) 


Mr. William Bruce Hicks (appoi nted on 18 December 2001) 


Mr. Shane Frederick We ir * (appoint ed on 21 August 2001) 


Mr . Matthew Brian Rosenberg * (appointed on 21 August 2001) 


* Indep endenr Non-execulive Director5 

In accordance with the Articles 86 and 87 of the Co mpan y's Bye-laws, Messrs. Lim Shyan g Guey, Kuldeep Sara n, 

William Bruce Hicks, Shane Frederick Weir and Matthew Brian Rosenberg sha ll retire by rotation at the forthcoming 

annual general meet ing and , being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES 

At 31 December 200 1, th e direc tors had the following interests in the issued share capi tal and share options of 

the Company and it s associated corpo rations (w ithin the meaning o f the Securities (D isc losure of Inte rests) 

Ord ina nce (the "SDI Ordinance")) as notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 

"Stock Exchange") pu rsuant to Section 28 of the SDI Ord inance or the Model Code for Securities Tr ansacti ons by 

Directors of Liste d Compan ies (the " Model Code") or as recorded In the register mainta ined pursuant to Section 

29 of the SDI Ordinance: 

Interests in shares of the Company 

Number of ordinary shares 

of HKSO.02 each held 

Personal Corporate Other Total 

Name of director interests interests interests interests 

513,529,500Mr. Richa rd John Siemens 	 513,529 .500 
(notes I and 2) 

210,036,642Mr. William Bruce Hick s 23,199,142 186,837,500 
(note 3) 

Mr. Kuldeep Sa ran 3,412,000 183,537,500 	 186,949,500 

(note 4) 

100,000Mr. Shane Frederick Weir 	 100,000 

NOles: 

1. 	 DUling the year. 403.529.500 share s we re subscllbed under a right s is sue of 3.t39.294.6 72 rights shares of HKSO .02 eac h at a price of 

HK$0 .0425 per righ ts share (the .. Rights Issue"). 

2. 	 24.000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Siemens Enterprises limited, a company controlled by Mr. Richa rd John Siemens . 489.529.500 

share s are beneficially ow ned by Goldstone Trading limited. il company controlled by Mr. Si emens. 

3. 	 186.8 37.500 shares are beneficia lly owned by Great Wall Holdings limited. a company contro ll ed by Mr. William 8ruce Hicks. 

183 .53 7,500 shares are beneficially owned by Future (Holdings) l imited. a company co n trolled by Mr. Kul deep Saran. 
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Conl'd) 

Interests in share options of the Company 

(a) 	 A summary of movements in share options granted during the year to directors and eligible employees 

under the Company's employee share option scheme (the "Scheme"), which particulars are further described 

under the heading of Share Option Schemes below, and their share options remaining outstanding at 31 

December 2001 were as follows: 

Number of share options 

Adjusted At 1 Granted Exercised lapsed At 31 

Exercisable exercise January during during during December 

Date of grant period price 2001 the year the year the year 2001 

(nofe I) 

HKI 

Director 

Mr Richard John 

Siemens 

24 .012000 24.01.2000 ·24.10.2009 023 28,700,000 - 28,700,000 

Mr . Derrick francis 

Bulawa 

Mr. Li m Shyan g Guey 

25.101999 

16, II 1999 

2312 .1999 

030 1 2000 

2510 .2000 

25 10.1999 

2401.2000 

25.012000 

03. 03 2000 

2510 .2000-2410.2009 

16 11.2000·2410 .2009 

23. 12.2000·2410.2009 

0301. 200 1· 24. 10.2009 

25.10.2001·24 .10.2009 

2510.2000· 24.10 .2009 

21.022000·24. 10.2009 

01.032000·24.102009 

0304.2000·2410.2009 

0.14 

0.16 

0.20 

0.23 

0.12 

0.14 

0.23 

023 

0.76 

23.96 1,235 

4,750,000 

250,000 

25,000 

9,53 2,274 

4,500,000 

1,500,000 

500,000 

3,800 ,000 

- 23,961 ,235 

4,750,000 

25 0,000 

25,000 

9,532 ,274 

38,51 8, 509 

4,500,000 

1,500,000 

500,000 

3,800,000 

10.300,000 
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Cont 'd) 

Interests in share options of the Company (Cont 'd) 

(a) (Cont'd) 

Date of grant 

Ex ercisabl e 

perio d 

Adjusted 

exe rcis e 

price 

(note t) 

HKl 

At 1 

January 

2001 

Number of share options 

Granted Ex ercised lapsed 

during during during 

the year the year the year 

At 31 

December 

2001 

Emplo yees 

251 01 999 25 10.2000 ·24 10.2009 0.14 13,650,00 0 \3,650,000 

161 11 999 16.11.2000·24 .10.2009 0.16 1,295, 000 (8 ,000) (1.2 12,000) 75,000 

(note 2) 

23. I2. 1999 23. 12.2 00 0·2 4 10.2009 0.20 3)00,000 3, 70 0,000 

OJ,012oo0 030 1 200 1·24 .102009 023 3,000,000 3,000,000 

24.01.2000 2 1.02.2000·24 .10.2009 0.2 3 6, I35,000 (135,000 ) 6.000,000 

250 1 2000 01.032000· 24 .10 .2009 023 2,000.000 2,000. 000 

03 03.2000 0304 .2000 ·2 4.102009 0.76 15,200.000 15.100,000 

0303 2000 0303200 1 ·24. 10.2009 0.76 3,6 50,000 (500,000 ) 3, 150,000 

28042 00 0 28 04200 1·2 41 0.2009 OJ3 5,975,000 (1,060, 000 ) 4.9 15,000 

01.06 2000 0106.200 1·24 10.2009 OJ4 250,000 (25 0,000) 

0908 2000 0908.2001 ·24. 102009 0.23 1, 000 ,000 (450,000) 550,000 

25 10.2000 25.10 .200 1·2 4. 10. 200 9 0.12 840.000 (440,00 0 ) 400,000 

1605 200 I 1605200 1·01.04 .2003 008 200,000 20 0,000 

(note 3) 

52 ,840,000 

TOTAL 134.21 3,5 09 200, 000 (8,000 ) (4,047,000) 130,358,509 

(n ote 4) 
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DIRECTORS' II'JTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Cont 'd) 

Interests in share options of the Company (Cont'd) 

(a) 	 (Cont'd) 

During the year, no share options were granted to or exercised by the directors of the Company under the 

Scheme . 

NO les: 

I . 	 The exe rcise prICe per share option was adlusted by the mullipller of 0 .33 20 In January 2002 as a result of the complelion o f 

the Rights Issue. 

The weighted average closing markel price per share immediately before the date on which the 8,000 share options were 

exercised was approximalely HK$0 .3 8 7. 

3. 	 The closing market p llce per share at the dale preceding the date on which the 20 0,000 share options were granted wa s 

HnO .32. 

4. 	 The tolal of 4 ,047 ,000 share opli ons lap sed during the year upon cess alion of employment 01 cert ain employee s. 

5. 	 The abo ve op uons gran led are nol re cognised in Ihe ac counls until they are exe rci sed. Rule 17.08 of the Listing Rule s slipulates 

that the listed issuer is enc oura ged 10 dis close in liS annual report and interim report the va lue o f options granted to 

participan ts as re ferred to in (i) to (v) of Rule 17. 07 during the finanCial year. The Directors consider it inapproprrate to value 

Ihe share options as a nu mbe r of factor s critical for the valuation cannot be determined accurately. Any valuation of the share 

options based on various sp eculati ve assumplions would be meaningless and could be misleading to the shareholders. The 

directors there lore consider the di sc losure o f only the relevant market prrce and exercise price , which are readily asc ertainable, 

wi ll be appropriate. 

(b) 	 No share options were granted under any of the employee share option schemes of certain subsidiaries of 

the Company, which particulars are further described under the heading of Share Option Schemes below. 

Save as disc losed above , none of the director s, chief executive and/or any of their associates had any interests in 

the issued share cap ital of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in the SDI Ordinance) at 

31 December 2001 pursuant to the SDI Ordinance and the Model Code . 

ARRANGEMENT TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES 

Apart from the above, at no time during the year wa s the Company or any of its subsi diaries a party to any 

ar rangement to enable any director or any chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the 

acqu isitio n of shares in , or debentures of , the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the directors, 

the chief executi ve, nor any of their spo uses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe fo r the 

shares In, or debentures of the Compan y, or had exercised any such ri ght dUring the year. 
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS 

The Company has entered into service contracts with independent non-executive directors who have been appointed 

for an initial period of one year commencing on 1 January 2002 . 

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract 

with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year wi thout payment of 

compensation other than statutory compensation. 

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

No contract of Significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of 

the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any 

time during the year 

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER 

At 31 December 2001, according to the register of substantial shareholders maintained under section 16(1) of the 

501 Ordinance, the Company was notified that the following shareholder had or was deemed to have an interes t 

of 10% or more of the Company's issued share capital . 

Number of ordinary shares Percentage of 

Name of shareholder of HKSO.02 each held total issued share capital 

Mr. Richard John Siemens * 	 513,529,500 10.93% 

The interest is the same as the corporale Interest that Mr. Siemens had as disclosed under the heading of Directors ' Interests in 

5ecUTlties above. 

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interests representing 10% or more of 

the Company's issued share capital at 31 December 2001. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

Details of movements in the Company's share capi tal during the year and the purpose of the shares issued are set 

out in note 21 to the financial statements. 

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 

(a) 	 In accordance with the Scheme which was adopted in a special general meeting held on 25 October 1999, 

the directors of the Company may, at their discretion, Invite eligible employees of the Group, including 

executive directors of the Company, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the 

terms and conditions set out therein for purpose of attracting and retaining high calibre employees and 

motivating them to higher level of performance in order t o enhance long-term shareholder value. 
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Conl'd) 

Summary of principal terms of the Scheme are as follows:­

(I) 	 Maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme 

The maximum number of the shares in respect of which share options may be granted (together 

with share option s exerc ised and share options then outstanding) at an y time under the Scheme will 

be such number of shares, when aggregated with shares subject to any other scheme, as shall 

represe nt 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time (excluding for thi s 

purpose an y shares which have been duly allotted and issued pursuant to this Scheme). At year 

ended 2001, 318,418,005 shares were available for issue under the Scheme and it represented 

6 .78% of the total issued share capital of the Company. 

No qualifying participant shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full, would result in such 

person 's maximum entitlement exceeding 25% of the aggregate number of shares for the time 

being issued and issuable under the Scheme. 

(ii) 	 Period and payment on acceptance of share options 

Under the Scheme, an offer may be accepted by an employee in respect of shares for which they are 

offered to such employee when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed 

by the employee together w ith a remittance in favour of the Co mpany of HK$100 by way of 

consideration for the grant thereof is payable on acceptance of the offer within 28 days from the 

offer date . 

(IIi) 	 BasIs of determining the exercise price 

The subscription price for the Company's shares under the Scheme is determined by the Board and 

shall not be less than 80% of the average of the clOSing prices of the Company 's shares on the 

Stock Exchange on the five trading da ys immediately preceding the date of offer of the options or 

the nominal value of the Company 's shares, whichev er IS the higher. 

(iv) 	 Remain ing life of the Scheme 

The Board shall be entitled at any time wi thin 10 years between 25 October 1999 and 24 October 

2009 to offer the grant of an option to an y qualifying participants . 

(b) 	 During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Company adopted employee share option schemes ("S ubsidiary 

Schemes "), each in terms and conditions as adopted and approved in a special general meeting of the 

Company held on 25 April 2001, w hereby certain directors and chief exec utive of the Company, who are 

also directors of these subsidiaries, are eligible under Subsidiary Schemes to subscribe for shares in the 

respecti ve subsidiaries under the terms and conditions stipulated therein . No share option has ever been 

granted in any of the Subsidiary Schemes since adoption. 
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out In note 11 to the financial statements. 

LIQUIDITY 

The Group has managed to maintain stable liquidity with cash and cash equivalents of approximately 

HK$118,456,000 (2000: HK$412,988,000) 

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 

The Group has no bank loans or overdrafts at 31 December 2001 There was no interest capitalised by the Group 

during the yea r. 

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES 

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the 

Company's listed securities . 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 

Since Dece mber 2000, the Group, other than overseas subsidiaries, has operated a Mandatory Provident Fund 

Scheme ("M PF Scheme " ) under the rules and regulation s of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance 

for all qualifying employees . The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group and are 

under the control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and each of the qualifying 

employees are required to make monthly contributions at 5% of the qualifying employee's basic monthly income, 

up to a maximum of HK$l ,OOO each per month. The employees may also choose to make voluntary matching 

contribution above the said maximum level. The contributions which are made based on percentage of employees' 

income and charged to the income statement represent contributions payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group, 

other than overseas subsidiaries, to funds at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme. 

The overseas subsidiaries have also operated their pension schemes, or similar arrangement, for their employees 

in accordance wi th the sta tutory limits prescribed by the releva nt legal requirements . 

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS 

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages 17 to 18 under Directors' Profile. 

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

At 31 December 2001, the Group employed 226 fUll-time employees. The Group has maintained good relationships 

w ith its employees . None of the Group's employees are represented by a labour union . 
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CODE OF BEST PRACTICE 

In the opinion of the directors, save and except that the Independent non-executive directors were not ap pointed 

for a specific term during the year but were subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the an nual 

general meeting in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, the Company has comp li ed with the Code of Best 

Pra ct ice as set ou t In Ap pen d ix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Sec urities on the Stock Excha nge 

throughout the yea r ended 31 December 2001. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee ha s reviewed with management the accounting principles an d practices adopted by the 

Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters In cluding the review of the 

audited financial statements for the yea r ended 31 December 2001. 

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS 

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under th e Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda although th ere 

are no restri ctions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda . 

AUDITORS 

A resolution will be su bmitted to the for thcoming annual general meeting o f th e Compa ny to re-appoint the 

auditors, Messrs . Moores Rowland, Ch artered Accountants, Certified Public Accountants. 

On behalf of the Board 

Richard John Siemens 

Chairman 

Hong Kong, 3 April 2002 
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Executive Directors 

Mr. Richard John Siemens. 57. Chairman. Joined the Group in January 2000 Mr. Siemens is a founding 

member. Co-Chairman and Executive Director of SUNDAY Communications Limited. Mr. Siemens is also the 

Chairman and a founding member of Distacom Communications Limited He has been involved in the 

telecommunications industry for almost 30 years Born and raised In Canada. Mr. Siemens was trained as a 

Chartered Accountant and came to Hong Kong in 1979 In 1984, he was involved in the establishment of 

Hutchison Telephone Company Limited w ith Hutchison Whampoa and Motorola. Mr. Siemens, as Group Managing 

Director of Hutchison Telecommunications Limited, was also involved in the establishment of other we ll-know n 

companies inc luding As iaSat. STAR TV and Metro Radio and Hutchison's move into the European wireless business 

wi th "O range ", as we ll as Hutchison 's European telecom strategy. 

Mr. Kuldeep Saran , 50, was appointed as Deputy Chairman and Executive Director of the Company in December 

2001 . Mr. Saran is also an Exec uti ve Directo r of SUNDAY Communications Limited and Distacom Communications 

Limited. After obtaining his M.BA in 1977, Mr. Sa ran Joined the Tata Group of India. Between 1984 and 1986, 

Mr. Saran worked at Sony Corporation in India and in 1987 he was appointed Country Head of Motorola in India. 

In 1992, Mr. Saran was Director of Planning and New Business of Hutchison Telecommunications in Hong Kong. 

He was involved In the execution of Hutchiso n Telecommunications' new business in the United Kingdom, Thailand, 

MalaySia and India. He also was a member of the development team for Hutchison Telecommunications' business 

in Taiwan and the PRe. Mr. Saran joined Deutsche Bank In 1994 as head of the telecommunications group (Asia 

PacifiC). 

Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa, 38, joined the Group in September 1999 as Chief Executive Officer and was 

appOinted in October 1999 as Execu tive Director. As CEO of the Company, Mr. Bulawa oversees the development 

and execution of the Group's unique vision for convergent services. He is also the Group's chief strategist and his 

responsibilities Include paying personal attention to investor relations and the Group's worldwide se rvice s businesses. 

Mr. Bulawa was among the key founders of STAR TV and also served as Chief Operating Officer for the US based 

UNIFI Communications where he worked extensively in the As ian satellite, data and telecommunications sectors . 

He has more than 16 yea rs of entrepreneurial and communications experience in the United States and Asia . Mr. 

Bulawa received his Bachelor of Science degree in Electronic Engineering Technology from the DeVry Institute of 

Technolog y in the United States . 

Mr. Lim Shyang Guey, 42, was appOinted as Executive Director and Vice-P resident of Corporate Development of 

the Company in October 1999. Mr. Lim is responsib le for executing the Group's corporate strategy and overseeing 

major sha reholder and in ves tor Issues . He also plays an active ro le as Executive Director on the Company's Board 

of Di rectors and was one of the core creators of the Group's unique business vision. He has more than 13 years of 

experience in telecommunications and information technology in various countries including New Zealand, Russia, 

MalaYSia and Singapore. Mr. Lim holds a Bachelor of Enginee ring degree and a Master of Engineering degree, 

both from the University of Auckland in New Zealand 
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Non-executive Directors 

Mr. William Bruce Hicks, 40, was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2001. Mr. 

Hicks is the Group Managing Director of SUNDAY Communications Limited. He has been a partner of Distacom 

Communications Limited since 1994 and currently serves as an Executive Director and the Distacom group's Chief 

Technology Officer. Prior to Joining Distacom, Mr. Hicks was with Hutchison Telecom, where he was resp onsible 

for technical operations In Hong Kong and actively Involved in new business development in Asia and Eu rope. Mr. 

Hicks, a Canadian, began his career with Motorola Inc. in the United States. He received his B.S.E.E. degree from 

Michigan Technological University in 1983 and an M .B.A. from the International Management In stitute in Geneva, 

Swit zerland in 1987 . 

Mr. Shane Frederick Weir, 47, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August 

2001. Mr. Weir is a consultant of Weir & Associates, So licit ors & Notaries. Bo rn and edu cated in Canada, Mr. 

Weir's practice as solicitor concentrates on co rp orate commercial tax and securities matters . He has practiced in 

Hong Kong since 1985 and for several years was employed in Hong Kong as an associate with Phillips & Vineberg, 

one of the oldest and most respected commercial law firms in North America. Mr. Weir qualified as a solicitor, 

barrister, and notary public in Canada in 1978 and wa s admitted as a solicitor in the United Kingd om as well as in 

Hong Kong in 1992. 

Mr. Matthew Brian Rosenberg, 30, was appointed as Independent Non-execu ti ve Director of the Company in 

Augu st 2001 . Mr. Rosenberg is currently the Vice-President of International Sales & Operations for Global Scheduling 

Solutions (HGSSH). He comes to GSS with a diverse background spann ing ove r 8 years in Internet & telecom 

techn ology, revenue driven channel management and strategic business planning . His international management 

experience spans both ASia and Europe, abilities in several languages, and success in developing business models 

and revenues in both regi ons of the world. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Japanese and Spanish from the 

University of Amherst, Massachusetts . 



e-KONG 

Convergence through Servtces 

Auditors' Report 

ffl Moores Rowland 

To the members 

e-Kong Group Limited 

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) 

We have audited the financial statements on pages 20 to 57 which have been prepared in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. 

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS 

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair 

view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate 

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. 

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our 

opinion to you. 

BASIS OF OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society 

of Accountants . An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements . It also Includes an assessment of the significant estimates and Judgements made by 

the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 

to the Company 's and the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered 

necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of 

the presentation of information in the financial statements . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

OPINION 

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the 

Group as at 31 December 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have 

been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

Moores Rowland 

Chartered Accoun tan ts 

Certified Public Accountants 

Hong Kong, 3 April 2002 



Consolidated Income Statement 
For Ihe yew ended J I December 200 I 

2001 2000 

Note HKS'OOO HK$'OOO 

Turnover 3 263,896 100,125 


Cost of sales (214,038) (72,570) 


G ross profit 

Other re venue 

Othe r net income 

3 

4 

49,858 

4,216 

27,555 

28,861 

99,908 

Distribution cost s 

Bus iness promotion and marketing expenses 

Operating and admini strati ve expenses 

Other opera ting expenses 

(22,370) 

(31,166) 

(176,615) 

(76,688) 

(6,086) 

(43,6 23) 

(86,180) 

(6 ,286) 

(Loss)/Profit from operations (252,765) 14,149 

Finance costs 

Intangible assets and goodwill written off 

Provision for diminution in va lue of investment securities 

Unrealised holding loss on other in vestments 

Share of results o f associates 

5 

5 & 12 

(1,216) 

( 114,795) 

(72,021) 

(240,476) 

(752) 

(140) 

(8,904) 

(1 ,1 10) 

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities before taxation 5 (682,025) 3,995 

Taxa tion 7 (739) 

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities after taxation (682,025) 3,256 

Minor ity int erests 710 (1,954) 

Net (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders 8 & 23 (681,315) 1,302 

(Loss)/Earnings per share 9 

Basic (35,12) cents 0.08 cent 

Diluted N/A 0.07 cent 



,e-KONGConsolidated Statement of Recognised Gains 
Convergence through Services 

and Losses 
FO I fhe y, 'UI ended 3 i Decembel 200 I 

2001 2000 

HK$ 'OOO HK$'OOO 

Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiaries 381 (388) 

Exchange reserve released on disposal of subs idiaries (1,1 17) 

Goodwill previously eliminated directly aga inst rese rve s wri tten off 

to income state ment 69,335 

Other capital re serve and goodwill on co nso lidat ion released 

on disposal of su bsid iaries 1,647 

Net (lo ss)/profit for the year attributable to sh areholders (681,315) 1,302 

Total recognised (losses)/gains (611.599) 1,444 


Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries eli mi nated directly against reserves (7,13 4 ) 


(611.599) (5,690) 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
AI J I De(el/,!;C'( 200 I 

2001 2000 
Note HKS'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Non-current assets 
Property, p lant and equ ipment 10 215,428 9 1,049 
Inta ngible assets 12 42, 366 
In terests in ass oc iates 13 4,838 12,687 
Investm en t secur iti es 74 31,434 302, 38 1 

251,700 448, 483 

Current assets 
Oth er investm ents 15 47,737 
Propert ies he ld fo r sale 3,734 
Inve n tories 97 8 
Trade and other receiva bles 16 54,230 73,7 91 
Pl edged deposit s 17 7,107 68,680 
Cash and cas h eq ui va lents 78 111,349 344 ,308 

220,423 49 1,491 

Current liabilities 
Tr ade an d oth er payabl es 19 98,556 97 ,6 57 
Cur ren t po rt ion o f ob li g at ions u nder finan ce lea ses 20 11,372 582 

109,928 98,239 

Net current assets 110,495 39 3, 252 

Total assets less current liabilities 362,195 841 ,73 5 

long-term liabilities 
Obligat ions un de r fin ance leases 20 4,885 

Minority interests 11 9 

NET A5SETS 357,310 841 ,6 16 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Issued ca pital 21 103,665 40,879 
Re serves 23 253,645 800,737 

357,310 84 1,6 16 

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board o f Directors on 3 April 2002 

Richard John Siemens Derrick Francis Bulawa 
Director Direc tor 



e-KtDNG 
Convergence through Services 

Balance Sheet 
1\/ 3 I U<;u·,llbe, 200 I 

2001 2000 

Note HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Interests in subsidiaries 

Interests in associates 

10 

11 

13 

1,115 

515,300 

6,806 

1,184 

537,034 

9,215 

523,221 547,433 

Current assets 

Trade and o ther receivables 16 843 14,350 

Pledged deposits 17 3,007 68,680 

Cash and ca sh equivalents 18 90,577 319,439 

94,427 402,469 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 19 7,337 7,065 

Net cu rren t assets 87,090 395,404 

NET ASSETS 610,311 942,837 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Issued capital 27 103,665 40,879 

Reserve s 23 506,646 901,958 

610,311 942,837 

Approved and au thorised fo r issue by the Boa rd of Directors on 3 A pril 2002 

Richard John Siemens Derrick Francis Bulawa 

Director Director 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
FOI Ihe yeol ended J I Oe 11 m el 200 I 

2001 2000 
Note HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Net cash outflow from operating activities 24 (191,292) (86,6 13) 

Returns on investments and servicing of finance 
Interest received 4,216 28,795 
Income fro m unlisted in vestments 66 
Interest on ob ligations under fina nce leases (1,216) (140) 
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and 

servicing of finance 3,000 28,721 

Taxation 
Overseas tax paid (2 12) 

Investing activities 
Pu rchase of property, plant and equipment (134,564) (10 1, 597) 
Purchase of intangible assets (4,313) (42,748) 
Purchase of investment securities and other investments (131,294) (206,946) 
Proceeds from d isposa l of proper ty, p lant and equipment 1,181 1, 235 
Proceeds from disposal of o th er investments 23,200 
Net (repaym ent)/advances from/to associa tes 7,195 (12,463) 
Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash and 

cash equivalents acquired) 26 (1,603) (3 ,030) 
Disposal of su bsidia ries (net of cash and 

cash eq uivalen ts disposed) 27 15,000 (5 ,068) 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (225 ,198) (370,6 17) 

Net cash outflow before financing activities (413,490) (428, 721) 

Financing 28 
Issue of ordinary shares 127,293 742 ,046 
Capita l contributed by minority shareholders 591 
Repayment of ob ligat io ns under finance leases (8,926) (212) 

Net cash inflow from financing 118,958 741 ,834 

(Decrease)lIncrease in cash and cash equivalents (294,532) 3 13,113 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 412,988 99,875 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 118,456 412,988 

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents 
Pledged depos its 7,107 68,680 
Fi xed deposits 4,000 317,762 
Ban k bala nces and cash 107,349 26,546 

118,456 412, 988 
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e-KeNG 

Convergence through Services 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For 'he yeo! ended 3 J December LOO J 

1. GENERAL 

The Company is inco rporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and Its ordinary 

shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"). 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These financial statements ha ve been prepared in accordance with Statements of Standard Accounting 

Practice ("'SSAP") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting principles 

generally accepted in Hong Kong and the di sc losure reqUirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance . 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below. 

Basis of preparation 

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost, as modified 

for revaluation of certain investments in securities as explained in the accounting policies set out below. 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 

made up to 31 December 2001. 

The results of subsidia ries acquired or disposed of during the year are accounted for from the effective 

dates of acquisition or up t o the effective dates of disposal respectively. 

All significant Inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on 

consolidation. 

Goodwill on consolidation 

Positive goodwill ar is ing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the 

Group's share of the fai r value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired . 

In respect of subsidiaries acquired before 1 January 2001, th e related positive goodwill ha s been eliminated 

against reserve s and, as permitted by the SSAP 30, has not been restated. Provision for impairment losses 

has been made against such goodwill in accordance with SSAP 31 . For subsidiaries acquired on or after 1 

Janu ary 2001, the related positi ve goodwill is amortised to the consolidated income statement on a 

straight-line ba sis over its estimated useful life. Pos itive goodwill is carried as an asset in the consolidated 

balance sheet at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses . 

In respect of acquisitions of associates, positive goodWill is amortised to the consolidated income statement 

on a straight-line basis ove r its est imated useful life. The cost of positive goodwill less any accumulated 

amortisation and any impairment losses is included in the carrying amount of the interest in associates . 



Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Cont'd) 
[01 'he yeor ended J I [). 'cembe r 200 I 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont 'd) 

Goodwill on consolidation (Cont 'd) 

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries and associates represents the excess of the Group's 

share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the acquisition. In 

respect of subsidiaries acquired before 1 January 2001, the related negative goodwill has been credited to 

capital reserve. For subsidiaries acquired on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that negative goodwill 

relates to an expectat ion of future losses and expenses that are identified in the plan of acquisition and 

can be measured reliably, it is recognised in the consolidated income statement when the future losses and 

expenses are recognised . Any remaining negative goodwill up to the fair values of the non-monetary assets 

acquired, is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the weighted average useful life of 

depreciable non-monetary assets. Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets 

acquired is recognised Immediately in the consolidated income statement. 

On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill 

not previously amortised through the consolidated income statement or which has previously been dealt 

with as a movement on Group reserves is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. 

Subsidiaries 

A subsidiary IS an enterprise, in which the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the 

financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In the Company's balance sheet, 

investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision . 

Associates 

An associate is an enterprise, in which the Group or the Company has significant influence and which is 

neither a subsidiary nor a Joint venture of the Group or the Company. Jn the Company's balance sheet, 

investments In associates are stated at cost less provision, if necessary. 

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation . 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to 

its w orking condition and location for its intended use. 

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined as 

the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised as an 

income or expense in the income statement. 



Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl'd) 
For Ihe yeo r enJed 3 I Decernbel 200 I 

e-KeNG 

Convergence through Services 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

Property, plant and equipment (Cont 'd) 

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful 

life from the date on which they become fully operational and after taking into account their estimated 

residual va lues. using the straight-line method at the following rates per annum: 

Leasehold improvement Over the remaining lease term 


Office equipment, furniture and fittings 10% - 33% 

Machinery and equipment 10%-33% 


Intangible assets 

Intangible assets comprise business assets acquired and goodwill arising on business combination (other 

than acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate) and are amortised over their estimated useful life. Business 

assets in clude mainly business plans, business contracts, copyrights, other intellectual property rights and 

cus tomers list. 

Investments in securities 

Investment secu rities held for an identified long-term purpose are stated at cost and subject to impairment 

review at each reportmg date to reflect any diminution m their va lue, which is expected to be other than 

temporary. The amount of provisions is recognised in the income statement in the period in wh ich th e 

decline occu rs . 

Securities not classified as investment securities are classified as other investments, which are stated at fair 

value m the balance sheet. The unrealised holding gains and losses for other investments are included in 

the income statement. 

The gain or loss on disposal of investment secu rities and other investments is the difference between net 

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the secu rities and is accounted for in the period in which the 

disposal occurs. 

Impairment loss 

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrymg amounts of its tangible and intangible assets 

to de termi ne whether there is any indication that these as sets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 

such indication exi sts, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, ba sed on the higher of its net 

selling price and value in use, in order to determ ine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not 

possible to est imate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the sm allest group 

of assets that generates cash fl ows independently (ie. a cash-g enerating unit) . 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl 'd) 
Fo t iI,e yeOi elided J J Decem bel 200 J 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont 'd) 

Impairment loss (Cont'd) 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit 

is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years . A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 

as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal 

of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation Increase . 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the 

revenue can be measured reliably. 

Income in respect of telecommunications services provided to cu stomers is recognised when the services 

are rendered. 

Income in respect of corporate management services is recognised when the event management services 

are rendered . 

Other income includes internet security solution services income, sale of computer hardware and software 

and insurance and management consulting income . Internet security solution services income and insurance 

and management consulting income are recognised in the period when the services are rendered. Sale of 

computer hardware and software is recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed. 

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at the interest rate 

applicab le 

Investment income is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is established. 

Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

As sets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair value at the date of acquisition. The 

corresponding liability to the lessor is inc luded in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance 

costs , wh ich represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the 

assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce 

a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period. 



e-KeNG 

Convergence through Services 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont 'd) 
FOI lite yeal ended 3 lOpe 'Inbel 200 I 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coned) 

Operating leases 

Rentals pa yab le under operating leases are recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the 

lease terms. Lease incenti ves recei ved are recognised in the income statement as an integal part of the net 

consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the 

accounting period in which they are incurred . 

Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the transaction 

dates . Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are 

retranslated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at that date. Translation differences are included 

in the income statement. 

On consolidation . the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries denominated in currencie s other than 

Hong Kong dollars. are translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 

A ll exchange differences arising on consolidation are dealt with In the exchange reserve. 

Taxation 

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable 

or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income 

and expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial 

statements. The tax effect of timing differences. computed using the liability method. is recognised as 

deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or asset will 

crystallise in the foreseeable future . A deferred tax asset is not recognised unless its realisation is assured 

beyond reasonable doubt. 

Cash equivalents 

For the purpose of consolidated cash flow statement . cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid 

Investments w hich are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which we re within three 

months of maturity w hen acquired. less advances from banks repaya ble w ithin three months from the date 

of the advance. For balance sheet classification, cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash 

w hich are not restricted as to use. 

Related party 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other 

party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating deci sions. 

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common Significant 

influence. 
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Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Con/'d) 
For tile yeor ended J I Dece,,,bel 2001 

3 . TURNOVER AND REVENUE 

Turnover and revenue recognised by category are analysed as follows: 

Group 

2001 2000 

HKS'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Turnover 

Telecommunication services income 224,162 63,740 

Corporate management services income 34.912 1,284 

Sale o f anima ted films 23,473 

Others 4.822 11,628 

263.896 100,125 

Other revenue 

Interest income 4.216 28,795 

In come from unlisted investments 66 

4.216 28,861 

Revenue 268.112 128,986 

4. OTHER NET INCOME 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

Gain on disposal of investment securities 76,051 

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 23,210 

Ga in on disposal of subsidiaries 311 

Others 336 

99,908 



e-K8NG 

Convergence through Services 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl'd) 

For Ille veor ended J I UF.'Ce mber 2()O I 

5. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 

This is sta ted after charging : 

Group 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

(a) Finance costs 

Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 1,216 140 

(b) Other items 

Amortisation of intangible assets included in 

other operating expenses 

Auditors' remuneration 

Bad debts written off 

ProviSion for doubtful debts 

Cost of inventories and services provided 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment : 

Owned assets 

Assets held under finance leases 

Intangible assets and goodwill written off: 

Intangible assets 

Goodwill 

Loss on disposal of other investments 

Lo ss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Loss on disposal of properties held for sale 

Operating lease charges on premises 

Staff costs 

2.471 

1,182 

27,237 

6,170 

214,038 

29,937 

2,197 

44,208 

70,587 

3,807 

1.471 

2,111 

12,612 

122,423 

1,163 

1,000 

42 

1,100 

72,570 

10,508 

152 

2,685 

46,228 

6. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION 

Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as 

follows: 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Fees 

Sa laries, other emoluments and other benefits in kind 4,211 3,960 

4,211 3,960 

No fees or emoluments were paid to the Independent non-executive directors during the year (2000: Nil). 
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Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Cont'd) 

For the yeor ended J I December 200 I 

6. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION (Cont 'd) 

In additions to the above emoluments, certain directors were granted share options under the Company's 

employee share option scheme . Details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under the paragraph " Directors ' 

Interests In Securities " in the Directors ' Report. 

In the absence of a ready market for the options granted on the shares of the Company, the directors are 

unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of the options granted to the respective directors. 

The remuneration of directors was within the following bands : 

Number of directors 

HK$ 2001 

Nil 12 6 

1,500,001 - 2,000,000 

2,000,001 - 2,500,000 

14 8 

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration dUring the year. 

Individuals with highest emoluments 

Of the fi ve indi viduals with the highest emoluments, two (2000: two) were directors whose emoluments 

are disclosed above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2000: three) indi viduals 

w ere as follows: 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Salaries and other emoluments 4,981 3,370 

Severance payment 325 

5,306 3,370 

Number of individuals 

HK$ 2001 2000 

Nil - 1,000,000 1 

1, 000,00 1 ­ 1,500,000 2 

1,500,001 - 2,000,000 3 

3 3 

2000 



e-«eNG 

Convergence through Services 

Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Conl 'd) 
FOI II,e yWlI ended J I December L()O I 

7. TAXATION 

Hong Kong Profits Ta x has not been provided as the Group incurred a loss for ta xation purposes for the 

year 

Taxation charge of HK$739,000 for the year ended 31 December 2000 represented Peoples' Republic of 

China income tax calculated at the prevailing rate. 

The major components of deferred taxation not (credited)/provided for the year are as follows: 

Group 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Excess of tax allowances over depreciation 504 1,830 


Tax losses (60,412) (17,952) 


(59,908) (16,122) 

8. NET (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 

The net ( loss)/proflt attributable to shareholders in c ludes a loss of the Company amounted to 

HK$459,8 19,000 (2000 : profit of HK$31,713,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of 

the Company. 

9. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The calculation of basIc loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2001 was based on the consolidated 

loss attributable to shareholders of HK$681,315,000 (2000 profit of HK$1,302,000) and on the weighted 

average number of 1,940,200,731 (2000 1,731,573,250) ordinary shares in issue during the year. 

The fully diluted loss per share for 2001 is not shown because the potential ordinary shares would decrease 

the loss per share and would be regarded as anti-dilutive . 

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for 2000 was based on the consolidated profit attributable to 

shareholders of approximately HK$1,302,000 and the diluted weighted average number of of 1,825,717,799 

ordinary shares For the purposes of calculating the diluted weighted average number of shares, the 

dllutive potential ordinary shares resulting from the outstanding share options and convertible preference 

shares were deemed to be issued as if all outstanding options and convertible preferen ce shares have been 

exercised on the date when the options and convertible preference shares were granted. 

The comparative amount of the earnings per share and diluted earnings per share have been adjusted for 

the effect of the rights issue of 3,139,294,672 shares of the Company during the year 
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Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Cont'd) 
FO I Ille yeol ended 3 I Dp( elllbe, 200 I 

, O. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Group 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

HK$'OOO 

Leasehold 

improvement 
HK$'OOO 

Office 
equipment, 

furniture 
and fittings 

HK$'OOO 
Total 

HK$'OOO 

Cost 

At 1 Janua ry 2001 84,397 1, 326 15,2 53 100, 97 6 
Add iti ons 148, 72 3 746 9,696 159, 165 
Dis posa ls (1,127) (1, 134) (2,740) (5, 00 1) 

At 31 December 2001 231,993 938 22,209 255,140 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 Janua ry 2001 7, 092 302 2,5 33 9, 92 7 

Charge fo r the yea r 25 ,386 267 6,4 8 1 32, 134 

Dis posa ls (844) (337) (1,1 68) (2, 349) 

At 31 December 2001 31,634 232 7,846 39,712 

Net book value 
At 31 December 2001 200,359 706 14,363 215.428 

At 3 1 December 2000 77, 305 1,02 4 12,720 9 1, 049 

The net book va lue of t he Gro up's property, p la nt an d eq uipme nt inc ludes an amo un t of HK$22 ,262,000 

(2 00 0: HK$7 94, 000) in res pect of assets held un de r fi nan ce leases. 

Office 

equipment, 

Leasehold furniture 

Company improvement and fittings Total 
HK$ 'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OO O 

Cost 

At 1 January 200 1 11 1, 62 5 1,6 36 

Add ition s 534 534 

Disposal s (130) (13 0) 

At 31 December 2001 11 2,029 2,040 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 Jan uary 2001 4 448 452 

Ch ar ge fo r the year 7 510 517 

Disposals (44) (44) 

At 31 December 2001 11 914 925 

Net book value 
At 31 December 2001 1,115 1,115 

At 31 December 2000 7 1.1 77 1, 184 
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11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Company 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

Unlisted shares, at cost 

Due from subsidiaries 816,300 537,034 

Less.· Provision (301,000) 

515,300 537,034 

Details of the principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are as follows : 

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of share 

incorporation/ paid up capital held by 

Name of subsidiary operation share capital the Company Principal activities 

Directly Indirectly 

ZONE Group Inc. Cayman Islands US$100 100% Investment holding 

ZONE Global Limited British Virgin US$1 100% Investment holding 

Islands 

ZONE Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% Provision of 

telecommunication 

services 

ZONE Telecom Singapore S$100,000 100% Provision of 

Pte Ltd telecommunication 

services 

ZONE USA, Inc. United States US$10 100% Investment holding 

of America 

ZONE Telecom, Inc. United States US$10 100% Provision of 

of America telecommunication 

services 

E-Force Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% Asset holding 
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11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont 'd) 

Place of 

incorporation! 

Name of subsidiary operation 

EventClicks Global British Virgin 

Limited Islands 

EventClicks Limited Hong Kong 

EventClicks Singapore Singapore 

Pte Limited 

speedinsure Global British Virgin 

Limited Islands 

speedinsure.com Hong Kong 

Limited 

speedinsure Si ngapore Singapore 

Pte Ltd 

Cyber Insurance Hong Kong 

Brokers Limi ted 

magictel.com Limited Hong Kong 

NETdefence Company Hong Kong 

Limited 

Issued and fully 

paid up 

share capital 

US$1,075,269 

HK$S OO ,OOO 

S$2 

US$10,000 

HK$10,000 

S$2 

HK$S,OOO,OOO 

HK$1, 000 

HK$10,000 

Percentage of share 

capital held by 

the Company Principal activities 

Directly Indirectly 

93% Investment holding 

93% Provision of 

corporate 

management 

services 

93% Provision of 

corporate 

management 

services 

70 % Investment holding 

70% Provision of sales 

and fulfillmen t 

solution 

70% Provision of sales 

and fulfillment 

solution 

70% Insurance brokerage 

100% Provision of 

telecommunication 

services 

51% Provision of 

internet security 

solution 
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11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Conl 'd) 

Name of subsidiary 

China Portal limited 

Crystal Kingdom limited 

e-Kong Services 

limited 

e-Kong Pillars 

Holdings Limited 

e-Kong Pillars Limited 

e-K ong Ventures 

Limited 

Place of Issued and fully 

incorporation I paid up 

operation share capital 

Briti sh Virgin US$l 

Islands 

British Virgin US$l 

Islands 

British Virgin US$l 

Islands 

British Virgin US$l 
Islands 

British Virgin US$l 

Islands 

British Virgin US$l 

Islands 

Percentage of share 


capital held by 


the Company 


Directly Indirectly 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

Convergence through Services 

Principal activities 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 

The above summary includes those subsidiar ies of the Company which, in the opinion of the Company's 

directors, principally affected the results or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group , To 

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of exces sive 

length , 
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

At 1 January 

Opening carrying amount 42,366 781 

Additio ns 4,313 42,748 

Amorti sa tion charge (2,471) ( 1,163) 

Write-off (44,208) 

Closing carrying amount 

At 31 December 42,366 

At 31 December 

Cost 43,529 

Accumulated amortisation (1,1 63) 

Closing carrying amount 42,366 

The write-off of t he Intangible assets during the year related to business assets and goodwill on business 

combination in respect of the telecommunication business . 

In view of the depressed market for information technology, Internet related businesses and global 

te lecommunication business, the management considered that im pa irment losses on the intangible assets 

had occurred and should be recognised during the year 

13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Group Company 

2001 2000 2001 2000 

HKS'OOO HK$ 'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Share of net assets (1,911) (1,257) 


Due from associates 6,749 13,944 6,806 9,215 


4,838 12, 68 7 6,806 9,215 
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Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Cont'd) 

Fo! Ihe yeor ended 3 I LJ,"cpmber 200 I 

13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cant'd) 

Details of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entitles, at the balance sheet date are as follow : 

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of share 

incorporationl paid up capital held by 

Name of associate operation share capital the Company Principal activities 

Directly Indirectly 

(IB (Holdings) Limited British Virgin US$l,OOO 28% Investment holding 

Islands 

(yber Insurance Brokers Singapore 5$450,000 28% Insurance brokerage 

(5) Pte Ltd. 

14. INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

Group 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

At cost less provision: 

Equity securities, unlisted 31,434 133,456 

Equity securit ies, listed outside Hong Kong 168,925 

31,434 302,381 

Market value of listed securities 169,642 

15. OTHER INVESTMENTS 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

At fair value : 

Equity securities at market va lue, listed outside Hong Kong 16,560 

Securities portfolio. unlisted 31,177 

47,737 

The securities portfolio is made up of listed securities. 
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

Company 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Trade receivables 37,943 36,368 

Other receivables 

Deposits, prepayme nts and other debtors 16,287 37,423 843 14,350 

54,230 73,791 843 14,350 

The Group's credit term s on credit sales mainly range from 30 days to 90 days. Included in trade and other 

re ceiva bles are trade debtors (ne t of provision for bad and doubtful debts) with the following ageing 

analysIs 

Group 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Current 29,048 23,735 

1 to 3 months 5,922 10,736 

More than 3 months but le ss than 12 months 2,973 1,897 

37,943 36,368 

17. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had pledged deposits amounting HK$7, 1 07,000 

(2000: HK$68 ,680,000) and HK$3,007,000 (2000: HK$68,680,000) respecti ve ly to banks for guarantee. 

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Group Company 

2001 2000 2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Bank balances and cash 107,349 26,546 90,577 6,677 


Time deposits 4,000 317,762 312,762 


111,349 344,308 90,577 319,439 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd) 
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19 . TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2000 

HK$'OOO 

Company 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Trade payables 42,041 17,783 

Other payables 

Accrued cha rges and other cred itors 

Due to subsidiaries 

Du e t o an associate 

56,515 78,378 

1,496 

2,816 

4,521 

477 

5,092 

1,496 

98,556 97,657 7,337 7,06 5 

Included in trade and other payables are trade credito rs wi th the follOWing ageing analysis. 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2000 

HK$ 'OOO 

Current 12.617 7,244 

1 to 3 months 16,580 8,525 

More than 3 months but less than 12 months 12,844 2,014 

42,041 17,783 
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For the yeor ended 3 } December 200 } 

20. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 

The obligations under finance leases are repa yable as follows: 

Group 

Present value of 

Minimum lease minimum lease 


payments payments 


2001 2000 2001 2000 


HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Within one year 12,555 61 7 11,372 582 

Af ter 1 year but within 2 year s 5,123 4,885 

17,678 617 16,257 582 

Future finan ce charges (1,421) (35) 

Present value of lease obligations 16,257 582 16,257 582 

21. ISSUED CAPITAL 

Authorised 

Number of 

shares 

2001 

Amount 

HK$'OOO 

Preference shares of HK$1 each 

A t 1 January and at 31 December 288,929,402 288,929 

Ordinary shares of HK$0 .02 each 

A t 1 January 

Increase of ordinary shares 

3,000,000,000 

3,000,000,000 

60,000 

60,000 

At 31 December 6,000,000,000 120,000 

Total 408,929 

Number of 

shares 

288,929,402 

1,500,000,000 

1,500,000,000 

3,000,000,000 

2000 

Amount 

HK$'OOO 

288,929 

30,000 

30,000 

60,000 

348,929 
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21 . ISSUED CAPITAL (Con/'ef) 

Issued and fully paid 

Number of 

shares 

2001 

Amount 

HK$ 'OOO 

Number of 

sha res 

2000 

Amount 

HK$ 'OOO 

Preference shares of HK$l each 

At 1 January 

Converted to ordinary shares 

9,680,000 9,680 170,970,968 

(16 1,290,968) 

170,971 

(161,291) 

At 3 1 Dece mber 9,680,000 9,680 9,680,000 9,680 

Ordinary shares of HK$0 .02 each 

At 1 January 

Issue of ordinary shares 

Converted f rom preference shares 

Exercise of share options 

1,559,959,336 

3, 139,294,672 

8,000 

31,199 

62,786 

1, 159,449,380 

230,000,000 

161,290,968 

9,2 18,988 

23,189 

4,600 

3,226 

184 

At 31 December 4,699,262,008 93,985 1,559,959, 33 6 31 , 199 

Total 103,665 40,879 

(a) 	 By an ordinary resolut ion passed at a special general meeting on 23 Nove mber 2001 , the authorised 

ordinary sha re cap ital of the Company was Increased to HK$120,000,000 by the creation of 

3,000,000,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0 .02 each. 

(b) 	 In April 2001 , share options were exercise d to subscribe for 8,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each 

in the Company at a consideration of HK$3,920. 

In December 2001, 3,139,294,672 new ordinary shares of HK$0 ,02 each were issued by way of a 

right s issue on the ba sis of two righ ts shares for everyone ex isting ord inary sha re , and two rig hts 

shares fo r every one convert ib le prefere nce sha re held, at an iss ue pri ce of HK$0 .0425 per share 

(the" Rights Issue "). The net procee ds of the Rights Issue are used for providing additional working 

capital of the Group . 

Al l the new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all aspects with the exi sting 

ordinary sha re s of the Company. 
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21 . 	 ISSUED CAPITAL (Cone 'd) 

(c) 	 According to the provisions of the Company's Bye-laws and the conditions of the issue of the 

preference shares, the holders of preference shares are entitled to convert all or any of the preference 

shares into fully paid ordinary shares on the basis of one ordinary share of HK$0.02 each for every 

HK$l in nominal value of preference shares so converted. In each year the preference shares may be 

converted on any of the following dates 

(I) 	 the date falling on the 30th day after the date on which the audited financial statements of 

the Company for the last preceding accounting period are despatched to the holders of the 

preference shares; or 

(ii) 	 the date falling on the 30th day after the date on which the interim results of the Company 

in respect of any current accounting period are announced; or 

(iii) 	 such other dates as may be notified in writing by the directors to the holders of the preference 

shares not less than 30 days before such date . 

In addition, as resolved by the directors on 16 December 1998, the preference shares may be 

converted on every second Wednesday and every last Wednesday of each month, and if such date is 

not a business day, on the next business day. 

The Company may in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda and subject to the provisions 

of the Company's Bye-laws determine to redeem the relevant shares on any conversion date for a 

sum equal to (i) the nominal capital paid up or credited as paid up thereon; (ii) a fixed premium 

equal to f ive percent of the amount of such nominal capital; and (iii) outstanding dividends, out of 

funds of the Company which would otherwise be available for dividend or distribution to the 

holders of any class of share or out of the proceeds of a new issue of ordinary share . 

22. 	 SHARE OPTIONS 

(a) 	 In accordance with the Company's employee share option scheme (the" Scheme") which was adopted 

in a special general meeting held on 2 5 October 1999, the directors of the Company may, at their 

discretion, invite eligible employees, including executive directors of the Company, to take up share 

options to subscribe for shares in the Company. Any share option granted can be exercised within 

the period as set out in the terms and conditions for the Scheme. The subscription price for the 

Company's share. under the Scheme is determined by the board of directors and shall not be less 

than the higher of 80% of the average of the closing market prices of the Company's shares on the 

Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the options or 

the nominal value of the Company's shares. 
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22. 	 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'cl) 

(a) 	 (Cont 'd) 

Details of the share options granted by the Company under the Scheme and the share options 

outstanding at 31 December 2001 are set out as follows: ­

Number of share options 

Adjusted At 1 Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31 

Exercisable exercise January during during during December 

Date of grant period price 2001 the year the year the year 2001 

HK$ 

25 .10 .1999 25 10 2000-2 4.10.2009 o14 42 ,111.2 35 - 42,111,235 

16 .11.1999 16.112000-24 _10.2009 0.16 6,045,000 (8 ,000) (1.212,000) 4,825,000 

23 12.1999 23.1 22000 ·24.10.2009 0.20 3,950.000 3,950,000 

0301 .2000 030 1.2001 -24.10 .2009 02 3 3,025,000 3.025,000 

24.012000 240 12000-2410.2009 0.23 28.100,000 - 28.100,000 

24.012000 21.022000-2 4.10_2009 0.23 7,63 5,000 (1 35,000) 7.5 00,000 

25 .012000 01.032000 -24 .10 2009 0_23 2.500 ,000 2,500,000 

0303.2000 0304 .2000·2410.2009 076 19,0 00,000 - 19,000,000 

03032000 03032001-24.10.2009 076 3, 650 ,000 (500,000) 3.150,0 00 

28.042000 28042001·24.10.2009 033 5,975 ,000 (1,060,000) 4,915, 000 

01.062000 0106.2001 -24.10 .2009 034 250,000 (250 ,000 ) 

09082000 09.082001-24.10 _2009 0.23 1,000, 000 (4 50,000) 550,000 

2510 _2000 25 10_ 200 1-24 _10.2009 0_12 10,372,274 (440 ,000 ) 9,932,274 

16 .052001 16 .052001-01 _04.2003 0.08 200,000 200,000 

TOTAL 	 134,213,509 200,OOC (8,000 ) (4,047,000) 130.358,509 

The exercise price per share option was adjusted by the multiplier of 0.3320 in January 2002 as a 

re su lt of completion of the Rig hts Issue_ 

(b) 	 During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Company adopted employee share option schemes 

("Subsidiary Schemes "), each in terms and conditions as adopted and approved in a special general 

meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2001, whereby certain directors and chief executive of 

the Company, who are also directors of these subsidiaries, are eligible under Su bsidiary Schemes to 

subscribe for shares in the respective subsidiaries under the terms and conditions stipulated therein. 

No share option has ever been granted in any of the Subsidiary Schemes since adoption. 
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23. RESERVES 

Share 
premium 
HK$'OOO 

Exchange 
reserve 

HK$'OOO 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
HK$ 'OOO 

Other 
capital 
reserve 

HK$'OOO 

Goodwill 
on conso· 

lidation 
HKfOOO 

Accumulated 
losses 

HKfOOO 
Total 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

AI 1 January 2000 227,407 1,117 6 (1,087) (62,761) (253,582) (88,900) 

Share Issue 912,221 912,221 

Share issue expe nses (16,894) (16,894) 

Release on disposa l 
of subsidiaries (1,117) 1,087 560 530 

Exchange difference 
on translation of foreign 
subsidiaries (388) (388) 

Goodwi ll on acquisition 
of subsidiaries (7,134) (7,134) 

Net profit attributable 
to shareholders 1,302 1,302 

At 31 December 2000 1,122,734 (388) 6 (69,335) (252,280) 800,737 

Share issue 70,638 70,638 
Share issue expenses (6 ,131 ) (6,131 ) 

Exc hange difference 
on tran slation of foreign 
subsidiaries 381 381 

Goodwill on consolidation 
written off 69,335 69,335 

Net loss attributable 
to shareholders (681,3 15 ) (681,315) 

At 31 December 2001 1,187,241 (7) 6 (933,595) 253,645 

Company 

At 1 January 2000 
Share issue 
Share issue expenses 
Net profit attributable 

to shareholders 

227,407 
912,221 
(16,894 ) 

6 (252,495 ) 

31,713 

(25,082) 
912,221 
(16,894) 

31,713 

At 31 De ce mber 2000 1,122, 734 6 (220,782) 901,958 

Share iss ue 
Share issue expen ses 
Net loss attributable 

to sha reh olders 

70,638 
(6,131) 

(459,819 ) 

70,638 
(6,131 ) 

(459,819) 

At 31 December 2001 1,187,241 6 (680,601) 506,646 

There were no re se rve s available for di stribution as at 31 December 2001 (2000 Nil). 
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24. RECONCILIATION OF (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

(Loss)/Profit before ta xation 

Interest income 

Income from unlisted Investments 

Interest on obligations under finance leases 

Depreciation 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and goodwill written off 

Unrealised holding loss on other investments 

Pro vision for diminution in va lue of investment securities 

Share of results of associates 

Amort isation of long·term investments 

Bad debts written off 

Provision for doubtful debts 

Loss on disposal of other investments 

Gain on di sposal of subsidiaries 

Gain on disposal of investment securities 

Amortisation of intang ible assets 

Changes in working capital 

Properties held for sale 

Inventories 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other payables 

Effect of exchange rate changes 

(682,025) 

(4,216) 

1,216 

32,134 

1,471 

114,795 

240,476 

72,021 

752 

27,237 

6,170 

3,807 

2,471 

3.734 

978 

(13,185) 

491 

381 

3,995 

(28,795) 

(66) 

140 

10,508 

152 

8,904 

1,110 

1,000 

42 

1, 100 

(23,521) 

(76,051) 

1,163 

(3,734) 

(2,399) 

(70,27 5) 

90,114 

Net cash outflow from operating activities (191,292) (86,6 13) 

25. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 

The Group entered into f inance lease arrangements in respect of machinery and equipment w ith a total 

capital va lue at the inception of the arrangements of HK$24,601 ,000 (2000: HK$794,OOO) 
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26. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Net liabilities acquired: 

Property, plant and equipment 303 

Trade and other receivables 759 808 

Cash and cash equivalents 397 2,219 

Trade and other payables (408) (5,203) 

748 (1,873) 

Goodwill 1,252 7,122 

2,000 5,249 

Satisfied by 

Cash 2,000 5,000 

Direct costs incurred 249 

2,000 5,249 

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of subsidiaries: 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'O OO 

Cash consideration 2,000 5,000 

Bank balances and cash acquired (397) (2,219) 

Cash payment for direct costs 249 

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect 

of the purchase of subsidiaries 1,603 3,030 
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27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 

2001 2000 

HKS'OOO HK$'OOO 

Net assets disposed of: 

Property. plant and equipment 10,219 

Long-term Investments 5,757 

Inventor ies 2,016 

Other Investments 15,000 

Trade and other receivables 10,733 

Cash and cash equivalents 5,068 

Trade and other payables ( 12,952) 

Taxation (616) 

Minority interests (14,276) 

Excha nge reserve (1,117) 

Other capital reserve 1,087 

Reserve on con so lidation 560 

15,000 6,479 

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 23,521 

15,000 30,000 

Analysis of the net inf low/(outflow) of cash and cash equiva lents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries: 

2001 2000 

HKS'OOO HK$'OOO 

Cash consideration 15,000 


Cash and bank balances disposed (5,068) 


Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash equivalents 


in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries 15,000 (5,068) 


.".'" ll)(d Rep oII 200 I 49 



Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl 'd) 

F,,, II Ie y" rti ended J I Oe cernber 200 I 

28. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR 

Issued capital 

and 

share premium 

HK$'OOO 

Obligations 

under 

finance leases 

HK$'OOO 

Minority 

interests 

HK$'OOO 

At 1 January 2000 250,596 12,441 

Cas h inflow/(outflow) from financing 

Inception of finance leases contracts 

Share of profit for the year 

D isposa I of su bsid ia ries 

Conversion of preference shares 

742,046 

161,291 

(212) 

794 

1.954 

( 14, 276) 

At 31 December 2000 1,153,933 582 119 

Cash inflow/(o utf low) from financing 

In ception of finance leases contracts 

Share of 1055 for the year 

127, 293 (8,926) 

24,601 

591 

(710) 

At 31 December 2001 1,281,226 16,257 

29. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

A t the balance sheet date, total outstanding commitments in re sp ect of land and buildings under non­

ca ncellable operating leases are payable as follows 

Group Company 

2001 2000 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OO O 

Operating lea ses w hich exp ire : 

Within one ye ar 10,361 4,515 651 1,284 

In the second to fifth years inclusive 4,144 1,784 31 

14,505 6,299 651 1,315 

50 !\lIn ucl h:fJ~" 1 :.'(H) 1 
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION 

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the deferred taxation liabilities/(a ss ets) unprovided are 

as follows : 

Group 

2001 2000 

HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Excess of tax allowan ces over depreciation 2,691 2,187 


Tax losses carried forward (88,833) (28,421 ) 


(86,142) (26,234) 

A potential deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial statements in respect of tax losses 

available to set off future profits as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised in the foreseeable 

future . 

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

During the year, the Group paid international telecommunication services fee of HK$6 ,563,000 (2000: 

HK$4,471,000) to Mandarin Communications Limited, a subsidiary of SUNDAY Communications Limited 

("SU NDAY") Messrs . Richard John Siemens, Kuldeep Saran and William Bruce Hicks are directors of both 

th e Company and SUNDAY 

P. llllll()1 R"'PQrl 2 00 I 51 
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Fot ti,e yew ended :1 I December 200 I 

3 2 . SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 

The analysis of the principal business activit ies and geographical area of operations of the Group during 

the ye ar are as follows : 

(a) By business seg ments 

Year ended 31 December 2001 

Telecom- Corporate 

munication management 

services services Others Consolidated 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Turnover 

External sales 224,162 34,912 4,822 263,896 

Result 

Loss f rom operations (163,391) (22,612) ( 16,107) (202, 11 0) 

Intang ib le assets and goodwill 

written o ff (105,628) (2,508) (6,659) (1 14,795) 

(269,019) (25,120) (22,766) (316,905) 

Finance costs 

Other operating income and expenses 

Unreallsed holding loss on ot her investments 

Provision for diminution in value of inves t ment securities 

Share of result s of associates 

Loss from ordinary activities 

Minority interests 

Net loss attributable to shareholders 

(1,216) 

(50,655) 

(240,476) 

(72,021) 

(752) 

(682,025) 

(68 1,3 15) 

710 



e-Kti)NG 

Notes to the Fi nancial Statements (Cont'd) 

For IIle yew en ded 3 J Decernber 200 J 

Convergent& through Services 

32. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 

(a) By business segments (Cont'd) 

Year ended 31 December 2001 

Telecom­

munication 

services 

HK$'OOO 

Corporate 

management 

services 

HK$ 'OOO 

Others 

HK$'OOO 

Elimination 

HK$ 'OOO 

Consolidated 

HK$ 'OOO 

Other information 

Capital expen diture 158,63 5 3, 07 6 1, 234 

Depreciation and amortisation 30)25 1,286 2, 076 

Signif ica nt non ·cash expenses 

(other th an depreciation 

and amortisation) 7,678 271 

Assets 

Segment assets 

Interes ts in associates 

Unallocated assets 

Intra-segment elimin ati on 

268,899 8,134 9) 15 (3 82) 286, 366 

4,838 

761 ,790 

(580,8 71 ) 

472,12 3 

Liabilities 

Segment liabilities 

Unallocated liabilities 

618,010 34,6 29 39,858 (581 ,253) 11 1,244 

3,56 9 

114, 813 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont 'd) 
FOI Ih e yeO! ended J i Decembel 200 I 

32 . 	 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont 'd) 

(a) 	 By business segments (Cont'd) 


Year ended 31 December 2000 


Telecom- Corporate 

munication management 

services services Others Consolidated 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO HK$'OOO 

Turnover 

External sales 	 63,740 1,284 35,101 100,125 

Result 

Los s from operations 	 (76,864) (9,777) (2,607) (89,248) 

Finance costs 

Other operating income and expenses 

Provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

Share of results of associates 

Profit from ordina ry activities before taxation 

Taxation 

Profit after ordinary activities after taxation 

Minority interests 

Net profit attributable to shareholders 

(140) 

103,397 

(8,904) 

(1,110) 

3,995 

(739) 

3,256 

(1 ,954) 

1,302 
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32. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 

(a) By business segments (Cont'd) 

Year ended 31 December 2000 

Telecom­

munication 

services 

HK$'OOO 

Corporate 

management 

services 

HK$'OOO 

Others 

HK$ 'OOO 

Elimination 

HK$ 'O OO 

Consolidated 

HKJ'OOO 

Other information 

Capital expenditure 134,957 3,276 5,779 

Depreciation and amortisation 8,760 345 2,266 

Significant non-cash expenses 

(other than depreciation and 

amortisation) 1,142 

Assets 

Segment assets 

Interests in associales 

Unallocated assets 

Intra-segment elimination 

198,575 2,260 17,070 (303) 217,602 

12,687 

993,148 

(283,463 ) 

939,974 

Liabilities 

Segment liabilities 

Unallocated liabilities 

340,701 7,651 31 ,2 53 (283,766 ) 95,839 

2,519 

98,358 
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For I/'" )'COr ended J I Deci,,,,b,,r 200 I 

32. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'ciJ 

(b) By geographical segments 

Year ended 31 December 2001 

Asia 

Pacific 

HK$ 'OOO 

North 

America 

HK$ 'OOO 

Consolidated 

HK$ 'OOO 

Turnover 

External sales 150,319 113, 577 263,896 

Result 

Loss f rom operations (105,181 ) (9 6,929) (202,110) 

Intangible assets and goodwill written off (79,102) (3 5,693) (114,795) 

(184,283) (132,622) (316,905) 

Finance costs 

Other operating income and expenses 

Unrealised holding loss on other investments 

Provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

'Share of results of associates 

Loss from ord inary act ivities before taxation 


Minority Interests 


Net loss attributable to shareho lders 

Other information 

Seg ment assets 313,551 153,734 

Interests in associates 

Capital expenditu re 92,311 71,167 

(1,216) 

(50,655) 

(240,476) 

(72,021 ) 

(752) 

(682,025) 

(681 ,3 15) 

467,285 

4,838 

472,123 

710 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl'd) 

32. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd) 

(b) By geographical segments (Cant 'd) 

Year ended 31 December 2000 

Asia 

Pacific 

HK$ 'OOO 

North 

America 

HK$'OOO 

Consolidated 

HK$ 'OOO 

Turnover 

External sales 67,603 32,522 100,125 

Result 

Loss from operations (78,681) (10,567) (89,248) 

Finance costs 

Other operating income and expenses 

Provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

Share of results of associates 

(140) 

103,397 

(8,904) 

(1,110) 

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation 

Taxation 

3,995 

(739) 

Profit from ordinary activities after taxation 

Minority interests 

3,256 

(1,954) 

Net profit attributable to shareholders 1,302 

Other information 

Segment asse ts 

interests in associates 

786,027 141,260 927,287 

12,687 

939,974 

Capita l expenditure 47 ,886 97,253 

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

Certain comparat ive figures have been reclassified to conform to current year's presentation. 



1997 

Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities 
of the Group 

Results of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 

2001 2000 1999 1998 

HKS'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Turnover 

Continuing operation s 263,896 76,652 44,210 54,334 48,557 

Discontinued o perati on s 23,473 1,035 28 ,160 

263.896 100,125 45.245 54,334 76,717 

(Loss)/Profit from operations (681,273) 5,105 (75,170) (55,323) (56,7 90) 

Share of results of associates (752) (1, 11 0) (2 1,478) 

(Loss)/Profit before taxation (682,025) 3,995 (75,170) (55,3 23) (78,268) 

Taxation (739) (739) (1,763) (1,366) 

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary 

activities after taxation (682,025) 3,256 (75 ,909) (57,086) (79 ,634) 

Minority interests 710 (1,954) (2,499) (6,469) (6 ,154) 

Net (loss)/profit attributable 


to shareholders (681.315) 1,302 (7 8,408) (63,555) (85,7 88) 


(Loss)/Earnings per share 

Basic (35.12) cents 0.0 8 cent (998) cents (12 .45) ce nts (21 .15) cents 

Diluted N/A 0 .07 cent N/A N/A N/A 
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Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities 

of the Grou P (Con/ ' d) 

Assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 December 

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$ 'OOO HK$ 'OOO 

Non-current assets 251,700 448,483 16,295 70,179 114,797 


Current assets 220,423 491,491 115,752 15,406 108,802 


Total assets 472,123 939,974 132,047 85,585 223,599 

Less.' 

Non-current liabilities 4,885 5,237 

Cu rrent I ia bil ities 109,928 98,239 14,346 9,278 86,625 

Total liabilities 114,813 98,239 14 ,346 9,278 91,862 

357,310 841,735 117,701 76,307 131.737 

Less : 

Minority interests 119 12,441 10,739 10,670 

Net assets 357,310 841,616 105,260 65,568 121,067 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of e-Kong Group Limited (the "Company") will be 

held at Suite 2101-3, K. Wah Centre, 191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong, on Friday, 28 June 2002 at 

10:00 a.m . for the following purposes:­

1. 	 To receive and consider the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001 and the 

report of directors and of the auditors thereon; 

2. 	 To re-elect retiring directors and to fix their remuneration; 

3. 	 To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration; 

Ordinary Resolutions 

4 . 	 As special business , to conSider and, If thought fit, pass the following resolution, with or without 

amendments, as an ordinary resolution:­

" THAT:­

(a) 	 subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the 

Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal 

with additional ordinary shares of HK$O.02 each in the capital of the Company, or securities 

convertible into shares, options, warrants, or similar rights to subscribe for any shares and to make 

or grant offers, agreements, options or warrants which would or might require the exercise of such 

powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; 

(b) 	 the approval In paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors of the Company during 

the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements, options or warrants which would or might 

require the exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period; 

(c) 	 the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to 

be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the directors of the Company 

pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to an issue of 

shares as a result of: 

(i) 	 a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); or 

(ii) 	 any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares, in lieu of the 

whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company, pursuant to the Bye-laws of the 

Company from time to time; or 

(iii) 	 the exercise of any option granted under any share option scheme or similar arrangement for 

the time being adopted and approved by the shareholders of the Company for the grant or 

issue to the employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries or other defined 

scheme participants of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company; or 
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(iv) 	 the exercise of redemption or conversion rights attaching to the non-cumulative convertible 

redeemable preference shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital of the Company; or 

(v) 	 the exercise of subscription rights or conversion rights attaching to any warrants or any other 

securities convertible into shares which may be Issued by the Company 

shall not excee d 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in 

issue as at the date of passing this Resolution and the sa id approval shall be limited accordingly; and 

(d) 	 for the purpose of this Resolution:­

"Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the 

earliest of 

(i) 	 the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; 

(ii) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is 

required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law to be held; and 

(iii ) 	 the date on which the authority given under this Resolution is revoked or varied by an 

ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting . 

" Rights Issue " means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the directors of the Company to 

the holders of shares of the Company or any class thereof on the register of members of the 

Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares or any class 

thereof (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of the Company may 

deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions 

or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any 

stock exchange in any territory applicable to the Company) ." 

5. 	 As special business, to co nsider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution, with or without 

amendments, as an ordinary resolution :­

"THAT:­

(a) 	 subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution , the exercise by the directors of the Company during the 

Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to purchase issued 

ordinary shares of HK$0.02 ea ch in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong 

Kong Limited (the "S tock Exc hange "), or on any other stock exchange on which the shares of the 

Company may be listed and which is rec og nised by the Securities and Futures Commission and the 

Stock Exchange for this purpose ("Recognized Stock Exchange "), subject to and in accordance with 

all applicable laws and/or the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the 

Stock Exchange and, if applicable, of any Recognized Stock Exchange, as amended from time to 

time be and is he reby generally and unconditionally approved; 

!\ n nlJo l I< epl'l r! 200 1 61 



Nol'ice of Annual General Meeting (Cont'd) 

(b) 	 the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company to be purchased by the Company pursuant 

to the approval In paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal 

amount of share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this Resolution and the 

said approval shall be limited accordingly; and 

(c) 	 for the purpose of this Resolution:­

" Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the 

earliest of : 

(i) 	 the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; 

(ii) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is 

required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law to be held; and 

(iii) 	 the date on which the authority given under this Resolution is revoked or varied by an 

ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting ." 

6. 	 As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution, with or without 

amendments, as an ordinary resolution :­

"THAT conditional upon Resolutions 4 and 5 set out in the notice convening this meeting being passed of 

which this Resolution forms part (the "Notice"), the aggregate nominal amount of the number of the 

shares in the capital of the Company which are purchased by the Company under the authority granted 

pursuant to Resolution 5 set out in the Notice shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of share 

capital of the Company that may be allotted. issued, and dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally 

to be allotted, issued and dealt with by the directors of the Company pursuant to Resolution 4 set out in 

the Notice, provided that such amount of shares shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount 

of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution." 

Special Resolution 

7. 	 As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution, with or without 

amendments, as a special resolution:­

"THAT the Bye-laws of the Company be altered in the following manner:­

(a) 	 by adding the following definition in Bye-law 1 immediately after the definition "dollars" and "$":­

"electronic communication " 	 A communication sent by electronic transmission in any form 

through any medium. 
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(b) 	 by deleting Bye-law 2(e) in its entirety and substituting the following in its place :­

"expressions referr ing to writing shall, unless the contrary intention appears, be construed as including 

printing, lithography, photography and other modes of representing words or figures in a visible 

form or, to the extent permitted by, and in accordance with the Statutes and other applicable laws, 

rules and regulation s, any visible substitute for writing (including an electronic communication), or 

partly in one visible form and partl y in another visible form." 

(c) 	 by adding the following as paragraph (k) in Bye-law 2:­

"References to a document being executed include references to its being executed under hand or 

under seal or, to the extent permitted by, and in accordance with the Statutes and other applicable 

laws, rules and regulation s, by electronic signature or by any other method. References to a document, 

to the extent permitted by, and in accordance with the Statutes and other applicable laws, rules and 

regulations, include references to any information in visible form whether having physical substance 

or not ." 

(d) 	 by deleting Bye-law 153 in its entirety and substituting the following in its place­

" 153 . (A) 	 Subject to Section 88 of the Act and Bye-law 153(B), the Company will, in accordance 

with the Statutes and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, deliver or send to 

every member of, and every holder of debentures of, the Company and to every other 

person who is entitled to receive notices of general meetings of the Company under 

the provisions of the Statutes or of these presents a copy of the relevant financial 

documents in re spect of the Company or a copy of the summary financial report in 

place of a copy of the relevant financial documents from which the report is derived 

not less than twenty-one (21) days before the date of the general meeting of the 

Company (or such other time as is permitted under the Statutes and other applicable 

laws, rules and regulations), provided that this Bye-law shall not require a copy of 

these documents to be sent to more than one of the joint holders of any shares or 

debentures or to any member of, or any holder of debentures of, the Company who is 

not entitled to receive notices of general meetings of the Company and of whose 

address the Company is unaware, but any member or holder of debentures of the 

Company to whom a copy of these documents has not been sent shall be entitled to 

receive a copy of these documents free of charge on application to the Company. 

(B) 	 Where an entitled person under Bye-law 153(A) has, in accordance with the Statutes 

and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, agreed to his having access to the 

relevant financial documents and/o r the summary financial report in respect of the 

Company on the Company 's computer network as mentioned in Bye-law 160(v) or, to 

the extent permitted by, and in accordance with the Statutes and other applicable 

laws , rules and regulations in any other manner (including by any other form of 

electronic communication) instead of being sent the documents or report, as the case 
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may be (an "Assenting Person"), the publication or making available by the Company, 

In accordance with the Statues and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, on 

the Company's computer network referred to above of the relevant financial documents 

and/or the summary financial report throughout the period beginning not less than 

twenty-one (21) days before the date of the general meeting of the Company and 

ending on such date in accordance with the Statues and other applicable laws, rules 

and regulations (or such other period or time as is permitted under the Statutes and 

other applicable laws, rules and regulations) or in such other manner shall be treated 

as having sent a copy of the relevant financial documents or a copy of the summary 

financial report to an Assenting Person in satisfaction of the Company's obligations 

under Bye-law 153(A)." 

(e) 	 by deleting Bye-laws 160 to 161 in their entirety and substituting the follow ing as new Bye-Iaws:­

" 160 . 	Any notice or document, whether or not to be given or issued under the Statues, other 

applicable laws, rules and regulations or these presents from the Company, may be served or 

delivered by the Company upon any member of, and any holder of debentures of, the 

Company and to any other person who is entitled to receive notices under the provisions of 

the Statutes or these presents: 

(i) 	 personally; 

(ii ) 	 by sending it through the post In a prepaid envelope or wrapper addressed to such 

person at his registered address; 

(iii) 	 by advertisement in Engli sh in at least one English language newspaper and in Chinese 

in at least one Chinese language newspaper being in each case a newspaper published 

daily and circulating generally in Hong Kong and specified or permitted for this purpose 

by the Statutes and other applicable laws, rules and regulations , and for such period 

as the Directors shall think fit to the extent permitted by, and in accordance with the 

Statutes and other applicable laws, rules and regulations; 

(iv) 	 by sending or transmitting it as an electron ic communication to such person at any 

telex or facsimile transmission number or electronic number or electronic address or 

computer network or website supplied by him to the Company for the g iving of notice 

or document from the Company to him to the extent permitted by, and in accordance 

with, the Statutes and other applicable laws, rules and regulations 

(v) by publishing it on the Company's computer network and giving to such person notice 

in accordance with the Statutes, other applicable laws, rules and regulations stating 

that the notice or other document is available there (a " Notice of Availability") to the 

extent permitted by, and in accordance with, the Statutes and other applicable laws, 

rules and regulations . The Notice of Availability may be given to such person by any of 

the means set out in Bye-law 160(i), (ii). (iii), (iv) or (vi); or 
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(vi) by sending or otherwise making available to such person through such means to the 

extent permitted by, and in accordance with , the Statutes and their applicable laws , 

rules and regulations 

161. (A) Any notice or other document : 

(i ) if served or delivered by post, shall be deemed to have been served or delivered 

on the day following that on which the envelope or wrapper containing the 

same is posted, and, in proving such service or delivery, it shall be sufficient to 

prove that the envelope or wrapper containing the notice or document was 

properly prepaid, addressed and put into the post. A certificate in writing signed 

by the Secretary or other officer of the Company or other person appointed by 

the Board, that the envelope or wrapper containing the notice or other document 

was so prepaid, addressed and put into the post shall be conclusive evidence 

thereof; 

(ii ) if sent or transmitted as an electronic communication in accordance with Bye­

law 160(iv) or through such means in accordance with Bye-law 160(vi), shall be 

deemed to have been served or delivered at the time of the relevant dispatch or 

transmission . A notice or document publi shed on the Company 's computer 

network in accordance with Bye-law 160(v) shall be deemed to have been 

served or delivered on the day following that on which a Notice of Availability 

is sent to the entitled person. In proving such service or delivery, a certificate in 

writing signed by the Secretary or other officer of the Company or other person 

appointed by the Board as to the fact and time of such service, delivery, dispatch, 

transmission or publication shall be conclusive evidence thereof; 

(iii) if served or delivered in person, shall be deemed to have been served or delivered 

at the time of personal service or delivery, and in proving such service or 

delivery, a certificate in writing signed by the Secretary or other officer of the 

Company or other person appointed by the Board that the noti ce or document 

was so served or delivered shall be conclusive evidence thereof; and 

(iv) if served by advertisement in newspapers in accordance with Bye-law 160(iii), 

shall be deemed to have been served on the day on which such notice or 

document is published . 

(B) W here a person has in accordance with the Statutes and other applicable laws, rules 

and regulations consented to receive notices and other documents from the Company 

in the English language only or the Chinese language only but not both , it shall be 

sufficient for the Company to serve on or deliver to him any notice or· document in 

such language only in accordance with these presents unless and until there is a notice 

of revocation or amendment of such consent given or deemed to have been given by 
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such person to the Company in accordance with the Statutes and other applicable 

laws, rules and regulations which shall have effect in respect of any notice or document 

to be served on or delivered to such person subsequent to the giving of such notice of 

revocation or amendment. 

162. 	 All notices or other documents with respect to shares standing in the names of Joint holders 

shall be served on or delivered to whichever of such persons is named first in the register of 

members and any notice or document so served or delivered shall be deemed a sufficient 

service on or delivery to all the holders of such shares. " 

(f) 	 by renumbering the existing Bye-laws 162 to 168 as Bye-laws 163 to 169 . 

8. 	 To transact any other business. 

By Order of the Board 

Wang Poey Foon, Angela 

Company Secretary 

Hong Kong, 3 April 2002 

Nares: 

1. 	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting con vened by the above notice (or at any adjournment thereof) is entitled to 

appoint a proxy to attend and vo te on hislher behalf. A member may appoint a proxy in respect of part only of his/her holding of shares 

in the Company. A proxy need not be a member o f the Company. 

2. 	 To be valid , the form o f proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under w hich it is signed, or a certified 

cop y of such pow er of attorney or authority, must be deposited at the Company's branch share registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries 

Limited, 5th Floor, W ing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central , Hong Kong , not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for 

holding the meeting or an y adjourned meeting (as the case ma y be), 

3. 	 Completion and deli ve ry of a form of proxy shall not preclude a member from attending and vo ting in person at the meeting convened, 

if the member so desires and in such event, th e for m of proxy shall be deemed to be revo ked, 

4. 	 An explanatory statement containing further detail s regardi ng resolutions 4 to 6 above will be sent to members and other persons w ho 

are entitled thereto together wi th the Company's 2001 Annual Report. 

Amendments to the Bye-laws are being made to reflec t the recent changes to the Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the 
LISting of SeCurities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited , An explanatory statement containing information regarding, inter 

alia , the amendments to the Gye-Iaws of the Company will be sent to the members together with the Company's 2001 Annual Report, 

6, 	 The Register of Members of the Company w ill be closed fro m Tue sday, 25 June 2002 to Friday, 28 June 2002, both days inclusive, 

during which period no tran sfer 01 shares will be effected 

In order to determine entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcom ing annual general meeting, all share transfers accompanied by the 

rele va nt share certificates, mu st be lodged with the Company's branch share registrars in Hong Kong. Secretaries Limited, 5th Floor, 

Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for registration by not later than 4:00 p,m . on Monday, 24 June 2002, 


